
February 13, 2018 
Page 1 

DETROIT LAKES CITY COUNCIL 

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 13, 2018 

****************************************************************************** 
MISSION STATEMENT 

Provide the citizens of Detroit Lakes with a responsible and responsive local government 
structure which insures the community’s public safety, health, quality of life, and general welfare 

in a manner that is accountable to both current and future generations of citizens.   
****************************************************************************** 

The items on my desk as of Wednesday, February 7, 2018, to be presented for discussion and 
action at the regular meeting of the City Council on Tuesday, February 13, 2018, at 5:00 PM in 
the Council Chambers of the City Administration Building, are as follows: 

1. Pledge of Allegiance

2. Minutes
Approval of the minutes of the Regular City Council Meeting held January 9, 2018 and the
Special City Council meeting held January 25, 2018

3. Consent Agenda
All items with an asterisk (**) are considered to be routine by the City Council and will be
enacted by one motion.  There will be no separate discussion of these items unless a Council
Member or citizen so requests, in which event the item will be removed from the general
order of business and considered separately in its normal sequence on the agenda

4. Public Hearings/Comments and Information

A. Annexation Public Hearing for the orderly Annexation between the City of Detroit 
Lakes and Lakeview Township  

1) Consideration to a resolution approving the orderly Annexation between the
City of Detroit Lakes and Lakeview Township (Randolph Road – County
Highway 54)

B. Public Hearing to give receive public comments on the proposed sanitary sewer and 
watermain improvements for Broadlawn Estates – 1st Addition 

1) Consideration to a resolution ordering the proposed sanitary sewer and
watermain improvements for Broadlawn Estates – 1st Addition

C. Public Hearing to give receive public comments on the proposed sanitary sewer and 
watermain improvements for County Road 131 



February 13, 2018 
Page 2 

 
1) Consideration to a resolution ordering the proposed sanitary sewer and 

watermain improvements for County Road 131 
 

D. Public hearing to receive public comment on the alleged nuisance at 708 Richwood 
Road 

 
1) Consideration to declaring the property at 708 Richwood Road a nuisance for 

the following reason(s):  pile of junk and garbage on property; ordering the 
nuisance to be abated by the City and assessing the costs of the abatement to 
the property as a service fee. 
 
 

5. Community Development Committee (*Zeman, Boeke, Imholte, Marks Erickson / Meets 
on February 8, 2018 at 4:00 PM) NOTE DATE & TIME CHANGE 
 

A. Consideration to resolution approving an amended Variance to allow amended 
parking variance to allow 242 parking spaces at 1245 Washington Avenue.  
 

B. Consideration to the first reading of Ordinance 421 for rezoning 1113 Lincoln 
Avenue from “R-2” One and Two Family Residential to “B-3” Auto-Oriented 
Business District 
 

C. Consideration to a resolution approving an amended Conditional Use Permit to add a 
seven space parking lot at 1113 Lincoln Avenue and to allow an addition of treatment 
rooms and expansion of gym, a 2 foot setback instead of a 30 foot front yard setback 
as part of the medical campus at 1112 and 1113 Lincoln Avenue 

 
D. Consideration to a resolution setting a public hearing for the proposed vacation of 

public road right of way at 132 Shorewood Drive (Curfman Beach)  
 

E. Consideration to a second reading and adoption of Ordinance 417 authorizing the 
Rezoning of 839 South Shore Drive from “R-A” Residential Agriculture to “R-2” 
One and Two Family Residence District 
 

F. Consideration to the second reading and adoption of Ordinance 418 amending City 
Code 1007 relative to Erosion and Sediment Control (Stormwater Regulations/MS4) 
 

G. Consideration to the second reading and adoption of Ordinance 419 for 
the annexation of a 9.06 acre tract of land at 19085 County Road 131 and 18955 
Highway 59 Frontage Road in Detroit Township and Zoning the Tract “I-1” Light 
Industrial (Foltz Trucking and part of County Highway 131) 19085 County Road 131 
and 18955 Highway 59 Frontage Road 
 

H. Consideration to the second reading and adoption of Ordinance 420 establishing 
Administrative Penalties 

 
I. **Acceptance of the Monthly Nuisance Report 



February 13, 2018 
Page 3 

 
J. **Variance/Conditional Use Permit Status Report  

 
K. **9 Applications for building permits have been received in the estimated 

construction value of $651,476.38 for January 2018 
 

6. Public Works Committee (*Schurman, Imholte, Sukke, Voss / Meets on Monday, February 
12, 2018, at 2:30 PM) NOTE TIME CHANGE 

 
A. Patrick Petermann with the Boys & Girls Club would like to appear before the Public 

Works Committee to discuss the tree removal relative the building project 
 

B. Discussion regarding assessment and deferment policies for undeveloped properties 
and annexation areas 

 
C. Discussion and information relative to the proposed sanitary sewer re-alignment on 

West Randolph Road 
 
D. Consideration to the request from the Detroit Lakes Shrine Color Guard to waive the 

arena rental fee for set-up on April 4, 2018 (They have the Arena rented on April 5, 
2018 for the Circus) 

 
E. Consideration to the request from the Lake Builders Association to waive the arena 

rental fee for set-up on March 22, 2018 (They have both Arenas rented March 23-25, 
2018) 
 

F. Consideration to the request from the DLCCC to re-establish a non-profit rate for the 
Pavilion for the 6th Annual Tough Laker event on Sunday, June 24, 2018 

 
G. Consideration to a resolution of support and $18,825 City participation for Trail Link 

Project connecting the Highway 10 Underpass to the County 54/Hwy10 intersection.  
 

H. Consideration to a resolution approving the plans and specifications and ordering 
advertisement for bids for the Long Lake Annexation – Phase 4 Sanitary Sewer and 
Watermain Improvements 

 
I. Consideration to a resolution approving the plans and specifications and ordering 

advertisement for bids for the Lake Forest – 7th Addition Street and Utility 
Improvement Project 

 
J. Consideration to a resolution accepting a preliminary engineering report and setting a 

public hearing for March 13, 2018 for Highland Estates Street and Utility 
Improvements (Lemmon Road) 
 

K. **Consideration to requesting quotes for the 2018 bituminous repair or construction 
to streets, alleys and parking areas according to the specifications as laid out by the 
City 
 



February 13, 2018 
Page 4 

 
L. **Consideration to requesting quotes for the 2018 concrete repair or construction of 

concrete curb and gutters, approaches and sidewalks according to the specifications as 
laid out by the City 
 

M. **Consideration to the request made by Marie Bergmann to have more than two 
animals at 561 Pelican River Road (No complaints, requests two cats and one dog) 

 
N. **Consideration to the issuance of a transient merchant’s license for Rick Green dba 

Jonny’s / Stir Fry on a Stick, to operate a food trailer for the ULTRA Snowmobile 
Swap Meet & Rally on February 17, 2018 pursuant to their application, surety bond 
and fees 

 
O. **For information only:  The Ultra Snowmobile Club is hosting the 15th Annual 

Detroit Lakes Vintage Snowmobile Swap Meet & Rally on February 17, 2018.  They 
have selected Jonny’s/Stir Fry on a Stick (Rick Green) to serve as the preferred food 
vendor for the event which may take place on the City Beach if the weather is too 
warm and the ice on the lake is not safe to be on 

 
P. **Consideration to the request submitted by Chamber of Commerce for a Special 

Event Permit to hold the 40th Annual Arts & Crafts in the Park on Sunday July 22, 
2018, 9:00 AM to 9:00 PM 
 

Q. **City Engineer’s Monthly Project Status Report 
 
R. **Acceptance of the Monthly Animal Control Report 
 

7. Finance Committee (*Wenner, Schurman, Sukke, Zeman / Meets on February 13, 2018, at 
3:00 PM) NOTE TIME CHANGE 

 
A. Representatives from Trane would like to appear before the Finance Committee to 

present their proposed Guaranteed Energy Savings Program for the DLCCC 
 

B. Consideration to the donation requests from the Detroit Country Club, Boys & Girls 
Club and Becker County Historical Museum (Memo) 

 
C. Consideration to approving the 2018 Fee Schedule for the Detroit Country Club 
 
D. Consideration to approving the Concession Lease to permit Detroit County Club to 

operate the bar and restaurant at the Detroit Country Club in 2018 
 
E. Consideration to the first reading of Ordinance 422 amending City Code 1001A.06 

Dock License Application relative to liability insurance requirements 
 
F. Consideration to the first reading of Ordinance 423 amending City Code 702.12 

Temporary Expansion Permit for Sidewalk Cafe relative to liability insurance 
requirements 
 



February 13, 2018 
Page 5 

 
G. **Consideration to a resolution approving miscellaneous purchases from Swanson 

Repair Incorporated for 2018 
 

H. **Consideration to approving the final payment to Feldt Plumbing in the amount of 
$7,017.23 for Long Pine Estates Street & Utility Improvement Project 

 
I. **Authorization for City Administrator Kelcey Klemm and Alderman Ron Zeman to 

attend the 2018 CGMC Legislative Action Conference March 14, 2018 in St. Paul, 
MN  
 

J. **Authorization for Glori French to attend the 2018 MCFOA Annual Conference,  
March 20-23, 2018 in Bloomington, MN  
 

K. **Authorization for City Administrator Kelcey Klemm to attend the 2018 MCMA 
Spring Leadership Institute May 2-4, 2018 in Nisswa, MN  
 

L. **Acceptance of the Trial Balance 
 
M. **Approval of payment of claims  
 

8. Public Safety Committee (*Boeke, Josephson, Wenner / Meets on February 12, 2018, at 
4:30 PM) 
 

A. Consideration to requesting quotes for the Forfeiture Vehicle Towing Services for 
2018 - 2019 
 

B. **Authorization for three firefighters to attend Officers School in Alexandria, MN 
February 9-11, 2018  

 
C. **Approval to a 2018 Fireworks Permit allowing Phantom Fireworks Store Sales, 

LLC to sell fireworks inside Menards, 1456 Menard Drive 
 
D. **Acceptance of the Police Chief’s Monthly Report 
 
E. **Acceptance of the Fire Chief’s Monthly Report 
 
F. **Acceptance of parking violations report showing that parking violations amounted 

to $200 for January 2018  
 
G. **The City has received $4264.42 that was collected by Becker County Court 

Administrator for December 2017 fines 
 

9. Liquor/Gambling Control Committee (*Marks Erickson, Josephson, Voss / Meets on 
February 13, 2018, at 4:30 PM)  
 



February 13, 2018 
Page 6 

 
A. Consideration to the request from the Polar Fest Committee for a cash donation for 

Fireworks Display on February 17, 2018.  {Previous years donations from the Liquor 
Fund were $400 (2016) and $400 (2017)} 
 

B. **Approval of the issuance of a special on-sale intoxicating liquor license for Holiday 
Inn (Right Choice Lodging LLC) to sell and serve on-sale intoxicating liquor for the 
following events at the DLCCC/Holmes Theater pursuant to their application and 
fees: 

  February 10, 2018 – Tommy Ryman 
  February 17, 2018 – Gear Daddies 
 
C. **Approval to the issuance of a Permit to Consume request made by Rhinos Old 

Time Hockey Group for the Old Timers Hockey Tournament at the Kent Freeman 
Arena February 23-25, 2018 
 

D. **Approval to the issuance of a Permit to Consume request made by Lake Region 
Builders Association for the Builders Show at the Kent Freeman Arena March 24, 
2018 
 

E. **Approval of the issuance of a temporary on-sale intoxicating liquor license for the 
Fraternal Order of Eagles Aerie #2342 to sell and serve on-sale intoxicating liquor 
outside of 113 Holmes Street in conjunction with the Street Faire, June 1-2, 2018, 
pursuant to their application and fee  

 
F. **Approval of the gambling application submitted by Boys and Girls Club of Detroit 

Lakes to hold a raffle at the Lakeside Tavern, 200 West Lake Drive on February 17, 
2018 

 
G. **Approval of the gambling application submitted by Detroit Lakes Fire Department 

Relief Association to hold a raffle at the Holiday Inn, 1155 Highway 10 on March 24, 
2018 

 
H. **Approval of the gambling application submitted by United Lakes and Trail Riders 

Association to hold a raffle at the Holiday Inn, 1155 Highway 10 on April 7, 2018 
 

I. **Liquor Store Manager’s Report 
 

10. Public Utilities Commission (*Nansen, Sinclair, Sukke, Tucker, Perkins / Meets on 
February 13, 2018, at 7:30 AM) 
 

A. Consideration to a resolution accepting the offer of the Minnesota Public Facilities 
Authority to Purchase a General Obligation Sewer Revenue Note, Series 2018A, in 
the original aggregate principal amount of $16,336,065; providing for its issuance and 
authorizing the execution of a project loan agreement 
 



February 13, 2018 
Page 7 

 
B. **Consideration to approving the purchase of a 2018 Truck Chassis, Utility Body and 

Crane unit for the Wastewater Department for $105,281.00 from Nelson Auto Center 
in Fergus Falls, MN (Budgeted Items) 

 
11. City Administration Items 

 
A. **Approval of the following licenses through December 31, 2018: 
       
 Plumbing Licenses: 
 Best Plumbing & Heating 
 Kahle Plumbing & Heating 
 Lunseth Plumbing & Heating 
 Maloney’s Plumbing 
 Northern Plains Mechanical 
 Ripplinger Plumbing 
 Vesey Plumbing 
 Wokasch Plumbing 

 
Taxi License: 
Becker County Transit 

 
12. Mayor’s Agenda Items 

 
A. The Mayor would like to appoint Karen Skoyles to the Park Board.   
 
B. The Mayor would like to appoint Chad Carlblom to the Sports Arena Commission 
 
C. At the recommendation of the Becker County Fair Board, the Mayor would to appoint 

Shawn Eckert to the Sports Arena Commission 
 
D. The Mayor would like to appoint Susan Bjorkland to the Planning Commission  
 
E. The Mayor would like to appoint Eric Lundmark to the Planning Commission 

 
F. The Becker County Assessor has notified the City that the Board of Review for the 

2018 Assessments will be held in the Becker County Courthouse on April 25, 2018, 
starting at 9:30 AM.  The Mayor should appoint a Board of Equalization (Alderman 
Zeman is certified through July 1, 2018.  Alderman Josephson and Marks Erickson 
are certified through July 1, 2021.) 
 

G. The term of Jeff Stowman on the DL Community Foundation expires on March 31, 
2018.  Mr. Stowman has served one 3-year term and is eligible to be reappointed 

 
H. The term of Dave Langworthy on the Tourism Bureau expires on March 31, 2018.  

Mr. Langworthy has served one 3-year term and is eligible to be reappointed 
 



February 13, 2018 
Page 8 

I. The term of Doug Anselmin on the Tourism Bureau expires on March 31, 2018.  Mr. 
Anselmin has served one 3-year term and is eligible to be reappointed 

13. Items Not on the Agenda

A. City Administrator 
B. Citizens 
C. Council Members 

14. Information and Announcements

A. The Sports Arena Commission will meet on Tuesday, February 27, 2018 at 7:30 AM 
in the Conference Room of the City Administration Building 

B. The following positions will be up for election at the November 2018 election 
1) Alderman Ward 1 (Wenner)
2) Alderman Ward 2 (Schurman)
3) Alderman Ward 3 (Boeke)
4) Alderman At Large (Sukke)
5) Alderman At Large (Voss)

C. 2018 Council Meeting Dates 
March 13, 2018 
April 10, 2018 
May 8, 2018 
June 12, 2018 
July 10, 2018 
August 13, 2018 (*MONDAY - Note date change due to Primary Election) 
September 11, 2018 
October 9, 2018 
November 13, 2018 
December 11, 2018 

D. 2018 Joint Governance Meeting Dates 
April 3, 2018 – Chamber 
July 3, 2018 – DL Schools 
October 2, 2018 - County 

Sincerely, 

/s/ KELCEY KLEMM 
Kelcey Klemm 
City Administrator 

KK/slg 
Enclosures 



January 9, 2018 
Page 1

Detroit Lakes, Minnesota 
January 9, 2018 

The regular meeting of the City Council was called to order in the Council 
Chambers of the City Administration Building at 5:00 PM, January 9, 2018; all members 
of the City Council having been notified of the meeting and the business to be transacted. 

Present: Mayor Matt Brenk; City Administrator Kelcey Klemm; City Clerk 
Glori French; Finance Officer Pamela Slifka; City Attorney Charlie 
Ramstad; City Engineer Jon Pratt; Public Utilities General Manager 
Vernell Roberts; Fire Chief Scott Flynn; Police Chief Steven Todd; 
Public Works Director Bradley Green; and Liquor Store Manager 
Randy Buhr 

            Aldermen: Imholte, Josephson, Marks Erickson, Sukke, Voss, Wenner, and 
Zeman 

Absent: Boeke and Schurman 

There being no corrections to the minutes of the Regular City Council Meeting 
held December 12, 2017 and the Annual City Council Meeting on January 2, 2018, a 
motion was made by Alderman Imholte, seconded by Alderman Wenner and carried, 
without a dissenting vote. Mayor Brenk declared the minutes would stand approved.   

Pursuant to notice having been published in the official newspaper that the 
Council, at this present meeting, would conduct a public hearing to receive public 
comment on the proposed street & utility improvement project for Lake Forest 7th 
Addition.  Mayor Brenk called the hearing to order at 5:03 PM.  

City Engineer Pratt presented a presentation on the proposed street and utility 
improvement project for Lake Forest 7th Addition, noting the developer has indicated 
only 11 lots will be constructed with the first phase and an estimated project costs for the 
total project is $1,756,000, but the phase one estimated costs are $424,000.  The proposed 
financing will be funded by the City and Special Assessments.     

Developer Marty Solmom appeared before the Council and requested the Council to 
consider a request to defer the assessment on this project for five years or until it is 
developed with 25% down payment.   

City Attorney Charlie Ramstad informed the Council if the Council approves the project 
with 11 lots today and the developer does another phase of the project within one year no 
additional hearing is required.   

Exhibit 2 Return to Agenda



January 9, 2018 
  Page 2 

Alderman Imholte shared with the Council at the Public Works Committee Meeting that 
was held on January 8, the Public Works Committee felt the Assessment Policy should 
not be amended for this Project.  
 
Alderman Sukke appeared before the Council and commented at the Public Works 
Committee Meeting she did not feel it would be a good idea to amend the policy for this 
project but after consideration Alderman Sukke now feels that this developer has a great 
track record with the City and will now support an amendment to the Assessment Policy.  
 
Alderman Zeman noted he understands this is a tough decision and feels the current 
Assessment Policy as it stands is to protect the City and tax payers as well as developers 
and the policy should not be amended.  
 
Mayor Brenk closed the hearing at 5:15 PM and reconvened the Regular Council 
Meeting.   
 
Pursuant to the recommendation of the Public Works Committee, a resolution was 
introduced by Alderman Imholte who moved its adoption, ordering the proposed street & 
utility improvement project for Lake Forest 7th Addition, the motion also included a 
change in the Assessment Policy to allow this Project with the Developer paying 25% 
down payment and one-half cost of the temporary storm water ponds with the terms at 15 
years with a five year deferment or until developed.  The motion for the adoption of the 
resolution was seconded by Alderman Sukke and carried, with three dissenting votes 
(Wenner, Zeman and Voss) and four approving votes (Imholte, Sukke, Marks Erickson 
and Josephson).  Mayor Brenk declared Resolution 2018-0109A adopted. 
 
 Pursuant to notice having been published in the official newspaper that the 
Council, at this present meeting, would conduct a public hearing to receive public 
comments on the matter of the annexation of a 9.06 acre tract of land at 19085 County 
Road 131 and 18955 Highway 59 Frontage Road in Detroit Township and Zoning the 
Tract “I-1” Light Industrial (Foltz Trucking and part of County Highway 131) 19085 
County Road 131 and 18955 Highway 59 Frontage Road.  Mayor Brenk called the 
hearing to order at 5:25 PM.  
 
Community Development Director Larry Remmen appeared before the Council and 
noted the request for the Annexation came from the owners of Foltz Trucking and there 
will be no impact to the abutting land owners.  
 
Owner Ken Foltz with Foltz Trucking appeared before the Council stating since his 
business has grown over the years is why he is asking for City water and sewer services.   
 
Alderman Zeman expressed concern with having assessments being deferred or 
postponed and the City needs to be aware of how the decision to defer or postpone 
impacts property tax payers.  
 



January 9, 2018 
  Page 3 

Mayor Brenk closed the hearing at 5:30 PM and reconvened the Regular Council 
Meeting.   
 
Pursuant to the recommendation of the Public Works Committee, a motion was made by 
Alderman Zeman introducing for its first reading Ordinance 419 for the annexation of a 
9.06 acre tract of land at 19085 County Road 131 and 18955 Highway 59 Frontage Road 
in Detroit Township and Zoning the Tract “I-1” Light Industrial (Foltz Trucking and part 
of County Highway 131) 19085 County Road 131 and 18955 Highway 59 Frontage 
Road.  The motion was seconded by Alderman Imholte and carried without a dissenting 
vote. 
  
 Pursuant to notice having been mailed to Kristin Swenson, 1520 June Avenue the 
property owner of 521 Main Street East, Detroit Lakes, MN, a hearing would be held to 
receive public comment for the consideration to the issuance of an abatement of the 
alleged nuisance at 521 Main Street East.   Mayor Brenk called the Hearing to order at 
6:02 PM.  
 
Code Compliance Official Priscilla Gurath appeared before the Council and presented the 
findings of the nuisance inspection and recommended declaring the property at 521 Main 
Street East a nuisance for the following reason(s):  temporary car port on property as they 
are not permitted by our City Code. 
 
There being no further comments, Mayor Brenk closed the hearing at 6:03 PM and 
reconvened the Regular Council Meeting. 
 
A motion was made by Alderman Zeman, seconded by Alderman Imholte and carried 
without a dissenting vote declaring the property at 521 Main Street East a nuisance for 
the following reason(s):  temporary car port on property; ordering the nuisance to be 
abated by the City and assessing the costs of the abatement to the property as a service 
fee. 
 
 Alderman Zeman informed the Council discussion took place at the Community 
Development Committee Meeting on February 8 regarding the proposed orderly 
annexation between Lake View Township and the City of Detroit Lakes for a portion of 
Randolph Road and County Highway 54.   Alderman Zeman noted a resolution will be 
presented for consideration at the February Council Meeting.  
 
 Alderman Zeman informed the Council discussion took place at the Community 
Development  Committee Meeting on February 8 regarding the  “Record of Decision, 
Findings of Fact and Response to Comments” regarding the mandatory EAW prepared 
for the Long Shore Resource Project (Strata expansion).   
 
A motion was made by Alderman Zeman, seconded by Alderman Imholte and carried 
without a dissenting vote to have the City submit “conditions” to be included on the 
Conditional Use Permit that Strata will be applying for from Becker County.    
 



January 9, 2018 
  Page 4 

City Administrator Klemm will work with Community Development Director Larry 
Remmen and City Attorney Charlie Ramstad on the “conditions”.     
 

Pursuant to the recommendation of the Planning Commission and the Community 
Development Committee, a motion was made by Alderman Zeman approving the 
Application for Easement Encroachment Permit with The Fireside, 1462 East Shore 
Drive.  The motion was seconded by Alderman Imholte and carried without a dissenting 
vote. 
 
 Pursuant to the recommendation of the Planning Commission and the Community 
Development Committee that was submitted to the City Council, a resolution was 
introduced by Alderman Zeman who moved its adoption approving the Preliminary Plat 
of Lake Forest 7th Addition.  The motion for adoption of the resolution was seconded by 
Alderman Sukke and carried without a dissenting vote.  Mayor Brenk declared 
Resolution 2018-0109B adopted. 
 

Pursuant to the recommendation of the Planning Commission and the Community 
Development Committee, a motion was made by Alderman Zeman introducing for its 
first reading Ordinance 417 authorizing the Rezoning of 839 South Shore Drive from “R-
A” Residential Agriculture to “R-2” One and Two Family Residence District.  The 
motion was seconded by Alderman Imholte and carried without a dissenting vote. 
 
 Pursuant to the recommendation of the Planning Commission that was submitted 
to the City Council and recommendation of the Community Development Committee, a 
resolution was introduced by Alderman Zeman, who moved its adoption, adopting the 
findings of fact and approving a Conditional Use Permit to allow 15 twin homes (30 
units) and 30 storage units in two buildings at 839 South Shore Drive subject to the 
following conditions: 
 

1) That the project not exceed 15 Twin Homes or 30 units total; 
 

2) That the property be platted to show the proposed lot layout and provide for 
dedication of utility easements; 

 
3) That the Developer apply for a Land Disturbance Permit from the City and sign a 

Stormwater Facilities  Maintenance Agreement prior to issuance of a building 
permit;  

 
4) That the Developer obtain any permits required from the Pelican River Watershed 

District or the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency; 
 

5) That the owner provide a development schedule for the project; 
 

6) That the property owner association documents or deed restrictions provide that 
50% of the land area preserved as open space of 20% of the land area be 
preserved as useable open space as required by the Shoreland Ordinance; 



January 9, 2018 
  Page 5 

 
7) That 2 parking spaces be provided per unit and ½ space per unit be provided for 

guest parking; 
 

8) That a Property Owner’s Association documents requiring mandatory 
membership be approved by the City prior to issuance of a building permit; 

 
9)  That all buildings be setback at least 25 feet from the private drive; 

 
10) That the private drive be not less than a 22 foot wide paved surface and off-street 

parking is constructed as shown on the site plan; 
 

11) That the project be constructed generally as shown on the approved site plan 
accept as noted in condition #14; 

 
12) That connection to City sewer and water is required;  

 
13) That the impervious surface coverage in the Shoreland District not exceed 25%;  

 
14) All units must not exceed a height of 25 feet; 

 
15) No other accessory structures shall be added to the property that are in addition to 

the approved site plan.  
 

16) The average elevation of lots along South Shore Drive shall not be increased.   
 

17) The existing tree line adjacent to the storage buildings shall not be removed.  
 

18) The storage units must be owned and used by owners of the townhouses, in the 
development, for their own use.   
 

The motion for the adoption of the resolution was seconded by Alderman Imholte and 
carried, without a dissenting vote.  Mayor Brenk declared Resolution 2018-0109C 
adopted. 
 
 Pursuant to the recommendation of the Planning Commission and the Community 
Development Committee that was submitted to the City Council, a resolution was 
introduced by Alderman Zeman who moved its adoption approving the Preliminary Plat 
of 839 South Shore.  The motion for adoption of the resolution was seconded by 
Alderman Imholte and carried without a dissenting vote.  Mayor Brenk declared 
Resolution 2018-0109D adopted. 

 
 Pursuant to the recommendation of the Community Development Committee, a 
resolution was introduced by Alderman Zeman, who moved its adoption, adopting the 
findings of fact and approving a variance to allow a 37 ½ foot setback for the ordinary 
high water mark a 12 foot 6 inch setback for the road right of way and 31 percent 



January 9, 2018 
  Page 6 

impervious surface coverage for construction of a home at 412 South Shore Drive subject 
to the following conditions: 
 

1) That the project be constructed as shown on the approved site plan. 
 
2) That the property not exceed 31% impervious surface coverage.  

 
3) That the homeowner obtain the required Pelican River Watershed District permit 

prior to issuance of a building permit. 
 

4) That the owner maintain the existing ice ridge.  
 

Alderman Imholte expressed concern with the decision to now approve the variance 
request stating it goes against the Pelican River Watershed District.  Alderman Imholte is 
frustrated and very much against approving this, property owner could build on the 
current foot print and once the City starts approving two–story homes other property 
owners in the area will also request variances.   
 
Alderman Marks Erickson stated she does not disagree with Alderman Imholte concerns.  
Alderman Marks Erickson stated Becker County Soil and Water identified the proposed 
place is better environmentally and recognizes it is a tough choice to make.  
 
Alderman Josephson asked the question what is the difference between the variance 
request for 1941 Long Bridge Road that the Council is recommending denial of?    
 
Alderman Sukke shared the 1941 Long Bridge Road request would be allowing two 
residences on one property.  
 
Alderman Sukke shared the current home is not habitable and only inches from the water, 
the proposed plan seems to be reasonable and compatible with the neighborhood and is 
good for the environment.  
 
Alderman Zeman noted the request will decrease the impervious surface and feels 
moving it further from the water is a positive action.   
 
The motion for the adoption of the resolution adopting the Findings of Fact and Reasons 
for approval for the variance application at 412 South Shore Drive was seconded by 
Alderman Marks Erickson and carried, with two dissenting votes (Imholte and 
Josephson).  Mayor Brenk declared Resolution 2018-0109E adopted. 
 
 Pursuant to the recommendation of the Community Development Committee, a 
resolution was introduced by Alderman Zeman who moved its adoption, adopting the 
findings of fact and denying the variance to allow a 40 foot setback from the ordinary 
high water mark and a setback of 17 feet from the road right of way for construction of a 
home at 1941 Long Bridge Road.  The motion for adoption of the resolution was 



January 9, 2018 
  Page 7 

seconded by Alderman Marks Erickson and carried without a dissenting vote.  Mayor 
Brenk declared Resolution 2018-0109F adopted. 

 
 Pursuant to the recommendation of the Planning Commission and the Community 
Development Committee that was submitted to the City Council, a resolution was 
introduced by Alderman Zeman who moved its adoption adopting the findings of fact and 
denying the Conditional Use Permit to allow a guest house at 1941 Long Bridge Road.  
The motion for adoption of the resolution was seconded by Alderman Sukke and carried 
without a dissenting vote.  Mayor Brenk declared Resolution 2018-0109G adopted. 

  
Pursuant to the recommendation of the Community Development Committee, a 

motion was made by Alderman Zeman introducing for its first reading Ordinance No. 
418 amending City Code 1007 relative to Erosion and Sediment Control (Stormwater 
Regulations/MS4) and carried without a dissenting vote. 

 
Pursuant to the recommendation of the Community Development Committee, a 

motion was made by Alderman Zeman introducing for its first reading Ordinance No. 
420 establishing Administrative Penalties.  The motion was seconded by Alderman 
Imholte and carried without a dissenting vote. 

 
 Upon the recommendation of the Community Development Committee, a motion 
was made by Alderman Sukke, seconded by Alderman Zeman and carried, without a 
dissenting vote, that the building permits for the month of December, 2017 in the 
estimated construction value of $586,586.00 to be issued pursuant to their applications 
accompanied by the required City fees and State surcharges, the issuance of such permits 
having been recommended by the Building Official. 
 
 Upon the recommendation of the Public Works Committee a motion was made by 
Alderman Imholte to increase the speed limit to 40 MPH along the section of Longview 
Drive from Long Lake Road to the road formerly known as Airport Road.  The motion 
was seconded by Alderman Sukke and carried without a dissenting vote. 
  
 Upon the recommendation of the Public Works Committee a motion was made by 
Alderman Imholte authorizing the request for proposal for architectural/engineering 
services for the Public Works Facility.  The motion was seconded by Alderman Sukke 
and carried without a dissenting vote. 
 
 Pursuant to the recommendation of the Public Works Committee, a resolution was 
introduced by Alderman Imholte, who moved its adoption accepting a Preliminary 
Engineering Report and setting a public hearing for February 13, 2018 for the proposed 
sanitary sewer and watermain improvements for Broadlawn Estates – 1st Addition.  The 
motion for the adoption of the resolution was seconded by Alderman Sukke and carried, 
without a dissenting vote.  Mayor Brenk declared Resolution 2018-0109H adopted. 
 
 Pursuant to the recommendation of the Public Works Committee, a resolution was 
introduced by Alderman Imholte, who moved its adoption accepting a Preliminary 



January 9, 2018 
  Page 8 

Engineering Report and setting a public hearing for February 13, 2018 for the proposed 
sanitary sewer and watermain improvements for County Road 131 from the North TH 59 
Frontage Road to the intersection of Stony Road.  The motion for the adoption of the 
resolution was seconded by Alderman Sukke and carried, without a dissenting vote.  
Mayor Brenk declared Resolution 2018-0109I adopted. 
  
 Upon the recommendations of the Public Works Committee a motion was made 
by Alderman Sukke, seconded by Alderman Zeman and carried without a dissenting vote 
authorizing the Special Event Permit to hold the Polar Fest Plunge and close a portion of 
West Lake Drive from Lake Avenue to Minnesota Avenue on February 17, 2018.   Public 
Works Director Brad Green will work with the Polar Fest Committee to make sure the 
road closure will be for the shortest period of time possible during the event.    
 
 Upon the recommendation of the Public Works Committee, a motion was made 
by Alderman Sukke, seconded by Alderman Wenner and carried without a dissenting 
vote approving the final payment to Feldt Plumbing in the amount of $46,728.20 for The 
Landing on Little Detroit Sanitary Sewer & Watermain Improvements. 
 
 Upon the recommendation of the Public Works Committee, a motion was made 
by Alderman Sukke, seconded by Alderman Wenner and carried without a dissenting 
vote approving the final payment to Feldt Plumbing in the amount of $23,446.12 for 
Long Bridge Heights – Phase 3 Street & Utility Improvements. 
 
 Alderman Wenner informed the Council discussion took place at the Finance 
Committee Meeting that was held on January 9 regarding the requests from Detroit 
Country Club, Boys and Girls Club and the Becker County Museum.  
 
City Administrator Klemm reviewed a memo that was sent to all Council Members on 
January 4, 2018.   City Administrator Klemm asked the City Council for input and their 
recommendations on how to fund these requests. Klemm noted this item will then be 
added to a future Finance Committee Meeting and then brought to the full Council for 
consideration.   
 
 Upon the recommendation of the Finance Committee, a motion was made by 
Alderman Wenner, seconded by Alderman Sukke authorizing up to two City Attorneys to 
attend the Annual Minnesota City Attorneys Association Educational Conference 
February 8-9, 2018, in Bloomington, MN.  Registration cost is $627, plus lodging and 
mileage reimbursement.   After further discussion the motion carried with two dissenting 
votes (Voss and Zeman). 
 
 A motion was made by Alderman Sukke, seconded by Alderman Zeman and 
carried without a dissenting vote authorizing Stacy Gray to attend the 2018 Minnesota 
Municipal Clerks Institute April 30-May 4, 2018 in St. Cloud, MN (This is the second 
year of the three-year program). 
 



January 9, 2018 
  Page 9 

 A motion was made by Alderman Sukke, seconded by Alderman Zeman and 
carried without a dissenting vote that the trial balance and monthly financial reports, 
submitted by Finance Officer Pamela Slifka, showing a balance in the City treasury to be 
in the amount of $15,998,959.23 as of December 31, 2017, be accepted, approved and 
placed on file. 
 

     Upon the recommendation of the Finance Committee, a resolution was 
introduced by Alderman Sukke, who moved its adoption, approving the payment of 
claims paid by proper authorization covering the period of December 13, 2017 through 
January 9, 2018, in the amount of $2,994,638.91 the motion for the adoption of the 
resolution was seconded by Alderman Zeman and carried without a dissenting vote.  The 
Mayor declared Resolution 2018-0109J adopted. 

 
Upon the recommendations of the Public Safety Committee, a motion was made 

by Alderman Josephson approving the Mutual Aid Agreements with the following Fire 
Departments in Becker County:  Audubon, Callaway, Carsonville, Elbow-Tulaby, Frazee, 
Lake Park, Ogema, White Earth and Wolf Lake.  The motion was seconded by Alderman 
Wenner and carried without a dissenting vote. 

 
Upon the recommendations of the Public Safety Committee, a motion was made 

by Alderman Josephson approving the change order from Rosenbauer for the automatic 
tire chains for the new fire engine in the amount of $3610.  The motion was seconded by 
Alderman Wenner and carried without a dissenting vote. 

 
Upon the recommendations of the Public Safety Committee, a motion was made 

by Alderman Sukke, seconded by Alderman Zeman and carried without a dissenting vote 
to approve the application and waive the fee for a Fireworks display during the Polar Fest 
event on February 17, 2018. 
 
 Pursuant to the recommendation of the Public Safety Committee, a motion was 
made by Alderman Sukke, seconded by Alderman Zeman and carried, without a 
dissenting vote, approving the following Slate of Officers for the Detroit Lakes Volunteer 
Fire Department for 2018:  
 
 Chief: 
  Scott Flynn (2018 is the second year of his second three-year term) 
 
 Assistant Chief: 
  Ryan Swanson (2018 is the first year of his two-year term) 
 
 Deputy Chief: 
  Jason Harrier (2018 is the first year of his two-year term) 
 
 Captains: 
  Mason Pender (One year term) 
  Dave Shipman (One year term) 



January 9, 2018 
  Page 10 

  Jon Weidemann (One year term) 
  Justin Waagmeester (One year term) 
  Corey Metelack (One year term) 
 
 Training Officer: 
  Kyle Vogt (One year term) 
 
 Secretary: 
  Matt Ask (One year term) 
 
 Trustees: 
  Jason Talbert (2018 is the third year of his three-year term) 
  Austin Peterson (2018 is the second year of his three-year term) 
  Todd Goodwin (2018 is the first year of his three-year term) 
 

Pursuant to the recommendation of the Liquor/Gambling Control Committee, a 
resolution was introduced by Alderman Sukke, who moved its adoption approving the 
Application to Conduct Off-Site Gambling submitted by Detroit Lakes Youth Hockey 
Association to conduct a raffle at the Kent Freeman Arena, 1310 Rossman Avenue on 
February 13, 2018.  The motion for the adoption of the resolution was seconded by 
Alderman Zeman and carried without a dissenting vote.  Mayor Brenk declared 
Resolution 2018-0109 adopted. 

 
Pursuant to the recommendation of the Liquor/Gambling Control Committee, a 

resolution was introduced by Alderman Sukke, who moved its adoption approving the 
Application to Conduct Off-Site Gambling submitted by Humane Society of the Lakes to 
conduct a raffle at the Holiday Inn, 1155 Highway 10 East on February 16, 2018.  The 
motion for the adoption of the resolution was seconded by Alderman Zeman and carried 
without a dissenting vote.  Mayor Brenk declared Resolution 2018-0109K adopted. 
 

A motion was made by Alderman Sukke, seconded by Alderman Zeman and 
carried, without a dissenting vote, that the December Nuisance Monthly Report, the 
December Variance/Conditional Use Permit Status Report, the 2017 Community 
Development Director’s Annual Report the 2017 Annual Building Report the December 
City Engineer’s Report, the December Animal Control Report, the 2017 Annual Animal 
Control Report, the 2017 Public Works Director’s Annual Report, the December Police 
Chief’s Report, the 2017 Police Chief’s Annual Report, the December Fire Chief’s 
Report, the 2017 Fire Chief’s Annual Report the December Parking Violations Monthly 
Report $90, the November 2017 Becker County Court Report of $5715.18, and the 
December Liquor Store Manager’s Monthly Report be approved and placed on file.  

 
 A motion was made by Alderman Sukke, seconded by Alderman Zeman and 
carried, without a dissenting vote, approving the following licenses through December 
31, 2018:  
 

 Plumbing Licenses: 



January 9, 2018 
  Page 11 

 Esser Plumbing & Heating 
 Grant’s Mechanical 
 Hank’s Heating & Plumbing 
 Hoban’s Plumbing & Heating 
 Home Heating Plumbing & AC 
 Johnson’s Plumbing 
 Laney’s Mechanical 
 Metropolitan Mechanical Contractors 
 Northern Pines Plumbing & Heating  
 Reiland Plumbing 
 T & T Plumbing 
   

Solid Waste License: 
Hough, Inc. 
Wilke Enterprise dba DL Disposal 
 
Taxi License: 
DL Transportation Service 
 
Transient Merchant License: 
Schwan’s 

  
 Upon the recommendation of Mayor Brenk, a motion was made by Alderman 
Zeman, seconded by Alderman Marks Erickson and carried, without a dissenting vote, 
appointing Matt Boeke on the Sports Arena Commission.  This will be Mr. Boeke’s first 
3-year term. 
 
 Upon the recommendation of Mayor Brenk, a motion was made by Alderman 
Zeman, seconded by Alderman Marks Erickson and carried, without a dissenting vote, 
appointing Amy Erickson on the Sports Arena Commission.  This will be Ms. Erickson’s 
first 3-year term. 
 
 Upon the recommendation of Mayor Brenk, a motion was made by Alderman 
Zeman, seconded by Alderman Marks Erickson and carried, without a dissenting vote, 
appointing Shiloh Wahl to serve as the Detroit Lakes Youth Hockey Association’s 
representative on the Sports Arena Commission.  This will be Mr. Wahl’s first 3-year 
term. 
 
 Upon the recommendation of Mayor Brenk, a motion was made by Alderman 
Zeman, seconded by Alderman Marks Erickson and carried, without a dissenting vote, 
appointing Ryan Tangen to serve as the Detroit Lakes ISD #22’s representative on the 
Sports Arena Commission.  This will be Mr. Tangen’s first 3-year term. 
 
 Mayor Brenk announced the City’s Strategic Planning Session will be Monday, 
January 22, 2018 at 4:00 PM in the Council Chambers of the City Administration 
Building.  A Special Planning Commission will follow at 7:00 PM. 



January 9, 2018 
  Page 12 

 
 Mayor Brenk announced the Ice Harvest Events at the Detroit Lakes Public 
Beach/Pavilion (1361 Washington Avenue).  The Ice Harvest “First Block” Cutting 
Ceremony will be January 11, 2018 at 11AM on the Detroit Lakes Public Beach/Pavilion.  
The Ice Palace Grand Lighting Ceremony will be February 8, 2018 at 7:00 PM with a Pre 
Party sponsored by Kiwanis from 5:00 PM to 7:00 PM.  Tickets are $25 and can be 
purchased at the Chamber or from any Kiwanis member. 
 
 Mayor Brenk announced the Joint Governance meeting dates:   

 
 2018 Joint Governance Meeting Dates 
 April 3, 2018 – Chamber 
 July 3, 2018 – DL Schools 
 October 2, 2018 – County 
 

 Mayor Brenk announced the 2018 Council Meeting dates: 
 February 13, 2018 
 March 13, 2018 
 April 10, 2018 
 May 8, 2018 
 June 12, 2018 
 July 10, 2018 
 August 13, 2018 (*Monday - Note date change due to Primary Election) 
 September 11, 2018 
 October 9, 2018 
 November 13, 2018 
 December 11, 2018 

 
 Mayor Brenk gave the State of the City Address, noting 2017 was an exciting and 
productive year in Detroit Lakes (See Exhibit A). 
 
 There being no further business to conduct, by general consent, Mayor Brenk 
adjourned the meeting at 7:10 PM. 
 
 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
Glori French, City Clerk 



January 25, 2018 
Page 1

Detroit Lakes, Minnesota 
January 25, 2018 

The Special Meeting of the City Council was called to order in the Council 
Chambers of the City Administration Building at 3:00 P.M., January 25, 2018; all 
members of the City Council having been notified of the meeting and the business to be 
transacted. 

Present: Mayor Matt Brenk; City Administrator Kelcey Klemm; City Clerk 
Glori French; Finance Officer Pam Slifka; City Attorney Charlie 
Ramstad; City Engineer Jon Pratt; Police Chief Steven Todd; Liquor 
Store Manager Randy Buhr; Community Development Director Larry 
Remmen; Public Utility General Manager Vernell Roberts; Building 
Official Nathan Weber, Public Utility Supervisor Amy Olson and 
Public Works Director Bradley Green   

            Aldermen: Imholte, Marks Erickson, Voss, Schurman, Sukke, and Zeman 

Absent: Boeke, Josephson and Wenner 

Mayor Brenk opened the meeting noting the Special Council Meeting discussion 
would be limited to the topics on the agenda.  

Mayor Brenk announced Cleone Stewart with the Tourism Bureau was unable to 
attend the meeting.   

Martin Shukert, FAICP with RDG Planning and Design appeared before the 
Council and gave a presentation on the West Lake Drive Study.   City Council Members 
and Development Authority Members were asked to complete a ballot scoring the value 
and priority level of each Development Concept and Alternatives.    Mr. Shukert noted 
the ballots will be tallied with the results to be shared with the Development Authority 
Members in March and shared with the full Council in April 2018.   

City Administrator Kelcey Klemm appeared before the Council and reviewed the 
project list and timelines from the 2017 Strategic Planning Session.   

City Administrator Kelcey Klemm appeared before the Council and gave a recap 
from the Facility Assessment/Space Needs Analysis that was developed by the BKV 
Group, noting the analysis included the Police Department Building and the City 
Administration Building.   The summary presented several options that had been 
explored for both stand-alone and combined facilities as well as locations.  

Alderman Imholte expressed strongly he would like to see the Police Department facility 
combined with the Public Works facility that is being planned to be built on North Tower 
Road.          

Exhibit 2
Return to Agenda



January 25, 2018 
  Page 2 

 

 
 City Administrator Kelcey Klemm shared with the Council the process that would 
be required to get a Local Option Sales Tax question on the  November 2018 General 
Election, noting a local option sales tax provides a revenue stream from outside users 
who benefit from City services and facilities.  Mr. Klemm noted the wording on the 
ballot needs to be very clear so voters understand what they will be voting for.      
 
 Mayor Brenk asked Council members to think about what their individual 
thoughts were on what they would like to see a Local Option Sales Tax used for.    
 
Mayor Brenk clarified no formal action has been taken on the implementation of a Local 
Option Sales Tax, but action would need to be taken fairly soon, as timing is the biggest 
driver to get the request to the Legislators.   
 
Alderman Marks Erickson commented she would like to see a Public Meeting to allow 
residents to have input on the Projects they would want the Local Options Sales Tax 
dollars used for.   Alderman Zeman agreed a Public Meeting would be a good idea to 
create resident buy in from the beginning.   
   
  There being no further business to conduct, by general consent, Mayor Brenk 
adjourned the meeting at 5:20 PM. 
 
 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
Glori French, City Clerk 



JOINT RESOLUTION NO. 2018-  

FOR ORDERLY ANNEXATON BY AND BETWEEN  
LAKE VIEW TOWNSHIP AND THE CITY OF DETROIT LAKES 

(RANDOLPH ROAD – COUNTY HIGHWAY 54) 

WHEREAS, Lake View Township and the City of Detroit Lakes have been working 
toward settlement of annexation issues and have reached a settlement agreement believed to be 
in the mutual best interests of both parties; and  

WHEREAS, Lake View Township and the City of Detroit Lakes agree that orderly 
annexation and extension of municipal services is in the best interest of both communities in 
order to meet the current and future needs of commercial, residential and other properties located 
in the areas legally described in this Joint Resolution; and  

WHEREAS,  Lake View Township and the City of Detroit Lakes agree that orderly 
annexation and extension of municipal services will promote the public health, safety, and 
welfare of community; and  

WHEREAS, Lake View Township and the City of Detroit Lakes desire to accomplish 
the orderly annexation of, and the extension of municipal sanitary sewer and water services into 
the areas legally described in this Joint Resolution in a mutually acceptable manner. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City of Detroit Lakes (City), Becker 
County, Minnesota and Detroit Township (Township), Becker County, Minnesota as follows; 

1) Designation of Orderly Annexation Area The City and Township hereby designates the
following area as in need of orderly annexation pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, Section
414.0325, and in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Joint Resolution:

Randolph Road – County Highway 54 Annexation 

All of Gov’t Lot 2 and that portion of Gov’t Lot 3 lying east of the current Corporate Limits of 
Detroit Lakes and that portion of land and County Highway 54 Right of Way in Gov’t. Lot 4 and 
the west half of SW ¼ of the NE ¼, all in Section 1, T138N, R41W. Said Tract is 6.2 Acres. 

Parcel # 19.0004.000 

AN UNDIVIDED 73% INTEREST IN AND TO THE FOLLOWING PROPERTY: 
Government Lot Two (2), all that part of Government Lot Three (3) lying North and East of the 
right of way of the Northern Pacific Railway Company, excepting that part of Lot Three (3) 
lying South and between the road now laid out across said Lot Three (3) and the right of way of 
the Northern Pacific Railway Company, approximately 
one acre and all that part of the West Half of the Southwest Quarter of the Northeast Quarter 
(W½SW¼NE¼) lying North and East of the right of way of the Northern Pacific Railway 

Exhibit 4A1 Return to Agenda



Company, all in Section 1, TOWNSHIP 138 NORTH, RANGE 41 WEST of the 5th P.M., 
excepting a tract described as follows, to-wit: 
Commencing at the Southeast corner of the W½ SW¼ NE¼ of Section 1, Township 138 North, 
Range 41 West; thence running North along the East line of said above described tract to the 
public road known as the "Old Frazee highway"; thence running Northwesterly along the said 
public road to the west line of the said W½ SW¼ NE¼ aforesaid; 
 
thence running South to the right of way of the Northern Pacific Railway; thence in a 
southeasterly direction along the right of way of the Northern Pacific Railway to the south line of 
the said W½SW¼NE¼; thence east along the south line of the said tract to the point of 
beginning; the tract hereby conveyed being also described as follows:  That part of the W½ SW¼ 
NE¼ and the NW ¼ NE ¼ all in Section 1, Township 138 North, Range 41 West of the 5th P.M., 
Becker County, Minnesota, which lies south and southeasterly of the public road running 
northwesterly and southeasterly over and across the said land and which lies northerly and 
northeasterly of the right of way of the Northern Pacific Railway, and containing 13.04 acres. 
 
ALSO Excepting from Government Lot 2 and Government Lot 3, Sec. 1, Twp. 138N., Rge. 41 
described above the following described tract:  That part of Government Lot 2 and that part of 
Government Lot 3 of Section 1, Township 138 North, Range 41 West of the Fifth Principal 
Meridian in Becker County, Minnesota, described as follows: 
 
Commencing at a found iron monument which designates the north-east corner of said 
Government Lot 3; thence South 00 degrees 45 minutes 03 seconds West 1178.71 feet on an 
assumed bearing along the east line of said Government Lot 3 to a found iron monument on the 
centerline of County Road No. 116, said point is the point of beginning; thence North 79 degrees 
31 minutes 13 seconds West 145.04 feet along the centerline of said County Road No. 116 to a 
founrd iron monument; thence continuing along the centerline of said County Road No. 116 on a 
curve concave to the south, having a central angle of 22 degrees 50 minutes 33 seconds and a 
radius of 214.34 feet, for a distance of 85.45 feet (chord bearing South 89 degrees 03 minutes 30 
seconds West) to a found iron monument on the easterly right of way line of the Burlington 
Northern, Inc. Railway; thence North 25 degrees 51 minutes 27 seconds West 376.56 feet along 
the easterly right of way line of said Burlington Northern Inc. Railway; thence North 82 degrees 
45 minutes 41 seconds East 64.68 feet to an iron monument; thence North 82 degrees 45 minutes 
41 seconds East 281.53 feet to an iron monument; thence south 76 degrees 09 minutes 48 
seconds East 1 74.98 feet to an iron monument; thence South 12 degrees 38 minutes 00 seconds 
West 329.26 feet to an iron monument; thence continuing South 12 degrees 38 minutes 00 
seconds West 52.66 feet to the centerline of County Road No. 116; thence North 79 degrees 31 
minutes 13 seconds West 38.74 feet along the centerline of said County Road No. 116 to the 
point of beginning. The above described tract contains 3.38 acres. SUBJECT to the existing 
public road easement along the westerly 66.00 feet of the above described tract and subject to the 
existing County Road No. 116 right of way easement along the southerly 50.00 feet of the above 
described tract. 
 
LESS  
 
All of the following: 



 
That part of Government Lot 2 and the Southwest Quarter of the Northeast Quarter of Section 1, 
Township 138 North, Range 41 West, shown as Parcel 21 on Minnesota Department of 
Transportation Right of Way Plat Numbered 03-34 as the same is on file and of record in the 
office of the County Recorder in and for Becker County, Minnesota; 
 
containing 0.42 acre, more or less; 
 
together with other rights as set forth below, forming and being part of said Parcel 21:  
 
Temporary Easement: 
 
A temporary easement for highway purposes as shown on said plat as to said Parcel 21 by the 
temporary easement symbol, said easement shall cease on December 1, 2012, or on such earlier 
date upon which the Commissioner of Transportation determines by formal order that it is no 
longer needed for highway purposes. 
 
together with all hereditaments and appurtenances belonging thereto. Subject to mineral rights 
and utility easements of record, if any. 
 
 
Parcel # 19.0004.001 
 
That part of Government Lot 2 and that part of Government Lot 3 of Section 1,Township 138 
North, Range 41 West of the Fifth Principal Meridian in Becker County, Minnesota, described as 
follows: 
 
Commencing at a found iron monument which designates the northeast comer of said 
Government Lot 3; thence South 0 degrees 45 minutes 03 seconds West 1178.71 feet on an 
assumed bearing along the east line of Government to a found iron monument on the centerline 
of County Road No. 116, now known as County Road No. 54, said point is the point of 
beginning; thence North 79 degrees 31 minutes 13 seconds West 145.04 feet along the centerline 
of said County Road No. 116, now known as County Road No.54, to a found iron monument; 
thence continuing along the centerline of said County Road No. 116, now known as County 
Road No. 54, on a curve concave to the south, having a central angle of 22 degrees 50 minutes 
33 seconds and a radius of 214.34 feet, for a distance of 85.45 feet (chord bearing South 89 
degrees 03 minutes 30 seconds West) to a found iron monument on the easterly right of way line 
of the Burlington Northern, Inc. Railway; thence North 25 degrees 51 minutes 27 seconds West 
376.56 feet along the easterly right of way line of said Burlington Northern Inc. Railway; thence 
North 82 degrees 45 minutes 41 seconds East 64.68 feet to an iron monument; thence North 82 
degrees 45 minutes 41 seconds East 281.53 feet to an iron monument; thence South 76 degrees 
09 minutes 48 seconds East 174.98 feet to an iron monument; thence South 12 degrees 38 
minutes 00 seconds West 329.26 feet to an iron monument; thence continuing South 12 degrees 
38 minutes 00 seconds West 52.66 feet to the centerline of County Road No. 116,now known as 
County Road 54; thence North 79 degrees 31 minutes 13 seconds West 38.74 feet along the 
centerline of said County Road No. 116, now known as County Road 54, to the point of 



beginning. SUBJECT to the existing public road easement along the westerly 66.00 feet of the 
above described tract and subject to the existing County Road No. 116, now known as County 
Road 54, right of way easement along the southerly 50.00 feet of the above described tract. 
 
LESS Parcel 21A on Minnesota Department of Transportation Right of Way Plat Numbered 03-
34 as the same is on file and of record in the office of the County Recorder in and for Becker 
County, Minnesota. 
   
 For reference, a map of this area is attached as Exhibit A. 
 

2) Orderly Annexation.  This area is designated for orderly annexation and service 
extension. 
 
A. Acreage Of Area  The area contains approximately 59.74 acres 

 
B. Population of Area I.  The residential population of the area is 1 person. 

 
C. Timing of orderly annexation of Area.  The road right of ways shall be annexed to the 

City immediately following the execution of this Joint Resolution.  Parcel 
19.0004.000 and Parcel 19.0004.001 will be annexed after January 15, 2023. 

 
D. The area to be annexed immediately contain 6.2 acres of public right of way and is 

described as follows: All of Gov’t Lot 2 and that portion of Gov’t Lot 3 lying east of 
the current Corporate Limits of Detroit Lakes and that portion of land and County 
Highway 54 Right of Way in Gov’t Lot 4 and the west half of SW ¼ of the NE ¼, all 
in Section 1, T138N, R41W.  Said Tract is 6.2 Acres.  A map of this area is attached 
as exhibit B. 

 
E. No Hearing Required.  The City and Township agree that no alteration of the stated 

boundaries as described herein is appropriate, that no consideration by Minnesota 
Municipal Boundary Adjustments is necessary, and that all terms and conditions for 
annexation of the area are provided for in this Joint Resolution.  Pursuant to 
Minnesota  Statutes, Section 414.0325, upon receipt of this Joint Resolution, 
Minnesota Municipal Boundary Adjustments may review and comment, but shall 
within thirty (30) days of receipt, order the annexation of the area in accordance with 
the terms and conditions contained in this Joint Resolution. 

 
F. Provision of Services.  After annexation of the area occurs, pursuant to the terms of 

this Joint Resolution, the City shall be responsible for providing municipal 
governmental services thereto. 

 
G. Provision of Municipal Sewer and Water Services.  After annexation of the area 

pursuant to the terms of this Joint Resolution, the City shall exercise its best efforts to 
move forward with installing and providing municipal sewer and water services to the 
properties within the area as soon as such extension is practicable.   

 



H. Assessments for Costs of Extending Services.  It is a material condition of this 
Agreement that the property owners within the area be fairly assessed for the costs of 
providing sanitary sewer and water services into said area. 

 
I. Assessments for Costs of Road Improvements.  That portion of the costs of any road 

improvements within the area which would normally be assessed to property owners, 
shall only be assessed against those properties which abut and adjoin the improved 
roadway. 

 
J. Tax Levy.   The property taxes payable in the areas annexed to the City in accordance 

with this Joint Resolution shall be paid to the City starting in the year following that 
in which the annexation occurs, provided that said annexation becomes effective 
before August 1st of said year, and that the City shall levy on the annexed area for that 
levy year. 

 
K. Property Tax Reimbursement.  The City will reimburse the township for property 

taxes at 100% of the 2023 property taxes for 2024, 2025, 2026, and 2027.   The City 
reserves the right to make a lump sum payment of the entire reimbursement in 
January of 2024. 

 
L. Governing Law.  This Joint Resolution is made pursuant to, and shall be construed in 

accordance with the laws of the State of Minnesota.  
 

M. Modification/Amendment.  This Joint Resolution shall not be modified, amended, or 
altered  except upon the written joint resolution of the City and the Township duly 
executed and adopted by the City Council and the Township Board of Supervisors 
and filed with Minnesota Planning or its successors. 

 
N. Term.  This Joint Resolution shall be in full force and effect as provided herein.  This 

Joint Resolution shall be filed by the City with the Minnesota Municipal Boundary 
Adjustments Office after adoption by the parties.   

 
O. Severability.  In the event that any provision of this Joint Resolution is determined 

and adjudged to be unconstitutional, invalid, illegal or unenforceable by a court of 
competent jurisdiction, the remaining provisions of this Joint Resolution shall remain 
in full force and effect, and the parties hereto shall negotiate in good faith and agree 
to such amendments or modifications of or to this Joint Resolution or other 
appropriate actions as shall, to the maximum extent practicable in light of such 
determination, implement and give effect to the intentions of the parties hereto. 

 
P. Headings and Captions.  Headings and captions are for convenience only and are not 

intended to alter any of the provisions of this Joint Resolution. 
 

Q. Entire Agreement.  The terms, covenants, conditions and provisions of this Joint 
Resolution, including the present and all future exhibits and attachments, shall 
constitute the entire agreement between the parties hereto, superseding all prior 



agreements and negotiations.  This Joint Resolution shall be finding upon and inure to 
the benefit of the respective successors and assigns of the City and Township. 

 
R. Disputes and Remedies.  The City and Township agree as follows: 
 
A. Negotiation.  When a disagreement over interpretation of any provision of this Joint 

Resolution shall arise, the City and the Township will direct staff members as they 
deem appropriate to meet at least one (1) time at a mutually convenient time and 
place to attempt to resolve the dispute through negotiations.   

 
B. Arbitration.  When the parties to this Joint Resolution are unable to resolve disputes, 

claims or counterclaims, or are unable to negotiate an interpretation of any provision 
of this Joint Resolution, the parties may mutually agree in writing to seek relief by 
submitting their respective grievances to binding arbitration. 

 
C. Adjudication.  When the parties to this Joint Resolution are unable to resolve 

disputes, claims or counterclaims, are unable to negotiate an interpretation of any 
provision of this Joint Resolution or are unable to agree to submit their respective 
grievances to binding arbitration, either party may seek relief through initiation of an 
action in a court of competent jurisdiction.  In addition to the remedies provided for 
this Joint Resolution and any other available remedies at law or equity, in the case of 
a violation, default or breach of any provision of this Joint Resolution, the non-
violating, non-defaulting, or non-breaching party may bring an action for specific 
performance to compel the performance of this Joint Resolution in accordance with 
its terms.   

 
S. Notice.  Any notices required under the provisions of this Joint Resolution shall be in 

writing, and deemed sufficiently given if delivered in person or sent by certified or 
registered mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, to the following: 

 
If to the City:       If to the Township: 
City Administrator       Town Clerk – Esther Bromander 
City of Detroit Lakes      Lake View Township 
PO Box 647       11463 Ravenswood Beach Road 
Detroit Lakes, MN   56502     Detroit Lakes, MN   56502 
 
 
Passed and adopted this 13th day of February, 2018. 
 
Approved this 13th day of February, 2018. 
 
                                               
        Matt Brenk, Mayor 
 
         
Glori French, City Clerk 



 
 
Passed and adopted and approved by the Township Board of Supervisors of Lake View 
Township, Becker County, Minnesota this    day of    2018. 
 
       
        LAKE VIEW TOWNSHIP 
 
 
 
        By:                 
        
                       , Chair 
 
ATTEST: 
 
       
 
    , Town Clerk  
 







RESOLUTION NO. 2018- 

IN THE MATTER OF AUTHORIZING IMPROVEMENTS AND ORDERING 
THE PREPARATION OF PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS FOR  

FOR BROADLAWN ESTATES – 1ST ADDITION 
SANITARY SEWER AND WATERMAIN IMPROVEMENTS 

WHEREAS, a resolution of the City Council adopted the 9th day of January, 
2018, fixed a date for a Council hearing on the proposed improvements on the Broadlawn 
Estates – 1st Addition Sanitary Sewer and Watermain Improvements; and 

WHEREAS, ten days’ mailed notice and two weeks’ published notice of the 
hearing was given, and the hearing was held thereon on the 13th day of February, 2018, at 
which all persons desiring to be heard were given an opportunity to be heard thereon. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE Council of the City of 
Detroit Lakes, Minnesota, that:  

1. Such improvement is necessary, cost effective and feasible as detailed in the
feasibility report.

2. Such improvement is hereby ordered as proposed in the Council resolution
adopted January 9, 2018.

3. Apex Engineering Group is here designated as the engineer for this
improvement.  The engineer shall prepare plans and specifications for the
making of such improvement.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED That the City Council declares its official intent 
to reimburse itself for the costs of the improvement from the proceeds of tax exempt 
bonds.  

Passed and adopted this 13th day of February, 2018. 

Approved this 13th day of February, 2018. 

____________________ 
Matt Brenk, Mayor 

___________________________ 
Glori French, City Clerk 

Exhibit 4B1 Return to Agenda



RESOLUTION NO. 2018- 

IN THE MATTER OF AUTHORIZING IMPROVEMENTS AND ORDERING 
THE PREPARATION OF PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS FOR  

FOR COUNTY ROAD 131 
SANITARY SEWER AND WATERMAIN IMPROVEMENTS 

WHEREAS, a resolution of the City Council adopted the 9th day of January, 
2018, fixed a date for a Council hearing on the proposed improvements on the County 
Road 131 Sanitary Sewer and Watermain Improvements; and 

WHEREAS, ten days’ mailed notice and two weeks’ published notice of the 
hearing was given, and the hearing was held thereon on the 13th day of February, 2018, at 
which all persons desiring to be heard were given an opportunity to be heard thereon. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE Council of the City of 
Detroit Lakes, Minnesota, that:  

1. Such improvement is necessary, cost effective and feasible as detailed in the
feasibility report.

2. Such improvement is hereby ordered as proposed in the Council resolution
adopted January 9, 2018.

3. Apex Engineering Group is here designated as the engineer for this
improvement.  The engineer shall prepare plans and specifications for the
making of such improvement.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED That the City Council declares its official intent 
to reimburse itself for the costs of the improvement from the proceeds of tax exempt 
bonds.  

Passed and adopted this 13th day of February, 2018. 

Approved this 13th day of February, 2018. 

____________________ 
Matt Brenk, Mayor 

___________________________ 
Glori French, City Clerk 

Exhibit 4C1 Return to Agenda



January 29, 2018 

Dustin and Robyn Wang 
708 Richwood Rd 
Detroit Lakes, MN 56501 

RE: City Code and Zoning Ordinance Violations at 708 Richwood Rd 

Dear Dustin and Robyn Wang, 

The Detroit Lakes Zoning Ordinance and City Codes have been adopted to protect the public health, 
safety, and general welfare of the Community and its people through establishing regulations in regard 
to location, erection, construction, reconstruction, alteration, and use of structures and land.  

Your property at 708 Richwood Rd is currently in violation of the following Zoning Ordinances: 

• Please remove the trailer of junk from city limits to bring your properties into compliance with
Section 3 Subdivision 2M of the Zoning Ordinance which states; “Refuse: Passenger automobiles,
station wagons, and trucks not currently licensed by the state, or which are because of
mechanical deficiency incapable of movement under their own power, parked or stored outside
for a period in excess of thirty (30) days, and all materials stored outside in violation of the City
ordinance are considered refuse or junk and shall be disposed of. The piling of junk in yards in all
residential districts shall be considered a nonconforming use and shall be removed…”

• Detroit Lakes City Code Section 500 for General Regulations Section 501.07 Container
Requirements: “All solid waste must be presented for collection in properly closed refuse bags or
refuse bags placed inside covered reusable containers. Containers shall be water tight and
impervious to insects and rodents. Any apartment building, business, or commercial/industrial
establishment may provide a bulk or box type container provided that such containers are
maintained in a safe and sanitary condition.” Plastic trash bags are not approved containers.
This is a violation of the City Code and puts your property in noncompliance.

Zoning Ordinance violations are misdemeanors and may be enforced through criminal prosecution.  
You may be prosecuted for each day that the violations persist. Misdemeanors are currently 
punishable by up to 90 days in jail and a $1,000.00 fine. 

Your property at 708 Richwood Rd is currently in violation of the following City Code: 

• Section 501.10: Garbage is to be removed every seven days. All citizens within the City of Detroit
Lakes are to hire a garbage hauler and it must be removed every seven days. Piling of garbage in
a trailer within city limits is not permitted.

• Section 900 covers Nuisance regulations of the City Code. Subdivision 901.04 Subdivision 18
prohibits the “storing of any household furnishings or appliances on public or private property
other than in a licensed junk yard, unless housed within a lawfully erected building.” Storing

Exhibit 4D Return to Agenda



appliances stored in the trailer in your driveway is not allowed. Please properly dispose of 
unused appliances. 

Please have the above listed violations eliminated before February 9, 2018. Our office will inspect your 
property at that time to make sure your property is in compliance with the City Code and Zoning 
Ordinance. If it is not, the violations will be referred to the City Council for the public hearing on 
February 13, 2018 at 5:00PM at the City Administration Building located at 1025 Roosevelt Avenue.  

The purpose of this hearing is for the Council to consider whether to declare your property a nuisance 
and if so, to order the nuisance abated and the cost of the abatement assessed to the property as a 
service fee. If the Council declares the violations on your property a nuisance, orders abatement and the 
cost of the abatement assessed to the property as a service fee, all costs involved to bring your property 
into compliance will be assessed against your residence, to be collected along with your real estate 
taxes.  

The City Code and Zoning Ordinance are in place for the betterment of our community. We appreciate 
you taking immediate action to remedy the above violations. If you would like to know more, the City 
Code and Zoning Ordinance can be found under the Administration link on our website at: 
www.cityofdetroitlakes.com. Please feel free to contact the office at 218-846-7122 if you have any 
questions. 
 
Thank you, 
 
 
 
 
Priscilla Gurath 
Code Compliance Official 
 
 
 
 
 



RESOLUTION NO. 2018 

IN THE MATTER OF ADOPTING FINDINGS OF FACT AND REASONS FOR THE 
VARIANCE APPLICATION OF SANFORD HEALTH  

1245 WASHINGTON AVENUE 

FACTS 

1) Sanford Health is the owner of a parcel of land located at 1245 Washington Avenue,
Detroit Lakes, Minnesota;

2) The subject property is legally described as found in Exhibit A;

3) The owner has applied to the City for a Variance to allow 242 parking spaces at 1245
Washington Avenue;

4) The proposal would vary from zoning ordinance requirement by allowing 242 parking
spaces instead of the required 270 parking spaces;

5) Following a public hearing on the application, the Detroit Lakes Planning Commission
has recommended approval of the Variance on January 25, 2018;

6) The City Council of the City of Detroit Lakes review the requested Variance at its
meeting on February 13, 2018.

APPLICABLE LAW 

7) Minnesota Statute Section 462.357, Subd. 6 provides;

a. Variance shall only be permitted (a) when they are in harmony with the
general purposes and intent of the ordinance and (b) when the Variances
are consistent with the comprehensive plan;

b. Variances may be granted when the applicant for the Variance establishes
that there are practical difficulties in complying with the zoning ordinance.
“Practical difficulties,” as used in connection with the granting of a
Variance, means that (a) the property owner proposes to use the property
in a reasonable manner not permitted by the zoning ordinance; (b) the
plight of the landowner is due to circumstances unique to the property not
created by the landowner; and (c) the Variance, if granted, will not alter
the essential character of the locality;

8) The City Zoning Ordinance allows Variances;

9) The City Ordinance requires 270 parking spaces for the size of clinic proposed by
Sanford Health at 245 Washington Avenue.

Exhibit 5A Return to Agenda



 
CONCLUSIONS OF LAW 
 

10) The requested Variance is in harmony with the purpose and intent of the ordinance since 
it will allow construction of commercial use in a commercial district; 

 
11) The requested Variance is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan as it is a commercial 

use in a commercial district; 
 

12) The proposal will use the property in a reasonable manner as it will allow construction of 
a clinic with 242 parking spaces instead of the required 270 spaces;  
 

13) The circumstances are unique to the property is limited due to size, topography, and 
stormwater ponds; 
 

14) The Variance will maintain the essential character of the locality as it will allow 
construction of a commercial use with adequate parking to serve its needs.   
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE City Council of the City of Detroit Lakes, 
Minnesota, hereby approves a Variance to allow construction of a clinic with 242 parking spaces 
instead of the required 270 spaces at 1245 Washington Avenue. 
 
Passed and adopted by the City Council of Detroit Lakes on the 13th day of February 2018. 
 
Approved this 13th day of February 2018. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
              
        Matt Brenk, Mayor 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
        
Glori French, City Clerk 
 
 
 
 



 
Exhibit A  

 
That part of the Northwest Quarter of the Southeast Quarter of Section 34, Township 139 North, 
Range 41 West of the Fifth Principal Meridian situated in Auditor’s Lot 91, of 
AUDITOR’SPLAT OF SECTION 27 AND 34, said plat is on file and of Record at the Becker 
County Recorder’s Office, described as follows; 
 
Beginning at the Southwest Corner of Block Four, PARK VIEW SECOND ADDITION, said 
plat is on file and of record at the Becker County Recorder’s Office; thence northerly along the 
west line of said Block 4, PARK VIEW SECOND ADDITION, which is also the East line of 
said Northwest Quarter of said Southeast Quarter, and the extension of such line 531.4 feet, more 
or less, to a point 200.00 feet south of the south right of way line of Willow Street; thence 
westerly, parallel to the said south right of way line of Willow Street , of said AUDITOR’S 
PLAT 272.0 feet, more or less, to the Southeast Corner of Lot Four, Block Four, of HOLMES 
SECOND ADDITION TO DETROIT (now Detroit Lakes), said plat is on file and of record at 
the Becker County Recorder’s Office; thence southerly along the east line of said Block Four, 
HOLMES SECOND ADDITION TO DETROIT (now Detroit Lakes), 250.0 feet, more or less, 
to the Southeast Corner of Lot 9, said Block Four, HOLMES SECOND ADDITION TO 
DETROIT (now Detroit Lakes); thence easterly on an extension of the south line of said Lot 9 
100.00 feet; thence southerly, parallel to the east line of said Block four, HOLMES SECOND 
ADDITION TO DETROIT (now Detroit Lakes), 292.6 feet, more or less, to the north right of 
way line of Forest Street (now Langford Street); thence easterly, along said north right of way 
line of Forest Street (now Langford Street) 176.3 feet, more or less, to the point of beginning. 
Less the easterly 33.00 feet of the above described description.  (PID # 49.7028.055) 
 
 



ORDINANCE NO. 421 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF DETROIT 
LAKES REZONING AN AREA FROM “R-2” ONE AND TWO FAMILY RESIDENCE 

DISTRICT  TO “B-3” AUTO-ORIENTED BUSINESS DISTRICT  
AT 1113 LINCOLN AVENUE 

WHEREAS, The Detroit Lakes Planning Commission recommends approval of the rezoning 
request of an area from “R- 2” One and Two Family Residence District to “B-3” Auto-Oriented 
Business District at 1113 Lincoln Avenue;  

WHEREAS, the proposed rezoning is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan of the City; 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED By the City Council of the City of Detroit Lakes that 
Section 20 of the Zoning Ordinance and the Zoning District map as it identifies the Zoning 
District applied to the following description: 

The North 47 feet of Lots Numbered Twelve (12), Thirteen (13) and Fourteen (14), Block Eight 
(8), HOLMES FOURTH ADDITION to Detroit (now Detroit Lakes) according to the certified 
Plat thereof on file and of record in the office of the County Recorder in and for Becker County, 
Minnesota. 

Is amended from “R-2” One and Two Family District to “B-3” auto-Oriented Business District at 
1113 Lincoln Avenue.  A map identifying the area rezoning can be obtained at he City 
Administration Building, 1025 Roosevelt Avenue, Detroit Lakes. 

The provision of Ordinance No. 500.51 together with all amendments and supplements thereto 
and all other ordinances promulgated by the City Council of the City of Detroit Lakes, 
Minnesota, which are in consistent with the provisions of this Ordinance are to extent of such 
inconsistencies and no further hereby repealed.   

This ordinance shall take effect upon passage and publication of the ordinance or summary in 
accordance with law and the City of Detroit Lakes Charter.   

Passed and adopted this 13th day of March 2018.   

Approved this 13th day of March 2018.   

__________________________________ 
Matt Brenk, Mayor 

______________________________ 
Glori French, City Clerk 

First Reading: February 13, 2018 
Seconded Reading:    March 13, 2018 

Exhibit 5B Return to Agenda



RESOLUTION NO. 2018 

IN THE MATTER OF ADOPTING FINDS OF FACT AND REASONS FOR AN 
AMENDED CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT RELATIVE TO ALLOWING A 2000 

SQUARE FOOT ADDITION WITH A 2 FOOT SETBACK FROM THE PROPERTY 
LINE ADJACENT TO LINCOLN AVENUE AND CONSTRUCTION OF 7 SPACE 

PARKING LOT AT 1113 LINCOLN AVENUE AS PART OF  
ESSENTIA HEALTH/ST. MARY’S 

FACTS 

1) Essentia Health/St. Mary’s is owner of a parcel of land located at 1027 Washington
Avenue, Detroit Lakes, Minnesota;

2) The subject property is legally described as found in Exhibit A;

3) The subject property is or will be zoned “B-3”;

4) The medical facilities campus is allowed as Conditional Use;

5) The owner has applied to the City for an amended Conditional Use Permit relative to a
2000 square foot addition with a 2 foot setback from the property line adjacent to Lincoln
Avenue and construction of a 7 space parking lot at 1113 Lincoln Avenue as part of the
medical facilities campus at 1027 Washington Avenue;

6) Following a public hearing on the application, the Detroit Lakes Planning Commission
made a recommendation regarding the Conditional Use on January 25, 2018;

7) The City Council of the City of Detroit Lakes review the request Conditional Use at its
meeting on February 13, 2018.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Detroit Lakes 
that the City Council makes the following findings: 

1) A Conditional Use Permit to allow a medical facilities campus is allowed by the City’s
Zoning Ordinance;

2) The proposed project is in harmony with the use of the property as a medical facilities
campus;

3) The proposed project does not after the essential character of the neighborhood as it will
only slightly enlarge the clinic structure and create additional parking in the area;

4) After holding the required hearing the Planning Commission recommended approval of
the Conditional Use Permit to allow a 2000 square foot addition with a 2 foot setback
from the property line adjacent to Lincoln Avenue and construction of a 7 space parking

Exhibit 5C Return to Agenda



lot at 1113 Lincoln Avenue as part of a medical facilities campus at 1027 Washington 
Avenue; 
 

5) The proposed addition would be setback 2 feet from the property line and would be 
approximately 2000 square feet; 
 

6) The proposed parking lot would comprise 7 parking spaces and remove a substandard 
residential building at 1113 Lincoln Avenue; 
 

7) The parking lot would provide the parking spaces required for the proposed addition. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Detroit Lakes 
based upon the foregoing findings, does hereby approve an amended Conditional Use to allow 
construction of a 2000 square foot addition with a 2 foot setback from the property line adjacent 
to Lincoln Avenue and construction of a 7 space parking lot at 1113 Lincoln Avenue as part of 
the Essentia Health/St. Mary’s medical facilities campus, subject to the following conditions: 
 

1) That all the conditions from the Conditional Use Permit dated December 8, 2009, 
(Document # 582547) shall remain in full force and effect; 

 
2) That St. Mary’s install and maintain the landscape and screening for the parking lot as 

required by Section 3 Subd. 2 G of the Zoning Ordinance; 
 

3) That St. Mary’s install and maintain a 6 foot high privacy fence along its southerly lot 
line from the easterly lot line to within 30 feet of the westerly lot line.  Landscaping is 
also required in this area.   
 

4) That the 2 foot setback is allowed only for the 2000 square foot addition as shown on the 
approved site plan. 
 

Passed and adopted by the City Council of Detroit Lakes on the 13th day of February 2018. 
 
Approved this 13th day of February 2018. 
 

___________________________________ 
 Matt Brenk, Mayor 

 
 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Glori French, City Clerk 
 
  
 
 



Exhibit A 
 

1113 Lincoln Avenue: 
 
The North 47 feet of Lots Numbered Twelve (12), Thirteen (13) and Fourteen (14), Block Eight 
(8), HOLMES FOURTH ADDITION to Detroit (now Detroit Lakes) according to the certified 
Plat thereof on file and of record in the office of the County Recorder in and for Becker County, 
Minnesota.  (PID # 49.1428.000) 
 
1027 Washington Avenue (Treatment Rooms and Gym Expansion): 
 
The Northerly 12 ½ feet of Lot 4 and the South Half of Lot 5, Block 1 of Holmes' Second 
Addition to the Townsite of Detroit (now Detroit Lakes), Minnesota according to the certified 
Plat thereof on file and of record in the office of the County Recorder in and for Becker County, 
Minnesota . 
 
Block No. 1, 
LOT NUMBERED SIX (6) AND THE NORTH HALF (N½) OF LOT NUMBERED FIVE (5)/, 
.ALL IN ….. HOLMES' SECOND ADDITION TO DETROIT (NOW DETROIT LAKES), 
MINNESOTA, according to the Certified Plat thereof on file and of record in the office of the 
Recorder in and for Becker County, Minnesota. 
 
 
LOT Numbered Seven (7),  . . . . . .Block Numbered One (1), …HOLMES' SECOND 
ADDITION TO DETROIT (NOW DETROIT LAKES), MINNESOTA,…. according to the 
Certified Plat thereof on file and of record in the office of the Recorder in and for Becker 
County, Minnesota. 
 
Lot sixteen (16) …..LESS Northerly 48 feet thereof AND… LOT SEVENTEEN (17) ….. IN 
BLOCK ONE (1) OF HOLMES SECOND ADDTION TO DETROIT (now Detroit Lakes), 
MINNESOTA according to the certified Plat thereof on file and of record in the office of the 
County Recorder in and for Becker County, Minnesota.   
 
Lot 8, Lot 9, Lot 10 and the northerly 45.00 feet of Lot 11 (as Measured at right angles to and 
being parallel with the north line of said Lot 11) all being in Block One of HOLMES SECOND 
ADDTION TO DETROIT, MINNESOTA, plat of which is on file and of record in the office of 
the Recorder of Becker County, Minnesota, 

AND 
That part of Block Seven (7) of FRAZEE AND HOLMES ADDITION TO DETROIT, 
MINNESOTA, plat of which is on file and of record in the office of the Recorder of said County 
described as follows: 
Commencing at a found iron monument which designates the northeast corner of said Block 
Seven; thence South 00 degrees 01 minutes 03 seconds West 160.00 feet on an assumed bearing 
along the easterly line of said Block Seven to the point of beginning; thence South 89 degrees 12 
minutes 23 seconds West 247.66 feet; thence South 00 degrees 11 minutes 08 seconds West 
76.00 feet; thence South 89 degrees 12 minutes 23 seconds West 80.00 feet; thence North 00 



degrees 11 minutes 08 seconds East 92.00 feet; thence South 89 degrees 12 minutes 23 seconds 
West 150.00 feet to the westerly line of said Block Seven; thence South 00 degrees 11 minutes 8 
seconds West 159.84 feet along the westerly line of said Block Seven to the southwest corner of 
said Block Seven; thence North 89 degrees 05 minutes 34 seconds East 478.10 feet along the 
Southerly line of said Block Seven to the southeast corner of said Block 7; thence North 00 
degrees 01 minute 03 seconds East 142.87 feet along the easterly line of said Block 7 to the point 
of beginning. 
Lot Eleven (11) less the Northerly 45 feet and Lot Twelve, …. Block One (1),…. HOLMES 
SECOND ADDITION TO DETROIT, (NOW DETROIT LAKES), MINNESOTA….according 
to the certified Plat thereof on file and of record in the office of the County Recorder in and for 
Becker County, Minnesota. 
 
Lot Numbered Thirteen (13) of …… BLOCK NO.1,…HOLMES' SECOND ADDITION TO 
DETROIT (NOW DETROIT LAKES), MINNESOTA….according to the certified Plat thereof 
on file and of record in the office of the Register of Deeds in and for Becker County, Minnesota. 
 
The North Forty-eight (48) feet of Lot Numbered Sixteen (16), of BLOCK NO.1,…. HOLMES' 
SECOND ADDITION TO DETROIT (NOW DETROIT LAKES), MINNESOTA….according 
to the certified Plat thereof on file and of record in the office of the Register of Deeds in and for 
Becker County, Minnesota. 
 
 
LOT NUMBERED FIFTEEN (15), in BLOCK NUMBERED ONE (1), of HOLMES' SECOND 
ADDITION to Detroit (Now Known as Detroit Lakes), Minnesota, according to the certified Plat 
thereof on file and of record in the Office of the Register of Deeds in and for Becker County, 
Minnesota. 
 
Lot Numbered Fourteen (14), ….BLOCK NO. 1, HOLMES SECOND ADDITION TO 
DETROIT (NOW DETROIT LAKES), MINNESOTA, according to the certified Plat thereof on 
file and of record in the office of the Register of Deeds in and for Becker County, Minnesota. 
 
 
PID #’s:  49.1354.000; 49.7055.051; 49.1371.000; 49.7059.000; 49.1018.000; 49.1019.000; 
49.1023.000; 49.1024.000; 49.1020.000; 49.1190.000; 49.1193.000; 49.1211.000; 49.7059.010; 
49.1199.000; 49.7064.900; 49.1384.000; 49.1380.000; 49.1353.000; 49.1351.000; 49.1359.000; 
49.1358.000; 49.1355.000; 49.1354.001; 49.1357.000; 49.1356.000 
 
 
 



RESOLUTION NO. 2018 

IN THE MATTER OF SETTING A PUBLIC HEARING FOR THE PROPOSED 
VACATION OF 

RIGHT-OF-WAY OF CURFMAN BEACH 
(132 SHOREWOOD DRIVE) 

WHEREAS, The City of Detroit Lakes is considering the vacation of the public road right of 
way of Curfman Beach (132 Shorewood Drive) in the City of Detroit Lakes; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED By the City Council of the City of Detroit Lakes 
that a public hearing on the proposed vacation of a certain public road right of way of Curfman 
Beach (132 Shorewood Drive) in the city of Detroit Lakes described as follows: 

The public road right of way is described as follows:  
That part of the Public Road dedicated in CURFMAN BEACH, said plat is on file and of record 
in the office of the Recorder in Becker County, Minnesota, described as follows: 

Commencing at an iron monument which designates the southwesterly corner of Lot 5 of said 
CURFMAN BEACH; thence North 71 degrees 48 minutes 55 seconds East 112.52 feet on an 
assumed bearing along the southerly line of said Lot 5 and the southerly line of Lot 6 of said 
CURFMAN BEACH to an iron monument at the southeasterly corner of said Lot 6; thence 
North 15 degrees 09 minutes 04 seconds West 24.88 feet along the easterly line of said Lot 6 to 
an iron monument on the southerly line of said Public Road, said point is the point of beginning 
of the road vacation to be described; thence continuing North 15 degrees 09 minutes 04 seconds 
West 24.88 feet to an iron monument on the northerly line of said Public Road and on the 
easterly line of said Lot 6; thence South 71 degrees 29 minutes 38 seconds West 109.37 feet 
along the northerly line of said Public Road to the westerly line of said Lot 5; then South 
11degrees 28 minutes 04 seconds East 24.70 feet to an iron monument on the southerly line of 
said Public Road and on the westerly line of said Lot 5; thence North 71 degrees 39 minutes 29 
seconds East 110.95 feet along the southerly line of said Public Road to the point of beginning. 
The above describe road vacation contains 2,719 square feet.   

SUBJECT TO easements, restrictions, and reservation of record, if any. 

Hearing shall be held on the 13th day of March 2018, in the Council Chambers of the City 
Administration Building at 5:00pm and the City Administrator shall give mailed and published 
notice of such hearing and vacation as required by law.  

Passed and adopted this 13th day of February 2018. 

Approved this 13th day of February 2018. 

Matt Brenk, Mayor 

Glori French, City Clerk 

Exhibit 5D Return to Agenda



ORDINANCE NO. 417 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF DETROIT 
LAKES REZONING AN AREA FROM “R-A” RESIDENTIAL AGRICULTURE 

DISTRICT TO “R-2” ONE AND TWO FAMILY RESIDENCE DISTRICT  
AT 839 SOUTH SHORE DRIVE 

WHEREAS, The Detroit Lakes Planning Commission recommends approval of the rezoning 
request of an area from “R-A” Residential Agriculture District to “R-2” One and Two Family 
Residence District at 839 South Shore Drive; 

WHEREAS, the proposed rezoning is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan of the City;  

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED By the City Council of the City of Detroit Lakes that 
Section 20 of the Zoning Ordinance and the Zoning District map as it identifies the Zoning 
District applied to the following description: 

All of the portion of Government Lot No. Two (2) which lies Southerly of the southerly right of 
way line of C.S.A.H. 24 as it presently exists on August 29, 2011 in Section Fourteen (14), 
Township One Hundred Thirty-eight (138) North, Range Forty-one (41) West of the Fifth 
Principal Meridian in Becker County, Minnesota, 

LESS THE FOLLOWING TRACT: 

Commencing at a point where the southwesterly right of way line of County Highway No. 24 
Intersects the West line of said Government Lot 2; thence southerly along the West line of 
Government Lot 2 a distance of 200 .0 feet; thence southeasterly and parallel to said 
southwesterly right of way line of said highway a distance of 150.0 feet; thence northeasterly to a 
point on said southwesterly right of way line which is 200.0 feet from the point of beginning as 
measured along said right of way line; thence northwesterly and along said southwesterly right of 
way line of said Highway, 200.0 feet to the point of beginning. 

AND ALSO LESS THE FOLLOWING TRACT: 

That part of Government Lot 2 in Section 14, Township 138 North, Range 41 West of the Fifth 
Principal Meridian in Becker County, Minnesota, described as follows: 
Commencing at a found iron monument which designates the northwesterly corner of Lot 1, 
Block Three, of LAKE FOREST FOURTH ADDITION, said plat is on file and of record in the 
office of the Recorder in said County; thence South 80 degrees 12 minutes 31 seconds East 
150.75 feet on an assumed bearing along the northerly line of said Lot 1 to a found iron 
monument at the northeasterly corner of said Lot 1; thence continuing South 80 degrees 12 
minutes 31 seconds East 30.51 feet along the northerly line of a WALKWAY as dedicated in 
said LAKE FOREST FOURTH ADDITION to a found iron monument at the northeasterly 
corner of said LAKE FOREST FOURTH ADDITION, said point also being on the west line of 
said Government Lot 2; 

Exhibit 5E Return to Agenda



thence North 00 degrees 42 minutes 00 seconds West 277.95 feet along the west line of said 
Government Lot 2 to a found iron monument; thence continuing North 00 degrees 42 minutes 00 
seconds West 186.23 feet along the west line of said Government Lot 2 to the point of beginning; 
thence continuing North 00 degrees 42 minutes 00 seconds West 46.68 feet along the west line 
of said Government Lot 2 to a point which is 200.00 feet southerly of the intersection of the west 
line of said Government Lot 2 with the southerly right of way line 
of South Shore Drive (formerly County State Aid Highway No. 24) as measured along the west 
line of said Government Lot 2; thence southeasterly parallel with the southerly right of way line 
of said South Shore Drive on a curve concave to the southwest, having a central angle of 02 
degrees 07 minutes 39 seconds and a radius of 354.38 feet, for a distance of 13.16 feet (chord 
bearing South 49 degrees 12 minutes 10 seconds East); thence South 48 degrees 08 minutes 20 
seconds East 4.48 feet continuing parallel with the southerly right of way line of said South 
Shore Drive; thence South 02 degrees 42 minutes 15 seconds West 35.45 feet to an iron 
monument; thence North 88 degrees 19 minutes 24 seconds West 11.06 feet to the point of 
beginning. 
 
Is amended from “R-A” Residential Agriculture District to “R-2” One and Two Family District 
at 839 South Shore Drive.  A map identifying the area rezoning can be obtained at the City 
Administration Building, 1025 Roosevelt Avenue, Detroit Lakes. 
 
The provision of Ordinance No. 500.51 together with all amendments and supplements thereto 
and all other ordinances promulgated by the City Council of the City of Detroit Lakes, 
Minnesota, which are in consistent with the provisions of this Ordinance are to extent of such 
inconsistencies and no further hereby repealed.   
 
This ordinance shall take effect upon passage and publication of the ordinance or summary in 
accordance with law and the City of Detroit Lakes Charter.   
 
Passed and adopted this 13th day of February, 2018.   
 
Approved this 13th day of February, 2018.   
 
 
 

__________________________________ 
 Matt Brenk, Mayor 
 
 
 
 
______________________________ 
Glori French, City Clerk 
 
First Reading:            January 9, 2018 
Seconded Reading:    February 13, 2018 
 



1 

ORDINANCE NO. 418 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 1007 – EROSION AND SEDIMENT 
CONTROL OF THE DETROIT LAKES CITY CODE 

The City Council of the City of Detroit Lakes does hereby ordain Section 1007 is amended in its 
entirety as follows: 

STORMWATER MANAGEMENT 

General Provisions 
Statutory authorization 

Definitions 
Findings 
Purpose 

Applicability 
Exemptions 

Industrial or Construction Activity Discharges 

Plan Procedures 
Process 

Fees 
Duration 

Conditions 

SWPPP Design Standards 
Construction Criteria 

Permanent (post construction) Stormwater Management Requirements 
Models; methodologies and computations 

Inspections and Maintenance 
Applicant responsibilities 

Inspection by city 
Private stormwater facilities 

City-owned stormwater facilities 

Administration and Enforcement 
Notification by city 

Violations and Enforcement 
Right of entry and inspection 

Other controls; conflict 

Exhibit 5F Return to Agenda



2 

1007 GENERAL PROVISIONS 

1007.01 STATUTORY AUTHORIZATION. 

(A)  This chapter is adopted pursuant to the authorization and policies 
contained in M.S. Ch. 103B and 462; Minn. Rules pts. 6120.2500 - 
6120.3900; and Minn. Rules Ch. 8401 and 8420, as amended from 
time to time. 

(B)  This chapter is intended to meet the current construction site erosion 
and sediment control and post-construction stormwater 
management regulatory requirements for construction activity and 
small construction activity (NPDES Permit) as defined in 40 C.F.R. 
pts. 122.26(b) (14) (x) and (b) (15), respectively. 

(C)  This chapter is intended to meet the Minimal Impact Design 
Standards (MIDS) developed under M.S. § 115.03 Subd. 5c, as 
amended from time to time. 

1007.02 DEFINITIONS. 

Subd. 1.  Applicant means any person or group that applies for a 
building permit, subdivision approval, or a permit to allow land disturbing activities. Applicant 
also means that person's agents, employees, and others acting under this person's or group’s 
direction along with the permit holder or holders and the permit holder’s agents, employees, and 
others acting under this person's or group’s direction. 

Subd. 2. As-builts means revised set of drawings submitted by the 
Applicant upon completion of a project or a particular job that reflect all changes made in the 
drawings during the construction process, and show as-constructed dimensions, geometry, and 
location of the work completed. 

Subd. 3. Best Management Practices (BMPs) means the most 
effective and practicable means of erosion prevention and sediment control, and water quality 
management practices that are the most effective and practicable means of to control, prevent, and 
minimize degradation of surface water, including avoidance of impacts, construction-phasing, 
minimizing the length of time soil areas are exposed, prohibitions, pollution prevention through 
good housekeeping, and other management practices published by state or designated area-wide 
planning agencies. Individual BMPs found in this permit are described in the current versions of 
Protecting Water Quality in Urban Areas, MPCA and The Minnesota Stormwater Manual, MPCA. 
BMPs must be adapted to the site and can be adopted from other sources. However, they must be 
similar in purpose and at least as effective and stringent as MPCA’s BMPs. (Other sources include 
manufacturers specifications, Storm Water Management for Construction Activities: Developing 
Pollution Prevention Plans and Best Management Practices, U.S. Environmental Protection 
Agency 1992, and Erosion Control Design Manual, Minnesota Department of Transportation, et 
al, 1993). 



3 

Subd. 4. Buffer means an area as defined by Minnesota Stat. 103F.48 
Subd. 1 (c).  

Subd. 5. Certified SWPPP Designer, Installer, and/or 
Inspector/Site Manager means an individual who has completed specific training and obtained 
subsequent certification to design, install, and/or inspect/manage a SWPPP or components thereof.  
The training requirements necessary for certification shall be consistent with the current 
requirements of NPDES/SDS construction stormwater general permit. 

Subd. 6. Common Plan of Development means a contiguous area 
where multiple separate and distinct land disturbing activities may be taking place at different 
times, on different schedules, but under one proposed plan.  One plan is broadly defined to include 
design, permit application, advertisement or physical demarcation indicating that land-disturbing 
activities may occur. After completion of the initial Common Plan of Development or for 
previously developed land, any subsequent development or redevelopment would be regarded as 
a new Common Plan of Development.  Subsequent development or redevelopment (e.g. such as 
adding new buildings, parking lot(s), or other Impervious Surface) would stand alone as a new 
Common Plan of Development for purposes of calculating acreage disturbed to determine if a 
permit is required. 

Subd. 7.  Construction Activity includes construction activity as 
defined in 40 CFR § 22.26(b)(14)(x) and small construction activity as defined in 40 CFR § 
122.26(b)(15) and construction activity as defined by Minn. R. 7090.0080, subp. 4. This includes 
a disturbance to the land that results in a change in the topography, existing soil cover (both 
vegetative and non-vegetative), or the existing soil topography that may result in accelerated 
stormwater runoff, leading to soil erosion and movement of sediment into surface waters or 
drainage systems. Examples of construction activity may include clearing, grading, filling, and 
excavating. Construction activity includes the disturbance of less than one acre of total land area 
that is a part of a larger common plan of development if the larger common plan will ultimately 
disturb one (1) acre or more. Construction activity does not include a disturbance to the land of 
less than five (5) acres for the purpose of routine maintenance that is performed to maintain the 
original line and grade, hydraulic capacity, or original purpose of the facility.  

 Subd. 8. Developer means a person, state agency, or political 
subdivision thereof engaged in a land disturbance activity.  

 Subd. 9. Development means any land disturbance activity that 
changes the site’s runoff characteristics in conjunction with residential, commercial, industrial or 
institutional construction or alteration. 

 Subd. 10. Dewatering means the removal of surface or ground water 
to dry and/or solidify a construction site to enable construction activity. Dewatering may require a 
Minnesota Department of Natural Recourses water appropriation permit and, if dewatering water 
is contaminated, discharge of such water may require an individual MPCA NPDES/SDS permit. 



4 

 Subd. 11. Discharge means the release, conveyance, channeling, 
runoff, or drainage, of Stormwater, including snowmelt, from a construction site. 

 Subd. 12. Energy Dissipation means methods employed at pipe 
outlets to prevent erosion caused by the rapid discharge of water scouring soils. Examples include, 
but are not limited to: concrete aprons, riprap, splash pads, and gabions that are designed to prevent 
erosion. 

 Subd. 13. Erosion means any process that wears away the surface of 
the land by the action of water, wind, ice, or gravity. Erosion can be accelerated by the activities 
of man and nature.   

 Subd. 14. Erosion Control means methods employed to prevent 
erosion. Examples include soil stabilization practices, horizontal slope grading, temporary or 
permanent cover, and construction phasing.  

 Subd. 15. Erosion and Sediment Practice Specifications or Practice 
means the management procedures, techniques, and methods to control soil erosion and 
sedimentation as officially adopted by either the state, county, city or local watershed group, 
whichever is more stringent.  

 Subd. 16. Erosion Prevention means measures employed to prevent 
erosion. Examples include but not limited to: soil stabilization practices, limited grading, mulch, 
temporary erosion protection or permanent cover, and construction phasing. 

   Subd. 17. Exposed Soil Areas means all areas of the construction site 
where the vegetation or impervious surface has been removed, thus rendering the soil more prone 
to erosion. This includes topsoil stockpile areas, borrow areas and disposal areas within the 
construction site. It does not include temporary stockpiles or surcharge areas of clean sand, gravel, 
concrete or bituminous, which have less stringent protection. Once soil is exposed, it is considered 
exposed soil, until it meets the definition of final stabilization.  

   Subd. 18. Filter Strips means a vegetated section of land designed to 
treat runoff as overland sheet flow. They may be designed in any natural vegetated form from a 
grassy meadow to a small forest. Their dense vegetated cover facilitates pollutant removal and 
infiltration. 

   Subd. 19. Final Stabilization means that all soil disturbing activities 
at the site have been completed, and that a uniform perennial vegetative cover with a density of 
seventy-five percent of the cover for unpaved areas and areas not covered by permanent structures 
has been established, or equivalent permanent stabilization measures have been employed. Simply 
sowing grass seed is not considered final stabilization. Where agricultural land is involved, such 
as when pipelines are built on crop or range land, final stabilization constitutes returning the land 
to its preconstruction agricultural use.   

   Subd. 20. Impervious Surface A hard or Paved Surface or other 
material that prevents, impedes or retards the infiltration of a gas, air, fluids or water into the soil.  



5 

Examples include but are not limited to rooftops, streets, compacted gravel, walkways, patios, 
driveways, parking lots, parking spaces, and/or swimming pools, storage areas and other facilities 
where concrete bituminous bricks, pavers, plastic or gravel exists or have been installed.  Pervious 
pavers, pervious concrete and pervious bituminous are considered Impervious surface    

   Subd. 21. Impaired Waters means waters identified as impaired 
under section 303 (d) of the Federal Clean Water Act for phosphorous, turbidity, dissolved oxygen 
of aquatic biota. 

   Subd. 22. Infeasible means not technologically possible or achievable 
in light of the best industry practices. 

   Subd. 23. Initiated Immediately means taking an action to commence 
stabilization as soon as practicable, but no later than the end of the work day, following the day 
when the earth-disturbing activities have temporarily or permanently ceased, if the Applicant 
knows that construction work on that portion of the site will be temporarily ceased for 14 or more 
additional calendar days or 7 calendar days. The following activities can be taken to initiate 
stabilization:  

A. prepping the soil for vegetative or non-vegetative stabilization  

B. applying mulch or other non-vegetative product to the exposed soil 
area  

C. seeding or planting the exposed area  

D. finalizing arrangements to have stabilization product fully installed 
in compliance with the applicable deadline for completing 
stabilization  

   Subd. 24. Land Disturbance Permit (Hereinafter LDP) means a 
Stormwater Permit issued by the city for a Land Disturbance Activity. 

   Subd. 25. Land Disturbance Activity means land changes that may 
disturb one acre or more including projects of less than one acre that are part of a larger Common 
Plan of Development that result in soil erosion from water or wind and the movement of sediments 
into or upon waters or lands of the state, including clearing, grading, excavating, transporting and 
filling of land.  

   Subd. 26. National Pollution Discharge Elimination System 
(NPDES) means the program for issuing, modifying, revoking, reissuing, terminating, monitoring, 
and enforcing permits under the Clean Water Act (Sections 301, 318, 402, and 405) and United 
States Code of Federal Regulations Title 33, Sections 1317, 1328, 1342, and 1345. 

   Subd. 27. Native Vegetation means plant species native to the local 
region that were not introduced as a result of European settlement or subsequent human 
introduction.  



6 

   Subd. 28. Natural Buffer An unmown, undisturbed natural or 
enhanced native perennial vegetation area, excluding invasive plants and noxious weeds, 
that is managed to stabilize and maintain the integrity of upland, shorelines and river or 
stream channels to reduce the impact of upland sources of water runoff pollution by 
trapping, filtering and converting sediments, nutrients and other chemicals, stabilizing soils, 
shores and banks to protect or provide riparian corridors to supply food, cover and thermal 
protection to fish and other wildlife. 

   Subd. 29. New development any development that results in the 
conversion of land that is currently prairie, agriculture, forest, or meadow and has less than 
15 percent impervious surface.  Land that was previously developed, but now razed and 
vacant, will not be considered new development. 

   Subd. 30. Normal Wetted Perimeter means the area of a 
conveyance, such as a ditch, channel, or pipe that is in contact with water during flow events that 
are expected to occur from a two-year 24-hour storm event. 

   Subd. 31. Ordinary High Water Mark means generally the boundary 
elevation where the vegetation changes from predominately aquatic to terrestrial. This elevation 
delineates the highest water level, which has been maintained for a sufficient period of time to 
leave evidence upon the landscape, commonly that point where the natural vegetation changes 
from predominantly aquatic to predominantly terrestrial. Water often reaches this elevation in 
spring. For rivers and streams the ordinary high water mark is usually the top of the bank.  The 
definition in Minnesota Statute 103G.005, subdivision 14 says that the“...“Ordinary high water 
level...”means the boundary of water basins, watercourses, public waters, and public waters 
wetlands, and: 

A. For watercourses, the ordinary high water level is the elevation of 
the top of the bank of the channel; and   

B. For reservoirs and flowages, the ordinary high water level is the 
operating elevation of the normal summer pool.    

   Subd. 32. Paved Surface means a constructed hard, smooth surface 
made of asphalt, concrete or other pavement material.  Examples include, but are not limited to, 
roads, sidewalks, driveways and parking lots. Hard surfaces designed or manufactured with the 
intent to transmit stormwater runoff vertically through the pavement section (e.g. pervious pavers, 
concreate, or bituminous) are considered to be impervious and included within the definition of 
Paved Surface. 

   Subd. 33. Permanent Cover means surface types that will prevent soil 
failure under erosive conditions. Examples include: gravel, asphalt, concrete, rip rap, roof tops, 
perennial cover, or other landscaped material that will permanently arrest soil erosion. A uniform 
perennial vegetative cover ( i.e. evenly distributed, without large bare areas) with a density of 70 
percent of the native background vegetative cover for the area must be established on all unpaved 
areas and areas not covered by permanent structures, or equivalent permanent stabilization 



7 

measures. Permanent cover does not include the practices listed under temporary erosion 
protection. 

   Subd. 34 Permanent Stormwater Maintenance Plan means detailed 
description of inspection and maintenance activities of permanent stormwater facilities to ensure 
long-term operation of the facilities in accordance with the original design.  The Permanent 
Stormwater Maintenance Plan shall include a description of the frequency of inspections, items 
requiring inspection, thresholds for maintenance, replacement schedules, individual(s) and/or 
party(s) responsible for inspection and maintenance, and documentation requirements. The plan 
shall address all permanent stormwater facilities including, but not limited to, underground piping, 
swales, ditches, structures, energy dissipation, infiltration basins, underground basins, wet 
sedimentation basins, rain gardens, steep slopes, and overall site vegetation/restoration. 

   Subd. 35. Permit means a written warrant or license granted for 
construction, subdivision approval, a conditional use permit, variance or Land Disturbance Permit 
or to allow land disturbing activities  

   Subd. 36. Phased Project or Development means clearing a parcel of 
land in distinct phases, with at least fifty percent of the project’s preceding phase meeting the 
definition of final stabilization and the remainder proceeding toward completion, before beginning 
the next phase of clearing.   

   Subd. 37. Project(s) means all construction activity that is planned 
and/or conducted under a particular permit. The project will occur on the site or sites described in 
the permit application, and in the associated plans, specifications and contract documents. 

   Subd. 38. Public Waters means all water basins and watercourses that 
are described in Minn. Stat. § 103G.005 subd. 15. 

   Subd. 39. Redevelopment any development that is not considered 
New Development. 

   Subd. 40. Runoff Coefficient means the fraction of total precipitation 
that is not infiltrated into or otherwise retained by the soil, concrete, asphalt or other surface upon 
which it falls, that will appear at the conveyance as runoff. This coefficient is usually estimated 
for an event or on an average annual basis.  

   Subd. 41. Sediment means solid mineral or organic material that, in 
suspension, is being transported or has been moved from its original site by air, water, gravity, or 
ice and has been deposited at another location.  

   Subd. 42. Sedimentation means the process or action of depositing 
sediment that is determined to have been caused by erosion. 

   Subd. 43. Sediment Control means methods employed to prevent 
sediment from leaving the site. Sediment control practices include silt fences, sediment traps, earth 
dikes, drainage swales, check dams, subsurface drains, bio rolls, rock logs, compost logs, storm 
drain inlet protection, and temporary or permanent sedimentation basins. A floating silt curtain 



8 

placed in the water is not a sediment control BMP to satisfy perimeter control requirements, except 
as provided for in the sediment control part. 

   Subd. 44. Stabilize, Stabilized, Stabilization means the exposed 
ground surface has been covered by appropriate materials such as mulch, staked sod, riprap, 
erosion control blanket, mats or other material that prevents erosion from occurring. Grass, 
agricultural crop or other seeding alone is not stabilization. Mulch materials must achieve 
approximately 90 percent ground coverage (typically 2 ton/acre). 

   Subd. 45. Steep Slope means slopes that are 1:3 (V:H) (33.3 percent) 
or steeper in grade.  

   Subd. 46. Stormwater is defined under Minn. R. 7077.0105, subp. 
41(b), and includes precipitation runoff, stormwater runoff, snowmelt runoff, and any other surface 
runoff and drainage. 

   Subd. 47. Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (Hereinafter 
SWPPP) means a joint Stormwater and erosion and sediment control plan that, when 
implemented, will decrease soil erosion on a parcel of land and off-site nonpoint pollution. It 
involves both temporary and permanent controls.  

   Subd. 48. Special Waters means either a trout stream as listed in 
Minn. R. 6264.0050, subp. 4 or a Calcareous Fen and listed in Minn. R. 7050.0180 subp. 6b. 

   Subd. 49. Surface Water or Waters means all streams, lakes, ponds, 
marshes, wetlands, reservoirs, springs, rivers, drainage systems, waterways, watercourses, and 
irrigation systems whether natural or artificial, public or private, except that surface waters do not 
include treatment basins or ponds that were constructed from upland.  

   Subd. 50. Temporary Erosion Protection means methods employed 
to prevent erosion during construction activities. Examples of temporary erosion protection 
include, but are not limited to: straw, wood fiber blanket, wood chips, vegetation, mulch, and rolled 
erosion control products. Vegetated or Grassy Swale means a vegetated earthen channel that 
conveys Stormwater, while treating the Stormwater by biofiltration. Such swales remove 
pollutants by both filtration and infiltration. 

   Subd. 51. Waters of the State (as defined in Minn. Stat. § 115.01, 
subd. 22) means all streams, lakes, ponds, marshes, watercourses, waterways, wells, springs, 
reservoirs, aquifers, irrigation systems, drainage systems and all other bodies or accumulations of 
water, surface or underground, natural or artificial, public or private, which are contained within, 
flow through, or border upon the state or any portion thereof. 

   Subd. 52. Wet Detention Facility means a permanent man-made 
structure, containing a permanent pool of water, used for the temporary storage of runoff.  

   Subd. 53. Wetlands has the meaning given under Minnesota Rule, part 
8420.0111. 



9 

   Subd. 54. If words or phrases are not defined in this chapter, then 
words or phrases shall be interpreted to have the meaning they have in common usage or those as 
defined by Appendix B of the Minnesota construction stormwater permit No. MN R100001 
(construction permit). Words or phrases shall be interpreted so as to give this chapter its most 
reasonable application. 

 1007.03 FINDINGS.  The city finds that uncontrolled stormwater runoff and construction 
site erosion from land development and land disturbing activity can have significant adverse 
impacts upon local and regional water resources diminishing the quality of public health, safety, 
public and private property and natural resources. In addition, extraordinary public expenditures 
may be required for the protection of persons and property in areas which may be affected by 
unplanned land use. Specifically, uncontrolled soil erosion and stormwater runoff can: 

(A) Threaten public health, safety, property and general welfare by 
increasing runoff volumes and peak flood flows and overburdening 
storm sewers, drainage ways and other storm drainage systems; 

(B) Diminish the capacity of lakes and streams to support fish, aquatic 
life, recreational and water supply uses by increasing pollutant 
loadings of sediment, suspended solids, nutrients, heavy metals, 
toxics, debris, bacteria, pathogens, biological impairments, thermal 
stress and other pollutants; 

(C) Degrade physical stream habitat by increasing stream bank erosion, 
increasing stream bed scour, diminishing groundwater recharge, 
diminishing stream base flows and increasing stream temperatures; 

(D) Undermine floodplain management efforts by increasing the 
incidence and levels of flooding; 

(E) Alter wetland communities by changing wetland hydrology and 
increasing pollutant loads; and  

(F) Impact groundwater by reducing recharge and increasing potential 
pollutant loading. 

 1007.04 PURPOSE.  The general purpose of this ordinance is to establish a chapter with 
regulatory requirements for land development and land disturbing activities within the city aimed 
at minimizing the threats to public health, safety, public and private property and natural resources 
from construction site erosion and post-construction stormwater runoff. Specific purposes are to 
establish performance goals that will: 

(A) Meet minimum impact design standards (MIDS) performance goals; 

(B) Assist in meeting construction stormwater general permit 
requirements; 

(C) Assist in meeting total maximum daily load (TMDL) plan waste 



10 

load allocations for impaired waters through quantification of load 
reductions; 

(D) Protect public and private property and natural resources from 
damage resulting from stormwater runoff and erosion; 

(E) Ensure the annual stormwater runoff rates and volumes from post 
development site conditions mimic and/or reduce the annual runoff 
rates and volumes from predevelopment site conditions; 

(F) Ensure site design minimizes the generation of stormwater runoff 
and maximizes pervious areas for stormwater treatment; 

(G) Provide a single, consistent set of performance goals that apply to 
all developments; 

(H) Protect water quality from pollutant loadings of sediment, 
suspended solids, nutrients, heavy metals, toxics, debris, bacteria, 
pathogens, biological impairments, thermal stress and other 
pollutants; 

(I) Promote infiltration and groundwater recharge; 

(J) Provide vegetated corridors (buffers) to protect water resources 
from development;  

(K) Protect functional values of all types of natural waterbodies (e.g., 
rivers, streams, wetlands, lakes, seasonal ponds); and 

(L) Sustain or enhance biodiversity (native plant and animal habitat) and 
support riparian ecosystems. 

 1007.05 APPLICABILITY.  A Land Disturbance Permit shall be required prior to any 
proposed land development activity that meets any of the criteria (1) through (4) immediately 
below, unless otherwise exempted in this chapter. 

(1) Any land development activity that may ultimately result in 
the disturbance of one or more acres of land, including 
smaller individual sites that are part of a Common Plan of 
Development. 

(2) Land development activity involving discharges to an 
impaired water as described in the TMDL 303(d) list. 

(3) A subdivision plat that has the potential for a Land 
Disturbance Activity. 

(4) Any land development activity, regardless of size, that the 
city determines is likely to cause an adverse impact to an 
environmentally sensitive area or other property. 

 1007.06 EXEMPTIONS.  The following activities shall be exempt from all of the 
requirements of this chapter: 



11 

(A) Minor land disturbance activities such as home gardens and an 
individual's home landscaping, repairs, and maintenance work. 

(B) Construction, installation, and maintenance of electric, telephone, 
and cable television utility lines or individual service connections to 
these utilities.  

(C) Installation of fence, sign, telephone, and electric poles and other 
kinds of posts or poles. 

(D) Emergency work to protect life, limb, or property and emergency 
repairs. However, if the land disturbing activity would have required 
an approved SWPPP except for the emergency, the land area 
disturbed shall be shaped and stabilized in accordance with the 
requirement of the local plan-approving authority or the City when 
applicable. 

(E) Routine agricultural activity such as tilling, planting, harvesting, and 
associated activities. Other agricultural activities are not exempt 
including activities such as construction of structures. 

(F) Forestry.  

 1007.07 INDUSTRIAL OR CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITY DISCHARGES. Any 
person subject to an industrial or construction activity NPDES storm water discharge permit shall 
comply with all provisions of such permit. Proof of compliance with said permit may be required 
in a form acceptable to the City prior to the allowing of discharges to the MS4. Any person 
responsible for a property or premise, who is, or may be, the source of an illicit discharge, may be 
required to implement, at said person's expense, additional structural and nonstructural BMPs to 
prevent the further discharge of pollutants to the storm sewer system. These BMPs shall be part of 
a storm water pollution prevention plan (SWPPP) as necessary for compliance with requirements 
of the NPDES permit. 

 1007.08 LDP APPLICATION PROCESS. 

(A) Pre-application meeting. The city may facilitate a pre-application 
meeting with the applicant, city staff (or their authorized 
representative), and possibly staff of other relevant agencies prior to 
submission of a permit application. The purposes of the meeting are 
to understand the general parameters of the proposed project and to 
convey the provisions of the chapter. 

(B) Application. A complete application generally including signed 
application, application fee, compliant SWPPP, prepared by a 
Certified SWPPP Designer, consistent with the erosion, sediment, 
and waste control requirements in the most recent version of the 
NPDES/SDS construction stormwater general permit, supporting 



12 

calculations and modeling reports demonstrating the permanent 
treatment requirements meet the MIDS performance goals, any 
necessary supplemental maps, Permanent Stormwater Maintenance 
Plan, a completed Minnesota Pollution Control Agency SWPPP 
Checklist, and any information required by this ordinance and such 
supplemental information as the City may, by written notification, 
require.  

(C) Application review. The applicant shall not commence any 
construction activity subject to this chapter until a permit has been 
authorized by the city. Once a complete application is accepted by 
the City a review and decision on the permit application shall be 
completed by the City within 60 days of the receipt and acceptance 
of a complete permit application. This time limit may be extended 
in accordance with M.S. § 15.99. The city will work with the 
necessary state, county, and local agencies to complete the review. 
The city shall review all information in the permit application 
including proposed stormwater practices, hydrologic models, and 
design methodologies and certify compliance with this chapter. 

(D) Rejected application. The City shall make a determination regarding 
the completeness of a permit application within 15 business days of 
the receipt of the application.  If the City determines the application 
is not complete, the application must be rejected.  If the application 
is rejected the applicant will be notified of the rejection in writing, 
including the reasons for the rejection and the application fee will 
be refunded.  Once rejected, a new application must be submitted 
for approval before any activity may begin.  All land use and 
building permits shall also be rejected until the applicant has 
received an authorized permit. 

(E) Permit authorization. If the city determines that the application 
meets the requirements of this chapter, the city may issue a permit 
approval authorizing the project or activity. Approval will be in 
written form from the city to the applicant.  Approval may be 
granted with Conditions as stated in 1007.11.  Any Conditions of 
the permit approval shall become part of the permit and the applicant 
shall comply with as required.   

(F) Permit denial. If the city determines the SWPPP does not meet the 
requirements of this chapter, the SWPPP must be denied and no 
permit shall be issued. If the SWPPP is denied, the applicant will be 
notified of the denial in writing including reasons for the denial. 
Once denied, a new application, including application fee, must be 
resubmitted for approval before any activity may begin. All land use 



13 

and building permits shall also be denied until the applicant has an 
authorized permit. 

(G) Modification of permitted plans. The applicant must amend an 
approved SWPPP to include additional requirements such as 
additional or modified best management practices (BMPs) designed 
to correct problems whenever: 

(1) There is a change in design, construction, operation, 
maintenance, weather or seasonal conditions that has a 
significant effect on the discharge of pollutants to surface 
water or underground water. 

(2) Inspections or investigations by site operators, local, state or 
Federal or other agency officials indicate the plans are not 
effective in eliminating or significantly minimizing the 
discharge of pollutants to surface water or underground 
water or that the discharges are causing water quality 
standard exceedances. 

(3) The plan is not achieving the general objectives of 
minimizing pollutants in stormwater discharges associated 
with construction activity.  

 1007.09 FEES. All applications for a Land Disturbance Permit must be accompanied by 
an application fee as determined by ordinance of the City Council.  Application fees shall 
approximate the direct and indirect costs associated with issuing the permit, including but not 
limited to costs incurred by the City for an initial and one supplementary engineering review by 
the City Engineer or other City staff.  In the event more than two reviews are necessary, the City 
may require additional fees to reimburse the City for actual costs incurred by the City for all 
necessary reviews, and may require the applicant to deposit with the City a sum consistent with 
the estimated cost of all such necessary reviews.  The City may also establish service fees for all 
inspections by the City occurring after completion of construction as determined by ordinance of 
the City Council, including any necessary engineering review, which fees shall be due from the 
permit holder and then current owner of the property within 30 days of invoice by the City.  
Unpaid inspection fees may be assessed against the property as a service fee pursuant to Minn. 
Stat. 514.67. 

 1007.10 DURATION. Plan approval will expire one year after date of approval unless 
construction has commenced in accordance with the plan. However, if prior to the expiration of 
the approval, the applicant makes a written request to the city for an extension of time to commence 
construction setting forth the reasons for the requested extension, the city may grant one extension 
of not greater than one year. Receipt of any request for extension shall be acknowledged by the 
city within 15 days. The city shall make a decision on the extension within 30 days of receipt. Any 
plan may be revised in the same manner as originally approved. 



14 

 1007.11 CONDITIONS. An Application may be approved subject to compliance with 
conditions reasonable and necessary to insure that the requirements of this chapter are met. 
Conditions may limit the size, kind or character of the proposed development, require the 
construction of structures, drainage facilities, storage basins and other facilities, require 
replacement of vegetation, establish required monitoring procedures, stage the work over time, 
require alteration of the site design to insure buffering and require the conveyance to the city or 
other public entity of necessary lands or easements. 

 1007.12 SWPPP CRITERIA.   

(A) Construction (Temporary) Criteria 

(1) Temporary erosion, sediment, and waste control 
requirements during construction. The SWPPP shall 
conform to the current SWPPP requirements of 
NPDES/SDS construction stormwater general permit. 

(B) Permanent (Post Construction) SWPPP Stormwater management 
requirements. 

(1) Stormwater volume reduction performance goals. Any 
applicant for a permit resulting in site disturbance that 
ultimately creates one or more acres of new impervious 
surface must meet all of the following stormwater 
performance goals: 

(a) New development volume control. For new, 
nonlinear developments that create one or more acres 
of new impervious surface on sites without 
restrictions, stormwater runoff volumes will be 
controlled and the post-construction runoff volume 
shall be retained on site for 1.1 inches of runoff from 
all impervious surfaces on the site. 

(b) Redevelopment volume control. Nonlinear 
redevelopment projects on sites without restrictions 
that create one or more acres of new and/or fully 
reconstructed impervious surfaces shall capture and 
retain on site 1.1 inches of runoff from the new 
and/or fully reconstructed impervious area on the 
site. 

(c) Linear development volume control. Linear projects 
on sites without restrictions that create one or more 
acres of new and/or fully reconstructed impervious 
surfaces, shall capture and retain the larger of the 
following: 



15 

(1) 0.55 inches of runoff from the new and fully 
reconstructed impervious surfaces on the site; 
or 

(2) 1.1 inches of runoff from the net increase in 
impervious area on the site. 

(d) Infitration is prohibited in the following areas: (See 
Part III.D.5.a(3)(a)1) of the MS4 Permit):  
(1)  Where industrial facilities are not authorized 

to infiltrate industrial stormwater under an 
NPDES/SDS Industrial Stormwater Permit 
issued by the MPCA; 

(2)  Where vehicle fueling and maintenance 
occur; 

(3)  With less than three (3) feet of separation 
distance from the bottom of the infiltration 
system to the elevation of the seasonally 
saturated soils or the top of bedrock; 

(4)  Where high levels of contaminants in soil or 
groundwater will be mobilized by the 
infiltrating stormwater.  

(e) Mill & overlays, reclamation and/or other 
resurfacing activities shall not be required to meet 
any stormwater performance goals. 

(f) Flexible treatment options for sites with restrictions 
(as found in the MIDS design sequence flowchart). 
Applicant shall fully attempt to comply with the 
appropriate performance goals described above. 
Options considered and presented shall examine the 
merits of relocating or reducing project elements and 
impervious surface to address varying soil conditions 
and other constraints across the site. If full 
compliance is not possible due to any of the factors 
listed below, the applicant must document the 
reason. If site constraints or restrictions limit the full 
treatment goal, the following flexible treatment 
options shall be used: 
(1) Applicant shall document the flexible 

treatment options sequence starting with 
Alternative #1. If Alternative #1 cannot be 
met, then Alternative #2 shall be analyzed. 
Applicants must document the specific 
reasons why Alternative #1 cannot be met 
based on the factors listed below. If 



16 

Alternative #2 cannot be met then Alternative 
#3 shall be met. Applicants must document 
the specific reasons why Alternative #2 
cannot be met based on the factors listed 
below. When all of the conditions are 
fulfilled within an alternative, this sequence 
is completed. 

(2) Volume reduction techniques considered 
shall include infiltration, reuse and rainwater 
harvesting, and canopy interception and 
evapotranspiration and/or additional 
techniques included in the MIDS Calculator 
and the Minnesota Stormwater Manual. 

(3) Higher priority shall be given to BMPs that 
include volume reduction. Secondary 
preference is to employ filtration techniques. 

(4) Factors to be considered for each alternative 
will include: 
1. High groundwater; 
2. Hotspots or contaminated soils; 
3. Drinking water source management 

areas or within 200 feet of drinking 
water well; 

4. Zoning, setbacks or other land use 
requirements; 

5. Poor soils (infiltration rates that are 
too low or too high). 

(C) Alternative #1. Applicant attempts to comply with the following 
conditions: 

(1) Achieve at least 0.55-inch volume reduction from all 
impervious surfaces if the site is new development or 0.55-
inch volume reduction from the new and/or fully 
reconstructed impervious surfaces for a redevelopment site; 

(2) Remove 75% of the annual total phosphorous (TP) load from 
all impervious surfaces if the site is new development or 
75% of annual TP from the new and/or fully reconstructed 
impervious surfaces for a redevelopment site; and, 

(3) Options considered and presented shall examine the merits 
of relocating or reducing project elements and impervious 
surface to address varying soil conditions and other 
constraints across the site. 



17 

(D) Alternative #2. Applicant attempts to comply with the following 
conditions: 

(1) Achieve volume reduction to the maximum extent 
practicable; 

(2) Remove 60% of the annual total phosphorous (TP) load from 
all impervious surfaces if the site is new development or 
60% TP from the new and/or fully reconstructed impervious 
surfaces for a redevelopment site; and 

(3) Options considered and presented shall examine the merits 
of relocating or reducing project elements and impervious 
surface to address varying soil conditions and other 
constraints across the site. 

(E) Alternative #3: off-site treatment. Mitigation equivalent to the 
performance of 1.1 inches of volume reduction for new development 
or from the new and/or fully reconstructed impervious surface 
described above in this section (including banking or cash) can be 
performed off-site to protect the receiving water body. Off-site 
treatment shall be achieved in areas selected in the following order 
of preference: 

(1) Locations that yield benefits to the same receiving water that 
receives runoff from the original construction activity; 

(2) Locations within the same Department of Natural Resource 
(DNR) catchment area (Hydrologic Unit 08) as the original 
construction activity; 

(3) Locations within the next adjacent DNR catchment area 
upstream; and 

(4) Locations anywhere within the city's jurisdiction. 

(F) The MIDS Design Sequence Flowchart can be found in the 
Minnesota Stormwater Manual. 

(G) The site shall be designed to provide an emergency spillway and 
designated overflow route for the 100-year, 24-hour storm. The 
spillway and overflow route must be able to safely pass overflows 
through the structure without creating damaging conditions 
downstream of the facility. 

 1007.14 MODELS; METHODOLOGIES AND COMPUTATIONS. Final site design 
and choice of permanent stormwater volume reduction practices shall be based on outcomes of the 
MIDS calculator (or other model that shows the performance goal can be met) and shall meet the 
performance goals of this chapter. 



18 

 1007.15 APPLICANT INSPECTION AND MAINTENANCE RESPONSIBILITIES. 
The applicant is responsible: 

(A) To complete and pay all costs associated with required inspections 
and maintenance prescribed by the SWPPP.  Construction 
inspections must be completed by a Certified SWPPP Inspector/Site 
Manager.   

(B) Submission of as-builts, and information demonstrating that the 
stormwater facilities conform to design specifications.  

(C) For the completion of the long-term inspections and maintenance of 
the site in accordance with approved Permanent Stormwater 
Maintenance Plan as submitted with the original LDP application.   

(D) Retaining copies and records of all inspections and maintenance 
throughout the life of the facilities during and after construction for 
all privately-owned storm sewer and stormwater treatment practices 
on the site.  Provide copies of such records to City upon request. 

(E) Permit completion. Before work under the permit is deemed 
complete, the permittee must submit as-builts, a long term 
maintenance plan and information demonstrating that the 
stormwater facilities conform to design specifications. The city will 
verify that all design specifications have been met. 

 1007.16 INSPECTION BY CITY. The city reserves the right to conduct inspections on a 
regular basis to ensure that both temporary and permanent stormwater management and erosion 
and sediment control measures are properly installed and maintained prior to construction, during 
construction, and at the completion of the project. The City shall conduct periodic inspections in 
future years after completion of the project at the cost of the permit holder and then owner of the 
property.  Mandatory inspections may be conducted as follows: 

(A) Following installation of initial construction BMP’s and before any 
land disturbing activity begins; 

(B) Before or during the installation of permanent stormwater treatment 
systems; 

(C) Upon notification from the Applicant that the project is completed 
at the completion of the project; and 

(D) Within one year of project completion and at least once every five 
years thereafter. 

 1007.18 CITY-OWNED STORMWATER FACILITIES. 

(A) Acceptance of city-owned facilities. Before work under the permit 
is deemed complete, the permittee must submit as-builts and a 



19 

maintenance plan demonstrating at the time of final stabilization that 
the stormwater facilities conform to design specifications. A final 
inspection shall be required before the city accepts ownership of the 
stormwater facilities. 

(B) Maintenance. The city shall perform maintenance of city-owned 
stormwater facilities in accordance with their MS4 and Stormwater 
Pollution Prevention Program and other regulatory requirements. 

 1007.19 NOTIFICATION BY CITY.  The initial contact will be to a party or parties 
listed on the application and/or the SWPPP. Forty-eight hours after notification by the city or 72 
hours after the failure of erosion control measures, whichever is less, the city, at its discretion, may 
begin corrective work at the expense of the permit holder and then owner of the property.  The 
permit holder shall reimburse the City for the cost of all corrective work, including any private 
contractor work, staff time and attorney fees, as a service fee within 30 days of invoice by the City.  
Failure of the permit holder and then owner of the property shall entitle the City to assess the cost 
to the property as a service fee. 

 1007.20 VIOLATIONS AND ENFORCEMENT.  The Applicant shall implement and 
comply with the SWPPP and any issued LDP prior to, during and after any construction or land 
disturbing activity. All stabilization measures shall be implemented and maintained until all 
grading, excavation and construction work has ended.  All post construction storm water 
management requirements shall be maintained by the permit holder and property owner to the 
designed SWPPP requirements 

(A) The City shall be responsible for enforcing this ordinance. 

(B) Enforcement tools.  In the event that any holder of an approved 
SWPPP or LDP acts contrary to the SWPPP or violates the terms of 
the LDP, is found non-compliant with the permit, refuses to 
complete required inspections, refuses to provide required records, 
refuses to allow inspections or implements site development 
construction practices in such a manner as to materially adversely 
affect the health, welfare, or safety of persons residing or working 
in the neighborhood or development site so as to be materially 
detrimental to the public welfare or injurious to property or 
improvements in the neighborhood, the City of Detroit Lakes may 
administratively suspend the LDP and issue an administrative Order 
to stop work immediately.  The holder of the approved SWPPP or 
LDP shall immediately stop work and all construction, develop a 
cleanup and restoration plan, obtain the right of way from the 
adjoining property owner if necessary, implement the cleanup and 
restoration plan within 48 hours and repair any damage caused by 
storm water runoff. An inspection by the City must follow before 
the construction project work can resume.  



20 

(C) If, in the discretion of the City, the holder of the approved SWPPP 
or LDP or property owner does not repair the damage caused by the 
storm water runoff and restore the property, fails to comply with the 
administrative Order to stop work or in any other way fails to 
comply with the provisions and requirements of this ordinance, the 
City is authorized to take any combination of the following 
enforcement actions: 

(1) The City may declare the property upon which the violation 
exists a nuisance and Order the nuisance abated by the City 
at the expense of the permit holder and property owner, or 
the City may hire a licensed contractor to perform the 
required remedial work at the expense of the permit holder 
and property owner.  An inspection by the City must follow 
before the construction project work can resume; 

(2) Continue indefinitely any administrative Order to stop work 
and withhold inspections or issuance of certificates of 
occupancy or approvals; 

(3) Suspend all land use permits and building permits associated 
with the property where the violation exists until the 
violation is eliminated; 

(4) Revoke any permit issued by the City associated with the 
property where the violation exists upon hearing, held after 
ten (10) days written notice served upon the applicant, 
permit holder or owner of the property by first class mail at 
the last known address or, if property is not occupied, served 
by posting notice on the property at least ten (10) days before 
the hearing; 

(5) Charge applicant for all costs associated with the 
enforcement, including all costs associated with abatement 
of the nuisance, eliminating the violation, correcting the 
failure, restoring the property or remediating damage.  
Within thirty (30) days after enforcement the permit holder 
and owner of the property will be notified of the cost of 
enforcement or abatement, including all remedial action, and 
all administrative and court costs incurred in enforcement by 
certified or registered mail, or if the property is not occupied, 
served by posting it on the property. The holder of the permit 
and owner of the property shall be personally liable for the 
cost of enforcement and/or abatement.  If the amount due is 
not paid within thirty (30) days after such written notice, the 



21 

City may assess the cost of enforcement and abatement as a 
current service fee under the City’s police power against the 
property upon hearing held after ten (10) days written notice 
served upon the owner of the Property in person or by 
certified or registered mail, or if the Property is not occupied, 
served by posting it on the Property. 

(6) Bring other actions against the applicant to recover costs of 
remediation or meeting the terms of this ordinance; 

(7) Any person, firm or corporation failing to comply with or 
violating any of these regulations and this ordinance shall be 
deemed guilty of a misdemeanor and be subject to a fine or 
imprisonment or both. Each day that a separate violation 
exists shall constitute a separate offense. 

(8) The City may enforce this Ordinance by civil action and 
pursue any remedy available at law or equity, including but 
not limited to temporary restraining orders, injunctions both 
mandatory and prohibitory as well as damages.  In any such 
action, the City shall be entitled to recover its costs, 
disbursements and attorney fees. 

(9) This Ordinance may be enforced through the City of Detroit 
Lakes Administrative Penalty Ordinance. 

(D) Notification of violation. The City shall notify the permit holder of 
the violation as follows: 

(1) Initial contact. The initial contact will be to the party or 
parties listed on the application and/or the SWPPP as 
contacts. Except during an emergency action, 48 hours after 
notification by the City or 72 hours after the failure of 
erosion and sediment control measures, whichever is less, 
the City at its discretion, may begin corrective work. Such 
notification should be in writing, but if it is verbal, a written 
notification should follow as quickly as practical. If after 
making a good faith effort to notify the responsible party or 
parties, the City has been unable to establish a contact, the 
City may proceed with corrective work. There are conditions 
when time is of the essence in controlling erosion. During 
such a condition the City may take immediate action, and 
then notify the applicant as soon as possible. 

(2) Erosion off site. If erosion breaches the perimeter of the site, 
the applicant shall immediately develop a cleanup and 



22 

restoration plan, obtain the right of entry from the adjoining 
property owner, and implement the cleanup and restoration 
plan within 48 hours of obtaining the adjoining property 
owner's permission. In no case, unless written approval is 
received from the City, may more than seven calendar days 
go by without corrective action being taken. If, in the 
discretion of the City, the permit holder does not repair the 
damage caused by the erosion, the City may do the remedial 
work required or hire a licensed contractor to do the remedial 
work at the expense of the holder of the permit and property 
owner. When restoration to wetlands and other resources are 
required, the applicant should be required to work with the 
appropriate agency to ensure that the work is done properly. 

(3) Erosion into streets, storm sewers, wetlands or water bodies. 
If eroded soils (including tracked soils from construction 
activities) enter or appear likely to enter streets, storm 
sewers, wetlands, or other water bodies, prevention 
strategies, cleanup and repair shall be immediate. The 
applicant shall provide all traffic control and flagging 
required to protect the traveling public during the cleanup 
operations.  If, in the discretion of the City, the permit 
holder does not repair the damage caused by the erosion, the 
City may do the remedial work required or hire a licensed 
contractor to do the remedial work at the expense of the 
holder of the permit and property owner. 

 1007.21 RIGHT OF ENTRY AND INSPECTION. The issuance of a permit constitutes 
a right-of-entry for the city or its contractor to enter upon the site in perpetuity. The Applicant shall 
allow the city and their authorized representatives, upon presentation of credentials, to: 

(A) Enter upon the permitted site for the purpose of obtaining 
information, examination of records, conducting investigations or 
surveys; 

(B) Bring such equipment upon the permitted site as is necessary to 
conduct such surveys and investigations; 

(C) Examine and copy any books, papers, records, or memoranda 
pertaining to activities or records required to be kept under the terms 
and conditions of the permit; 

(D) Inspect the stormwater management measures; 

(E) Sample and monitor any items or activities pertaining to stormwater 
management measures; and 



23 

(F) Correct deficiencies in stormwater and erosion and sediment control 
measures. 

 1007.22 OTHER CONTROLS; CONFLICT. 

(A) The provisions of this chapter are not intended to repeal, abrogate, 
or impair any existing easements, covenants, or deed restrictions. 
However, where this chapter imposes greater restrictions the 
provisions of this chapter shall prevail. 

(B) The provisions of this chapter are severable, and if any provision of 
this chapter, or application of any provision of this chapter to any 
circumstance, is held invalid, the application of such provision to 
other circumstances, and the remainder of this chapter must not be 
affected thereby. 

 

This ordinance shall take effect upon passage and publication of the ordinance or summary in 
accordance with the law and the City of Detroit Lakes Charter. 
 
Passed and adopted this 13th day of February, 2018. 
 
Approved this 13th day of February, 2018. 
 
     
        ____________________________ 
        Matt Brenk, Mayor 
 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Glori French, City Clerk 
 
      



ORDINANCE NO. 419 

AN ORDINANCE EXTENDING THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF 
DETROIT LAKES, MINNESOTA TO INCLUDE CERTAIN UNINCORPORATED 

UNPLATTED LAND ABUTTING UPON THE CITY LIMITS 
(FOLTZ TRUCKING) 

WHEREAS, a certain petition dated November 29, 2017, requesting annexation of the territory 
hereinafter described was duly presented to the Council; and  
WHEREAS, the petition was signed by all owners; and  
WHEREAS, a Public Hearing was held and proper notices were sent to the adjoining property 
owners and the town board or the government body of any municipality whose boundaries abut 
upon the boundaries of the land to be annexed; and 
WHEREAS, the land described in the petition abuts upon the City limits at the northwesterly 
boundary thereof; 
NOW, THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Detroit Lakes, Minnesota, does hereby 
ordain:  

Section 1.  The City Council hereby determines: 1) that the territory described herein 
abuts upon the City limits and is urban or suburban in character; and 2) that 
none of the territory is now included within the limits of any city. 

Section 2.  The population of the territory is 0 

Section 3.  The territory to be annexed is 9.06 acres, more or less 

Section 4.  Upon annexation, the territory annexed will be zoned “I-1” Light Industrial. 

Section 5.  Territory Annexed. The corporate limits of the City of Detroit Lakes are 
hereby extended to include the unplatted territory described as follows and 
the same hereby annexed to and included within the City as effectually as if it 
had been originally been a part thereof: 

County Road 131: from the center line of Stony Road West to the easterly right of way line of 
Trunk Highway 59.   

Foltz Trucking: PID #: 08.0335.000 – A parcel of land located in the NW ¼ of NE ¼ of NE ¼ of 
Section 21, Township 139, Range 41 West.  Beginning at the Northeast corner of the NW ¼ of 
NE ¼ of NE ¼, thence South on the line between said ten acres and the NE ¼ of NE ¼ of NE ¼ 
a distance of 600.75 feet to the Southeast corner of the NW ¼ of NE ¼ of NE ¼, thence a 
distance of 200 feet west on the line between said land and SW ¼ of NE ¼ of NE ¼, thence 
North and parallel with the line between NW ¼ of NE ¼ of NE ¼ and NE ¼ of NE ¼ of NE ¼ a 
distance of 600.75 feet to the road that divides Sec. 16 and Sec. 21, then East along said road 200 
feet, to the place of beginning, said parcel designated as Becker County Tax Parcel #08.0335.000 

Foltz Trucking: PID #: 08.0333.000 – The Northwest Quarter of the Northeast Quarter of the 
Northeast Quarter (NW ¼ NE ¼ NE ¼) of Section 21-139-41, less the following 8 tracts:  

Exhibit 5G Return to Agenda



(1) The tract recorded in Book 171 of Deeds, page 451, in the office of the County Recorder of 
said Becker County.   
(2) The tract recorded in Book 179 of Deeds, page 55, in the office of the County Recorder of 
said Becker County.   
(3) The tract recorded in Book 180 of Deeds, page 521, in the office of the County Recorder of 
said Becker County. 
(4) The tract recorded in Book 185 of Deeds, page 179, in the office of the County Recorder of 
said Becker County. 
(5) The tract recorded in Book 189 of Deeds, page 247, in the office of the County Recorder of 
said Becker County.   
(6) The tract recorded in Book 195 of Deeds, page 19, in the office of the County Recorder of 
said Becker County. 
(7) The tract recorded in Book 242 of Deeds, page 659, in the office of the County Recorder of 
said Becker County.   
(8) A public Road right of way along the northerly line of the said NW ¼ of the NE ¼ of the NE 
¼.  

AND 
 
That part of the Northwest Quarter of the Northeast Quarter of the Northeast Quart (NW ¼ of 
NE ¼ NE ¼) of ….Section 21, Township 139 North, Range 41 West of the Fifth principal 
meridian describe as follows:  

Beginning at the Northwest corner of said NW ¼, NE ¼ NE ¼; thence in an Easterly 
direction a distance of 65 feet along the North line of said tract; thence South a distance of 150 
feet, then West a distance of 65 feet to the West line of said tract; thence North along said West 
line a distance of 150 feet to the place of beginning.   
 
LESS THE FOLLOWING TWO TRACTS:  

1.  That part of the Northwest Quarter of the Northeast Quarter of the Northeast Quarter 
(NW ¼ NE ¼ NE ¼) of Section 21, Township 139 North, Range 41 West of the 5th P.M., 
described as follows: Beginning at a point on the west line of said NW ¼ NE ¼ NE ¼ 
that is 477 feet and 5 inches south of the north line of said Section 21; thence at a right 
angle to said west line of the NW ¼ NE ¼ NE ¼ East a distance of 62 feet; thence at a 
right angle to said last course South a distance of 100 feet; thence at a right angle to the 
last course west to the east line of U.S. Highway No. 59; thence Northwesterly along the 
east line of said U.S. Highway No. 59 to the west line of said NW ¼ NE ¼ NE ¼; thence 
North on said West line of the NW ¼ NE ¼ NE ¼ to the point of beginning.   

AND LESS:  
2. That part of the Northwest Quarter of the Northeast Quarter of the Northeast Quarter 

(NW ¼ NE ¼ NE ¼) of …… Section 21, Township 139 North, Range 41 West of the 
Fifth Principal Meridian described as follows:  

Beginning at the Northeast corner of the said NW ¼ of the NE ¼ of the NE ¼, thence West on 
and along the North line of said NW ¼ of the NE ¼ of the NE ¼ a distance of 275 feet to the 
point of beginning, thence South and parallel to the East line of said NW ¼ of the NE ¼ of the 
NE ¼ a distance of 183 feet, thence West and parallel to the North line of said ten (10) acre tract 
a distance of 50 feet, thence North and parallel to the East line of said NW ¼ of the NE ¼ of the 
NE ¼ a distance of 183 feet to the North line of said ten (10) acre tract, thence East along the 



said North line of a distance of 50 feet to the point of beginning subject to an easement for 
roadway purposes in the public in the North 33 feet of said described premises.  

Section 6.  Municipal Boundary Adjustments  The City Administrator is directed to 
forward this ordinance to the Office of Administrative hearings upon approval 
and passage. 

Section 7.  Reimbursement to Township  The City of Detroit Lakes will reimburse 
Detroit Township for property taxes as follows: 

Year Percentage Amount 
2019 100% $ 896.55
2020 100% $ 896.55
2021 100% $ 896.55
2022 100% $ 896.55
2023 100% $ 896.55

Reimbursement of property taxes to the Town shall be based on the property taxes collected by 
the Town in the last year it collected taxes on the annexed area. 

Section 8.  Filing  The City Clerk is hereby directed to file certified copies of this 
Ordinance with, the Office of Administrative Hearings, the Secretary of 
State, the Town Clerk, and the County Auditor. 

Section 9.  Effective Date of Annexation  This Ordinance takes effect upon passage and 
publication and the filing of certified copies as directed in Section 8, and 
approval as required by State Law.   

This ordinance shall take effect upon passage and publication of the ordinance or summary in 
accordance with law and the City of Detroit Lakes Charter. 

Passed and adopted by the City Council of the City of Detroit Lakes, Minnesota, this 13th day of 
February 2018.   

Matt Brenk, Mayor 

Glori French, City Clerk 

First Reading: January 9, 2018 
Seconded Reading: February 13, 2018 



ORDINANCE NO. 420 

AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING ADMINISTRATIVE PENALTIES 

ADMINISTRATIVE PENALTY 

Section 1.  Purpose:  Administrative penalty procedure established pursuant to this Section 
is intended to provide the public and the City with an informal, voluntary, cost effective and 
expeditious alternative to traditional criminal and petty misdemeanor charges for violations of 
certain ordinances enforceable through this Administrative Penalty Ordinance.  The procedure is 
intended to be voluntary on the part of those who have been charged with those offenses.  At any 
time prior to the payment of the administrative penalty the individual charged with an offense may 
withdraw from participation in the procedure by refusing or failing to pay the administrative 
penalty, in which event the City may bring charges in accordance with law.  The City, in its 
discretion, may bring criminal or petty misdemeanor charges in the first instance.  

Section 2.  Notice and Payment:  In the discretion of the issuing officer, violations of the 
Ordinances enforceable though Administrative Penalty procedures may be enforced by issuing, on 
a form authorized by the City Attorney and identified as an Administrative Citation, a request to 
make payment for the violation directly to the City within ten (10) days of the violation. 

Section 3.  Amount of Payment:  The amount the administrative penalty payable for 
violation of each ordinance enforceable through this Administrative Penalty Ordinance shall be 
determined according to a schedule adopted by Ordinance of the City from time to time and shall 
be paid directly to the City.  In the event a party is charged with a subsequent violation within a 
twelve month period, the subsequent request for penalty payment shall be increased by 25% above 
the previous payment. 

Section 4.  Effect of Payment: Payment of the administrative penalty to the City within ten 
(10) days of the violation will preclude the City from bringing charges for the specific violation 
that is referenced in the Administrative Citation, but will not act to prevent or affect other criminal 
or petty misdemeanor charges that may result from the conduct of the person to whom an 
Administrative Citation is issued. 

Section 5.  Failure to Pay:  Failure to make payment of the penalty for the violation in the 
time specified may, in the discretion of the issuing officer in consultation with the City Attorney, 
result in prosecution consistent with applicable statutes and ordinances.  

Section 6.  Process.  The City shall create materials as necessary to provide recipients of 
an Administrative Citation with information related to the process for paying an Administrative 
Citation, the effect of payment of the penalty and the effect of failure by the recipient to pay the 
Administrative Citation penalty in the time specified. 

This ordinance shall take effect upon passage and publication of the ordinance or summary in 
accordance with law and the City of Detroit Lakes Charter. 

Exhibit 5H Return to Agenda



 
Passed and adopted by the City Council of the City of Detroit Lakes, Minnesota, this 13th day of 
February 2018.   

                         
       Matt Brenk, Mayor 
 
 
 
        
Glori French, City Clerk 
 
 
First Reading: January 9, 2018 
Seconded Reading: February 13, 2018 

 
 



Page 1 of 3 

 MONTHLY NUISANCE REPORTS 
-------------------------------- 

Monthly Activity: 02/01/18‐02/28/18 
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐ 

Color Legend:     Ongoing or extended deadline          set for public hearing          set for inspection next month  set for abatement 

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
INCIDENT #:     13687        
ORIG. DATE:  4/10/2017 
INCIDENT CODE: BLD-BLD MAINTENANCE 
PROPERTY: 327 ELIZABETH ST 

Incident Notes: 
Neighbor would like to stay anonymous, wanted to know if 327 Elizabeth was an approved rental. Caller doesn't like the bags set around the 
foundation of the building (garage) as it poses a fire hazard to other garages. Steve says it's been a unit for a very long time so it may possibly 
not have approval as a rental unit. Will set as priority rental inspection.  

4/10/2017 Drove by, obvious garage to dwelling unit conversion. Will discuss with Larry upon inspection and whether this was a legal rental 
unit.  
5/2/17 Inspection found non-compliant rental.  
5/3/17 Kelcey and Larry want all rentals to follow code and zoning ordinance. Letter sent - Renters have until June 30th to find new living 
quarters and landlord is no longer able to rent garage as a dwelling at 327 Elizabeth St.  
5/22/17 Joel Carlson (son of Laurel) met with Kelcey, Larry, and Priscilla to talk about options to rent property. Still have deadline of June 
30th to move renters out of garage.  
6/3/17: Letter from landlord stating they would like to appeal the revocation 
6/22/17: Hearing notice for July 11, 2017 sent if renters still residing in garage after June 30, 2017. 
6/30/17 Status: Renters still @ 327 Elizabeth St and 325 ½ Elizabeth St.  
7/12/17 Status: Laurel Carlson appealed the rental revocation but was unable to provide evidence the unit was rented prior to the adoption of 
the Zoning Ordinance. City Council voted not to reverse rental revocation and gave tenant four months to find new lodging. Deadline is 
December 31, 2017.  
7/28/17 Status: Met with Laurel Carlson regarding 327 rental. She found evidence the garage ‘cottage’ was used as a dwelling prior to 
1967. She has requested to be heard by the council to have a new rental license granted for the unit as a legal non-conforming use.  
8/8/17: Council granted New Rental License based on the evidence this property qualifies as a legal non-conforming use for the City Zoning 
Ordinance. The license is contingent the property is up to code by December 31, 2017. Will set up a time to re-inspect within the next two 
weeks to provide a complete list for Laurel Carlson to have brought up to code. 
Rental inspection done 01/26/18. Did not have smoke detector in bedroom and dwelling part of the building is wrapped in plastic which is 
against the building code. It must be removed by March 31, 2018 for rental to be compliant. 

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
INCIDENT #:     13995        
ORIG. DATE:  6/19/2017 
INCIDENT CODE: BLD- NUISANCE COMPL 
PROPERTY: 912 ROSSMAN AVE 

Incident Notes: NEIGHBOR FILED A COMPLAINT ABOUT THE PICKUP IN BACKYARD NOT MOVED, CARS IN THE DRIVEWAY NEVER BEEN 
MOVED. ALSO THERE IS JUNK BEHIND THE HOUSE, BEHIND THE LILAC BUSHES WEST SIDE FRONT YARD. THANKS LINDA. 
8/21/17:  Letter sent with Sept hearing notice if not cleaned up by August 31 
8/31/17: not cleaned up, set for Sept 12 public hearing  
9/15/17: City Council voted to abate, hand delivered letter and spoke with homeowner who stated her son will help her clean it up. Will need 
until October 31, 2017 to get garbage cleaned up. 
Status: Deadline extended to mid-November to clean up all but the temporary structures. Those must come down by July 31, 2018 or the City 
will abate. Will keep on the list until property is in full compliance 
Set for Re-Inspection 07/31/18 

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
INCIDENT #:     14429        
ORIG. DATE:  9/20/2017 
INCIDENT CODE: BLD-BLD MAINTENANCE 
PROPERTY: CP RAILWAY @ WEST AND HOLMES 

Incident Notes: Complaint of abandoned building behind 1011 West Ave along RR tracks. 
9/20/17 Inspected and there is a small white building engulfed in trees and brush. Sent an email via their website asking for a contact person. 
CPR Mailing address from Amy: 900-120 South 6th St Minneapolis, MN 55402. 
9/26/17: in contact with Scott Kujawa 612-904-6143U.S Real Estate Rep ROW Suite 700, 120 South 6th St Minneapolis 55402 

Exhibit 5I Return to Agenda



Page 2 of 3 
 

10/02/17: Spoke with Scott who noted he was in contact with the individual in charge of this region. He will pass on updates regarding a 
timeline as he receives them. 
11/22/17 Emailed Scott for an update, said he was following up with CP Engineering for a timeline on the removal of the trash. 

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
INCIDENT #:     14430                                                                                          
ORIG. DATE:  9/20/2017 
INCIDENT CODE: BLD- NUISANCE COMPL 
PROPERTY: 312 MAIN ST E 
 
Incident Notes: Report of an abandoned building that is infested with rats. Neighbor has a daycare and is concerned about the health and safety impact this 
infestation on her property and the children in her care. 
Status: Inspected from the street and the exterior of home is in poor condition. Will send a Property Maintenance Regulations letter and 
inquire about building on the back of property. 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
INCIDENT #:     14574                                                                                          
ORIG. DATE: 11/15/2017 
INCIDENT CODE: BLD- GARBAGE/JUNK 
PROPERTY: 708 RICHWOOD RD 
Incident Notes: 
 THERE IS A COMPLAINT ABOUT THE TRAILER FULL OF GARBAGE (ABOUT 50 BAGS) AND SOME ON THE GROUND.NOTHING BEING 
PICKED UP. ALSO THE NEIGHBOR SAID THAT SOMEONE IS LIVING OR STAYING IN THE GARAGE. THE PERSON IN THE GARAGE 
WAS LIVING IN HIS VAN UNTIL IT GOT COLD. THE OWNER DUSTIN WANG 841-1894 DOES NOT LIVE HERE HIS GIRLFRIEND FELICIA 
JOHNSON IS HERE. PLEASE CHECK 
THANKS LINDA (THE PERSON DID NOT WANT HER NAME ON COMPLAINT.) 
Status: On 12/1/17, I spoke with a gentleman fixing the front door who told me the garbage would be removed the next day (12/2). 
Trailer back. Letter sent with Deadline of Feb 9th to move trailer and junk. Hearing notice sent for Feb 13th if not in compliance 

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
INCIDENT #:     14582                                                                                          
ORIG. DATE: 11/20/2017 
INCIDENT CODE: BLD- NUISANCE COMPL 
PROPERTY: 1476, 1486, AND 1496 LONG LAKE DR 
 
Incident Notes: Neighbor called in a complaint regarding lots 1476, 86, and 96 on Long Lake Dr that they are not well maintained and storing items such as 
bricks and trash. 
Status: Will send letter with spring deadline to clean up vacant lots 
Inspected: snow covering items. Will review in spring after thaw. 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
INCIDENT #:     14595                                                                                          
ORIG. DATE: 11/29/2017 
INCIDENT CODE: BLD- NUISANCE COMPL 
PROPERTY: 300 SUMMIT AVE 
Incident Notes: NINA SMITH CALLED IN REGARDS TO 300 SUMMIT AVE. THEY ARE CONCERNED ABOUT THE CHIMNEY BEING SAFE, IT 
HAS BEEN WIRED UP AND NO STACK TO FLUTE OUT. THEY BURN WOODEN PALLETS FOR HEAT. ALLAN HONER OWNS HOUSE (HIS 
SISTER AND FAMILY LIVE HERE) THANKS LINDA 
Status: Inspected from the street and hard to say if chimney needs attention. The exterior of home is in poor condition.  
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
INCIDENT #:     14606                                                                                          
ORIG. DATE: 12/05/2017 
INCIDENT CODE: BLD- NUISANCE COMPL 
PROPERTY: 109 LAKE AVE 
 
Incident Notes: Neighbor called to report the property owner dropped off a fish house/shed type of 'structure' which is filled with garbage because he was 
cleaning up a different property. It has been there for over a month and the neighbors want it gone. This property is owned by Scott Lembke who cleaned up 
Minnesota Ave and Grant St because he received a notification from the City. 
Status: Letter and hearing notice sent to comply with deadline of Feb 9th to move junk from City Limits. 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
INCIDENT #:     14671                                                                                          
ORIG. DATE:  1/12/2018 
INCIDENT CODE: BLD-BLD MAINTENANCE 
PROPERTY: 664 SOUTH SHORE DR 
 
Incident Notes:  Larry received a report that 664 South Shore Dr is building a detached garage and a guest cottage without a building permit. 
01/16/18 Researched property and they do have an open permit to remove and replace garage. Nate will inspect to be sure the project 
matches what was approved on the permit. 

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
INCIDENT #:     14675                                                                                          
ORIG. DATE:  1/16/2018 



Page 3 of 3 
 

INCIDENT CODE: BLD- CAR/CAMPER 
PROPERTY: 331 WILLOW ST E 
Incident Notes: 
Report of car parked in the front yard.  
Status: Letter sent with February 13 hearing notice with deadline of Feb 9th to comply. 

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 



Page 1 of 6

VARIANCE/CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT 
STATUS REPORT 
February 13, 2018 

 B & W Properties of DL, LLC  –  1048 West Lake Drive  6-13-17
Request: Conditional Use Permit to allow a planned unit development with six single 

family homes at 1048 West Lake Drive 
Status: Conditional Use Permit granted with the following conditions: 

1. That the project not exceed 6 single family homes;
2. That the property be platted to show the proposed lot layout and provide for dedication of

utility easements and the West Lake Drive road right of way;
3. That the owner pay for a preliminary engineering report for water sewer and petition the

City of installation of this infrastructure;
4. That the Developer apply for a Land Disturbance Permit from the City and sign a

Stormwater Facilities Maintenance Agreement prior to issuance of a building permit;
5. That the Developer obtain any permits required from the Pelican River Watershed

District or the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency;
6. That the owner provide a development schedule for the project;
7. That the property owner association documents or deed restrictions provide that 50% of

the land area be preserved as open space and 20% of the land area be preserved as
useable open space;

8. That 2 parking spaces be provided per unit and ½ space per unit be provided for guest
parking;

9. That a Property Owner’s Association documents requiring mandatory membership be
approved by the City prior to issuance of a building permit;

10. That all buildings be setback at least 25 feet from the private drive;
11. That the distance between buildings be a minimum of 10 feet;
12. That one centrally located dock with 6 slips be allowed;
13. That the drives shall be approved by the City Engineer and the Fire Chief prior to

issuance of a building permit;
14. That the impervious surface coverage not exceed 25%

 Bob Spilman  –  1502 Randolph Road 6-13-17
Request: Conditional Use Permit to allow a 22 unit condominium in the Shoreland District 

at 1502 Randolph Road 
Status: Conditional Use Permit granted with the following conditions: 

1. That development in the Shoreland District be limited to 22 units and a height of 39 feet;
2. That the property be platted to show the proposed lots and provide for dedication of the

new road alignment and utility easements;
3. That a portion of Lemmon Road be vacated;
4. That the Developer needs to obtain clear title to a 16.5 foot strip of land that is currently

of unknown ownership;
5. That the owner pay for a preliminary engineering report for water sewer and streets and

petition the City of the installation of this infrastructure;
6. That the new Lemmon Road be constructed to City standards prior to issuance of a

building permit or vacation of the old road right of way.

Exhibit 5J Return to Agenda



Page 2 of 6 
 

7. That the Developer apply for a Land Disturbance Permit from the City prior to issuance 
of a building permit; 

8. That the Developer obtain any permits required from the Pelican River Watershed 
District; 

9. That the project be constructed as shown on the approved site plan;  
10. That property owner’s association documents or deed restrictions provide that 50% of  

the land area preserved as open space and 20% of the land area be preserved as useable 
open space; 

11. That 2 parking spaces be provided per unit and ½ space per unit be provided for guest 
parking; 

12. That a property owner’s association documents requiring mandatory membership be 
approved by the City prior to issuance of a building permit; 

13. That connection to City sewer and water is required; 
14. That the Owner will preserve a significant portion of the vegetation for screening and add 

plants for screening east of the realigned Lemmon Road;  
15. Any change in impervious surface over 20% requires Planning Commission approval;  

 
 Justin Skarie  – 303 Holmes Street West 6-13-17 

Request: Variance to allow a 23 foot setback from the intersection for a curb cut entrance at 
303 Holmes Street West 

Status: Variance granted to allow 10 parking spaces instead of the required 13 parking 
spaces and a Variance to allow a 23 foot setback from the intersection for a curb 
cut entrance at 303 Holmes Street West, subject to the following conditions: 

1. That the project be constructed as shown on the approved site plan; 
2. That the owners obtain the required Pelican River Watershed District Permit if one is 

required;   
3. That the owner provide a 6 foot high hedge on the west side of his parking lot starting 20 

feet south of the west lot line;   
4. That the project allow a curb cut access 23 feet from the intersection instead of 40 feet;  

 
 Brian Clark and Barb Molberg  – 1624 Long Bridge Rd 7-11-17 

Request: Request for a Variance to build a 14 x 34.5 foot deck with a 60 foot setback from 
the Ordinary High Water Mark at 1624 Long Bridge Road 

Status: The City Council hereby approves the requested variance, subject to the following 
conditions:   

1. That the walkway attached to the deck be removed and replaced with a deck or pervious 
surface;     

2. That the property owner provide on-site stormwater treatment for the impervious surface 
coverage on the lot that is in excess of 25 percent;   

 

 Hanzon Properties, Fireside LLC - 1462 East Shore Drive  08-08-17 
Request: Request for a Variance to exceed the impervious surface requirement and to allow 

less than a 75 foot setback from the Ordinary High Water Mark to allow 
construction of an addition to a building, a deck and a greenhouse at 1462 East 
Shore Drive 



Page 3 of 6 
 

Status: The City Council hereby approves the requested variance, subject to the following 
conditions:   

1. That the project be constructed as shown on the approved site plan; 
2. That the impervious surface coverage on the site not exceed 41%; 
3. That a total of 48 parking spaces be provided on site with the reduction of the serving 

space;  
4. That the owner provide the City with a survey showing that they comply with setbacks, 

impervious surface coverage and parking space requirements;  
5. That the owner provide vegetative screening (large trees and shrubs) of the deck, parking 

areas, garbage dumpsters, propane tanks and other outdoor accessories abutting 
residential properties;  

6. That the owner maintain the landscape areas in the Shore Impact Zone; 
7. That the owner obtain a Pelican River Watershed District Permit prior to issuance of a 

building permit;  
8. That the owner provide the City with a landscape plan that is approved by City staff; 
9. That the owner sign a Stormwater Facilities Maintenance Agreement prior to issuance of 

a building permit; 
10. That the owner provide for the capture of rain water from the roof;  

 
 Boys and Girls Club of Detroit Lakes: 150 Richwood Road 12-12-17 

Request: Request for a variance to build a 40 foot high building and a parking variance to 
allow 53 parking spaces to meet the parking requirement 

Status: The City Council hereby approves the requested variance, subject to the following 
conditions:   

1. That the facility be constructed as shown on the approved site plan;  
2. That the building be setback 30 feet from all lot lines; 
3. That a landscape buffer at least 6 feet high be provided between the North and East lot 

lines and the building;  
4. That the developer obtain a Land Disturbance Permit from the City prior issuance of a 

building permit.   
 

 Ron Royer: 616 West Lake Drive 12-12-17 
Request: Request for a variance to allow a twin home on 106 foot wide lot 
Status: The City Council hereby approves the requested variance, subject to the following 

conditions:     
1. That the owner construct and maintain a rain garden on the site, 
2. That the owner obtain site plan approval from the Planning Commission prior to issuance 

of a building permit.   
 

 Hanson Properties of Long Bridge,: 2000 Long Bridge Road 12-12-17 
Request: Request an amended Variance to allow an addition to a building with a 41 foot 

setback from the Ordinary High Water Mark and 36% impervious surface 
coverage to allow a 30 foot building height to construct a main floor, mezzanine 
addition, and a paved parking lot 

Status: The City Council hereby approves the requested variance, subject to the following 
conditions:     



Page 4 of 6 
 

1. That the building not exceed 2695 square feet on the main level plus an area for an 
elevator 10 x 10 feet plus a mechanical area.  The second floor mezzanine shall be 
limited to the following: 

a. A 784 square foot serving area. 
b. A 10 x 28 square foot area for bathrooms and storage. 
c. An uncovered 6 x 21 foot catwalk from the elevator to the serving area.  
d. A 10 x 19 foot walkway/seating area for access to a pervious stairway to 

provide a second exit for the second story mezzanine area.   
2. That the project be constructed as shown on the approved site plan.   
3. That the owner obtain a Pelican River Watershed District Permit prior to issuance of a 

building permit. 
4. That the impervious surface coverage not exceed 36%. 
5. That the owner construct 70 paved parking spaces for the restaurant portion of the 

development.  
6. That the building height not exceed 30 feet; except for the cupola which is 36 feet 8 

inches.   
7. That the owner obtain a land disturbance permit from the City and sign a Stormwater 

Facilities Maintenance Agreement prior to issuance of a building permit. 
8. That the owner install a 12 inch high berm along the shoreline between the lake and the 

restaurant.   
 

 Essentia Health/St. Mary’s : 1027 Washington 12-12-17 
Request: Request for a Conditional Use Permit to allow a helipad as part of the medical 

facilities campus 
Status: The City Council hereby approves the requested Conditional Use Permit, subject 

to the following conditions:     
1. That all the conditions from the Conditional Use Permit dated December 8, 2009, 

(Document # 582547) shall remain in full force and effect;  
2. That the 15 parking spaces to be eliminated by the helipad shall be constructed as shown 

on the approved site plan prior to construction of the helipad; 
3. The helipad shall meet or exceed all Federal Aviation Administration requirements for a 

helipad;  
4. A 4 foot high fence shall be constructed along Washington Avenue and Rotary Park. 
 

 Stonebrook Apartments, LLP: 226 Stone Creek Drive 12-12-17 
Request: Request for a Variance to allow planting of various trees and shrubs instead of a 6 

foot high fence or hedge between the “R-4” District and the “R-2” District 
Status: The City Council hereby approves the requested variance, subject to the following 

conditions:     
1. That the owners install a 6 foot high screening fence along the west property line.    
2. That the trees and shrubs be planted and maintained as shown on the approved site plan, 

dated September 22, 2017, and described as Option “C” 
 

 Tomlinson Schultz Partners, LLC: 839 South Shore Drive 1-9-18 
Request:  Request for a Conditional Use Permit to allow a Planned Unit Development of 15 

Twin Homes (30 Units Total) 



Page 5 of 6 
 

Status: The City Council hereby approved the requested Conditional Use Permit, subject 
to the following conditions: 

1. That the project not exceed 15 Twin Homes or 30 units total; 
2. That the property be platted to show the proposed lot layout and provide for dedication of 

utility easements; 
3. That the Developer apply for a Land Disturbance Permit from the City and sign a 

Stormwater Facilities  Maintenance Agreement prior to issuance of a building permit;  
4. That the Developer obtain any permits required from the Pelican River Watershed 

District or the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency; 
5. That the owner provide a development schedule for the project; 
6. That the property owner association documents or deed restrictions provide that 50% of 

the land area preserved as open space of 20% of the land area be preserved as useable 
open space as required by the Shoreland Ordinance; 

7. That 2 parking spaces be provided per unit and ½ space per unit be provided for guest 
parking; 

8. That a Property Owner’s Association documents requiring mandatory membership be 
approved by the City prior to issuance of a building permit; 

9.  That all buildings be setback at least 25 feet from the private drive; 
10. That the private drive be not less than a 22 foot wide paved surface and off-street parking 

is constructed as shown on the site plan; 
11. That the project be constructed generally as shown on the approved site plan accept as 

noted in condition #14; 
12. That connection to City sewer and water is required;  
13. That the impervious surface coverage in the Shoreland District not exceed 25%;  
14. All units must not exceed a height of 25 feet; 
15. No other accessory structures shall be added to the property that are in addition to the 

approved site plan.  
  

 Justin Scallon: 412 South Shore Drive 1-9-18 
Request:  Request for a Variance to allow a 37 ½ foot setback for the ordinary high water 

mark a 12 feet 6 inch setback from the road right of way and 34% impervious 
surface coverage to allow construction of a home on a substandard lot  

Status:  The City Council hereby approved the requested Variance, subject to the 
following conditions: 

1. That the project be constructed as shown on the approved site plan. 
2. That the property not exceed 31% impervious surface coverage.  
3. That the homeowner obtain the required Pelican River Watershed District permit prior to 

issuance of a building permit. 
4. That the owner maintain the existing ice ridge.  

 

LAND DISTURBANCE PERMITS 
 

 Land Disturbance Permit 2014-02 Golden Bay Shores 
 Land Disturbance Permit 2016-01 Antler Ridge: County Highway 22 Solmon Tract  
 Land Disturbance Permit 2017-01 Long Lake Business Center 
 Land Disturbance Permit 2017-02 Becker County Jail 



Page 6 of 6 
 

 Land Disturbance Permit 2017-04 Mid-Minnesota Federal Credit Union: 1405 Hwy 10 West 
 Land Disturbance Permit 2017-05 Airport: Airport Rd 
 Land Disturbance Permit 2017-06 Hanson Properties of Long Bridge: 2000 Long Bridge Rd 
 Land Disturbance Permit 2017-07 Stonebrook Apartments: 226 Stone Creek Drive 
 Land Disturbance Permit 2017-08 B&W Properties of DL, LLC: 1048 West Lake Drive 

 



Type of Permit Quantity Value Quantity Value Quantity Value Quantity Value

Single Family  (New) 1 400,000$      1 400,000$      0 0 0 $0

Multi-Family Residential (New) 0 $0 0 $0 0 $0 0 $0

Commercial Buildings (New) 0 $0 0 $0 0 $0 0 $0

Residential Remodel & Repair 7 $231,476 7 $231,476 7 $339,125 6 145,400$      

Commercial Remodel & Repair 1 $20,000 1 $20,000 5 $234,131 5 238,127$      

Residential Garages (New) 0 $0 0 $0 0 $0 0 $0

Shed 0 $0 0 $0 0 $0 0 $0

Other Permits 0 $0 0 $0 0 $0 3 8,250$    

  TOTAL BUILDING PERMITS 9 $651,476 9 $651,476 12 $573,256 14 $391,777

Jan-16Jan-17Jan-18 Jan-18

BUILDING REPORT
13-Feb-18

Council Report

Exhibit 5K Return to Agenda





Exhibit 6D Return to Agenda



Exhibit 6E
Return to Agenda



January 31, 2018 

Dear City of Detroit Lakes Board Members: 

I am currently in the final planning stages of our 6th Annual Tough Laker event that the Detroit Lakes 

Community and Cultural Center operates down at the City Beach, Park and Pavilion area. The date this 

year is Sunday, June 24th.  

I received a letter a while back stating that we would no longer be able to get the Pavilion at a “non-

profit” rate. I have tried very hard to figure out how I could make this work without raising the price of 

the event so high than I wouldn’t get many participants. I have come up with the conclusion that I can’t. 

This event is one that is loved by many parents, grandparents and kids.  We started with 130 registrants 

our first year and last year we had approximately 240 kids run this course.  I have wanted to keep it a 

low cost event so that we can have more participants enjoying the obstacles. After everything is done 

and paid for, with the cost of the Pavilion, I will unfortunately not break even for the event. 

We have done it many different ways as far as the Pavilion goes in the past.  The first year we got lucky 

and no one rented it I believe. The second and third years they were rented for the evening and neither 

groups really crossed paths. The fourth year we shared the space with a family reunion which worked 

out great because they joined in on the fun.  So the first four years we didn’t even rent the Pavilion, but 

now since it has been more popular and the hotel is there I am sure that space is more valuable.  The 

main thing that we need is the space surrounding the Pavilion, we don’t even use the building itself.   

We paid a $215 rental fee last year and the deposit was waived, this year the city ais asking for $700 and 

a $600 deposit. My question is if we can somehow come to an agreement and allow us to get a “non-

profit” rate for this year?  We love having the event down there and it has become my “baby” in a way.  

It’s a great kick off to the July 4th week and holiday time for many families that come to the area. The 

City of DL has been wonderful to us in allowing us to have it on the city beach and park.  Tom and his 

crew have helped us out every year and made sure that it all went off without a hitch. The Edgewater 

apartments are great with putting up with us for a Sunday morning as well. I love listening to the 

parents and kids afterwards of how much fun they had and they can’t wait for the next year. 

Thank you in advance for your consideration of this situation. 

Cordially, 

Sallie Eikren 

Aquatics & Wellness Director 

Detroit Lakes Community and Cultural Center 

218-844-4221 ext 113/sallie@dlccc.org 

Exhibit 6F Return to Agenda



RESOLUTION NO. 2018- 

IN THE MATTER OF SUPPORINTING THE SP0302-81 TRAIL LINK PROJECT 

 WHEREAS, The City of Detroit Lakes has a great interest in developing and connecting 
local trails to provide more recreational opportunities for those that live, play, work and visit the 
Detroit Lakes area.  

 WHEREAS, The SP0302-81 Trail Link Project will provide a .3 mile connecting link to 
the Co. Hwy 54/Hwy 10 intersection and the Heartland Trail/underpass and represents a next 
step in developing the trail spur that will eventually connect Detroit Mountain Recreation Area 
and Mountain View Recreation Area with the Heartland Trail.  

 WHEREAS, The estimated cost of the SP0302-81 Trail Link Project is $150,600 which 
requires a 25% match of $37,650 that needs to be provided for the project.  

 WHEREAS, The City of Detroit Lakes as a partner in the Trail Link Project, would 
provide 50% of the needed match amount or $18,825 while the County provides the other half 
($18,825).  

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED That the Detroit Lakes City Council, 
approves partnering with Becker County on the SP0302-81 Trail Link Project and will provide a 
50% share of the project match equaling $18,825.  

Duly adopted this 13th day of February, 2018, at Detroit Lakes, MN. 

      CITY COUNCIL 
      Detroit Lakes, Minnesota 

ATTEST: 

/s/          Kelcey Klemm               /s/    Matt Brenk 
              Kelcey Klemm Matt Brenk 
           City Administrator Mayor  

State of Minnesota     ) 
            ) ss 

City of Detroit Lakes   ) 

I, the undersigned being the duly appointed and qualified City Administrator for the City of 
Detroit Lakes, State of Minnesota, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct copy 
of a Resolution passed, adopted, and approved by the City Council at a meeting held February 
13, 2018, as recorded in the record of proceedings. 

 ______________________________
Kelcey Klemm, City Administrator 

Exhibit 6G Return to Agenda



1 

DATE:  January 31, 2018 

TO:  The Detroit Lakes City Council 

FROM:  Guy Fischer, Becker County EDA/Parks and Recreation 

RE:  SP0302-81 Trail Link Project Overview 

Federal Grant funding is being requested for a .3 mile trail connection project that will link the 
Co. Hwy 54/Hwy 10 intersection with the Heartland Trail/underpass.  

With a projected cost estimate of $150,600, the County seeks to partner with the City and split 
the 25% total match cost of $37,650 equaling $18,825 apiece.  

The County Hwy Engineer, City staff/consultant and MNDOT staff/consultant have provided 
their help in filling-in some of the needed informational gaps of the application/process and their 
efforts are much appreciated. Here is the breakdown of preliminary project costs provided by 
Apex Engineering:  

DETAILED CONSTRUCTION COST ESTIMATE  
Description  Quantity Unit Unit Cost  Total

Mobilization  1 LS $15,000.00  $15,000.00

Clearing  4 TREE $300.00  $1,200.00

Grubbing  4 TREE $200.00  $800.00

Common Excavation (P)  750 CY $15.00  $11,250.00

Common Borrow (CV) (P)  750 CY $30.00  $22,500.00

Machine Time  5 HOUR $500.00  $2,500.00

Aggregate Base (CV) Class 5 Modified  375 CY $35.00  $13,125.00

Type SP 9.5 Wearing Cou9rse Mix (3,B)  310 TON $125.00  $38,750.00

12” RC Pipe Culvert Class III  35 LF $50.00  $1,750.00

12” RC Safety Apron  1 EACH $500.00  $500.00

Traffic Control  1 LS $7,500.00  $7,500.00

Traffic Sign with Post  3 EACH $175.00  $525.00

Relocate Sign  2 EACH $250.00  $500.00

Temporary Erosion Control  1 LS $2,500.00  $2,500.00

Common Topsoil Borrow  200 CY $30.00  $6,000.00

Turf Establishment  1 LS $12,500.00  $12,500.00

Subtotal: $136,900.00
Undeveloped Design Details & Construction Contingency: 10%  $13,690.00

Project Total: $150,600.00

The County will provide ongoing maintenance of this trail segment and the Ultra snowmobile 
club has committed to providing ongoing winter trail maintenance for this segment.  

On the following page is a project map (provided by Bolton & Menk at the request of MNDOT) 
of the potential trail layout.   

Exhibit 6G Return to Agenda



2 
 

 
 
Per the County’s recent trail planning study for this area, four trail segments were identified that 
comprised a spur connecting the Heartland Trail with Detroit Mountain Recreation Area and 
Mountain View Recreation Area. This project is segment 1, the Co. Hwy 54/Hwy 10 intersection 
is segment 2 (to be performed and paid for by MNDOT in 2019/2020), which leaves 1.5 miles of 
trail (Segments 3 and 4) remaining to complete the trail spur project.  
 
In seeking to partner with the City on this project, the County requests that the City consider 
paying half of the project match which would total $18,825 and provide a letter of support and/or 
resolution referencing its support of the match, grant application and partnership with the County 
on the project. The grant application due date for this grant is February 28th. . If the grant funds 
are awarded the project must be completed by June 2020. 
 
Additionally the County will also apply for the State Trails connection grant in an effort to 
increase the chances of receiving grant funding for this trail link project The State grant is due 
March 30th.  
 
Thank you for your consideration and partnership on this project.  



RESOLUTION NO. 2018 

IN THE MATTER OF APPROVING PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS  
AND ORDERING ADVERTISEMENT FOR BIDS FOR  

THE LONG LAKE ANNEXATION – PHASE 4 
SANITARY SEWER AND WATERMAIN IMPROVEMENTS 

WHEREAS, pursuant to a resolution passed by the Council on November 14, 2017, the City 
Engineer has prepared plans and specifications on the proposed improvements on the Long Lake 
Annexation – Phase 4 Sanitary Sewer and Watermain Improvements and presented such plans 
and specifications to the Council for approval. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED By the Council of the City of Detroit Lakes, 
Minnesota: 

1) Such plans and specifications, a copy of which is on file in the City Administrator’s
Office and made a part hereof, are hereby approved, and

2) The City Administrator shall prepare and cause to be inserted in the official paper an
advertisement for bids upon the making of such improvement under such approved plans
and specifications.  The advertisement shall be published twice, shall specify the work to
be done, shall state that bids will be received and be considered by the Council.

Passed and adopted this 13th day of February, 2018. 

Approved this 13th day of April, 2018. 

____________________ 
Matt Brenk, Mayor 

______________________ 
Glori French, City Clerk 

Exhibit 6H Return to Agenda



RESOLUTION NO. 2018 

IN THE MATTER OF APPROVING PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS  
AND ORDERING ADVERTISEMENT FOR BIDS FOR  

THE LAKE FOREST 7TH ADDITION 
STREET AND UTILITY IMPROVEMENTS 

WHEREAS, pursuant to a resolution passed by the Council on January 9, 2017, the City 
Engineer has prepared plans and specifications on the proposed improvements on the Lake 
Forest 7th Addition Street and Utility Improvements and presented such plans and specifications 
to the Council for approval. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED By the Council of the City of Detroit Lakes, 
Minnesota: 

1) Such plans and specifications, a copy of which is on file in the City Administrator’s
Office and made a part hereof, are hereby approved, and

2) The City Administrator shall prepare and cause to be inserted in the official paper an
advertisement for bids upon the making of such improvement under such approved plans
and specifications.  The advertisement shall be published twice, shall specify the work to
be done, shall state that bids will be received and be considered by the Council.

Passed and adopted this 13th day of February, 2018. 

Approved this 13th day of April, 2018. 

____________________ 
Matt Brenk, Mayor 

______________________ 
Glori French, City Clerk 

Exhibit 6I Return to Agenda



RESOLUTION NO. 2018- 

IN THE MATTER OF ACCEPTING A PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING 
REPORT AND SETTING A HEARING FOR  

FOR HIGHLAND ESTATES (LEMMON ROAD) 
STREET AND UTILITY IMPROVEMENTS 

WHEREAS, Apex Engineering, submitted the Preliminary Engineering Report 
regarding the Highland Estates (Lemmon Road) Street and Utility Improvements.  The 
Preliminary Engineering Report was received by the Council on February 13, 2018; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED By the Council of the City of 
Detroit Lakes, Minnesota: 

1. The Council will consider project in accordance with the report; and the
assessment of abutting or benefitting property for all or a portion of the cost of
the improvement pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 429, at an estimated
total cost of the improvement of estimated cost of $347,600.

2. A public hearing shall be held on such sanitary sewer and watermain
improvements for Highland Estates (Lemmon Road) on the 13th day of March,
2018, in the Council Chambers of the City Administration Building at 5:00
PM and the City Administrator shall give mailed and published notice of such
hearing as required by law.

Passed and adopted this 13th day of February, 2018. 

Approved this 13th day of February, 2018. 

____________________ 
Matt Brenk, Mayor 

_____________________________ 
Glori French, City Clerk 

Exhibit 6J Return to Agenda



Preliminary Engineering Report 
Highland Estates | Street & Utility Improvements
City of Detroit Lakes, MN 

Exhibit 6J



Certification 

I hereby certify that this plan, specification or report was prepared by me or under my 

direct supervision and that I am a duly Licensed Professional Engineer under the laws of 

the State of Minnesota. 

______________________________     _Jon A. Pratt ____________________ 
Signature  Typed or Printed Name 

   _46267_____________________ __February , 2018____       ________ 
Date License Number  

February 2018 

Apex Engineering Group, Inc. 
920 McKinley Avenue 

Detroit Lakes, MN 56501

Certification
Highland Estates | Street & Utility Improvements 

City of Detroit Lakes, Minnesota 
Apex Project Number 17.178.0102 

___________________________________________________________________________________
natttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttuuuuuuuuuuuuuruuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuu e  



Peliminary Engineering Report:  
Highland Estates | Street & Utility Improvements 

Page I      i 

Table of Contents

1.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND .......................................................................................... 1 

1.1 Purpose and Scope of Report ................................................................................... 1 

1.2 Project Location and Description of Existing Conditions ............................................ 2 

1.3 Anticipated Land Use and Development................................................................... 3

1.4 Related Reports and Plans ....................................................................................... 3 

2.0 EXISTING CONDITIONS AND PROJECT NEED ................................................................................ 3 

2.1 Sanitary Sewer ......................................................................................................... 3 

2.2 Water Distribution ................................................................................................... 4 

2.3 Stormwater Collection and Drainage ........................................................................ 4 

2.4 Street ...................................................................................................................... 4 

3.0 PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS ................................................................................................... 5 

3.1 Design Standards ..................................................................................................... 5 

3.2 Sanitary Sewer ......................................................................................................... 6 

3.3 Water Distribution ................................................................................................... 7 

3.3.1 Typical Pressures with Domestic Demands ................................................................8 

3.3.2 Residual Pressure with Fire Flow Demands................................................................8 

3.4 Street ...................................................................................................................... 8 

3.5 Stormwater Collection and Treatment ..................................................................... 9 

3.6 Lighting .................................................................................................................. 10 

4.0 OTHER DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION CONSIDERATIONS ............................................................... 10

4.1 Permits .................................................................................................................. 10 

4.2 Easements & Right-of-Way (ROW) ......................................................................... 11 

4.3 Implementation/Staging of Improvements & Schedule .......................................... 11 

5.0 OPINION OF COST SUMMARY ............................................................................................... 12 

6.0 FINANCING ...................................................................................................................... 13 

6.1 Assessable Costs .................................................................................................... 13 

6.2 Allocation of Assessable Costs ................................................................................ 14 

6.3 Undeveloped Properties & Deferments .................................................................. 15 

APPENDIX A – EXHIBIT DRAWINGS ............................................................................................... 17 



Peliminary Engineering Report:  
Highland Estates | Street & Utility Improvements 

 Page I      ii 

List of Figures 

Figure 1:  Project Location Map .................................................................................................................... 2 

 

 

List of Tables 

 
Table 1:  Preliminary Project Schedule ....................................................................................................... 12 

Table 2:  Opinion of Cost – Proposed Improvements ................................................................................. 12 

Table 3:  Distribution of Project Costs ........................................................................................................ 14 

Table 4:  Estimated Special Assessments .................................................................................................... 14 

Appendix 

 

Appendix A – Exhibit Drawings  



Peliminary Engineering Report:  
Highland Estates | Street & Utility Improvements 

 Page I 1 

1.0 Introduction and Background  

Highland Estates is a new plat/subdivision located northeast of the intersection of Highland Drive and 

Randolph Road.  The property owner, Robert Spilman (developer), is proposing to develop the property 

with a four story, 22 unit, and condominium complex.  The developer’s initial plans include only the 

construction of the single condominium complex.  However, there is potentially space within the 

subdivision for a second future complex or several single or multi-family housing lots.  The developer 

also owns property directly north of the subdivision that currently contains a fourplex apartment 

building.  He has indicated that he would also like to extend municipal infrastructure to this building, if 

possible.  The City of Detroit Lakes has received a petition from the developer for annexation of the 

property within the subdivision and extension of municipal sewer and water utilities to the site.   

 

The City’s municipal sanitary sewer collection system and water distribution system are currently in-

place along Randolph road, along the southern portion of the project site.  Extension of this 

infrastructure into the Highland Estates subdivision, and possibly further north, appears possible.   

 

The subdivision was annexed into the City in the fall of 2017. City policy requires that all properties 

serviced by the municipal sanitary sewer and water system be within the corporate limits of the City. 

Further annexation would be required if sewer and water utilities are extended to the fourplex property. 

1.1 Purpose and Scope of Report  

The City of Detroit Lakes has authorized Apex Engineering Group to develop a Preliminary 

Engineering Report (PER) and preliminary design recommendations for sanitary sewer, watermain, 

street, and related improvements that would provide service to the Highland Estates subdivision.  

The primary scope of this report is infrastructure improvement to the Highland Estates 

subdivision.  However, such improvements may have implications or provide opportunity on 

surrounding areas, specifically north of the project site.  The purpose of this report is to examine 

the options and requirements for extension of municipal sanitary sewer and water distribution 

systems into this area.  It will also evaluate and address other infrastructure improvements that 

are either required or recommended as part of a broader improvement project.  Often it is 

necessary or more cost effective to make improvements to other infrastructure, such as streets, 

drainage, or other elements, in conjunction with underground utility improvements.    

The scope of this PER will include a review of existing sanitary sewer, water distribution, 

stormwater collection and treatment, streets, grading, and lighting.  This study will review the 

existing conditions and project needs, examine improvement options along with recommended 

improvements, easement needs, project costs, and summary of funding/financing.  The purpose 

of this study includes evaluation of the improvement needs/options, cost effectiveness, feasibility, 

and make preliminary design recommendations that can be utilized as a basis and guidelines for 

the final design process.   



Peliminary Engineering Report:  
Highland Estates | Street & Utility Improvements 

 Page I 2 

1.2 Project Location and Description of Existing Conditions 

The project area included in the scope of this study includes the Highland Estates subdivision.  The 

subdivision is located northeast of the Highland Drive and Randolph Road Intersection. The 

subdivision includes approximately 5.5 acres of property and currently only two lots.  The 

northern half of the property is unplatted, but could be subdivide into five to eight lots depending 

on use and size.  Figure No. 1 below illustrates the project location and area.   

Figure 1:  Project Location Map 

 

The project area has mild topography and generally slopes to the north and to the south from the 

high point located near the mid-point of the property.  There is approximately eight feet of 

elevation drop from the high point to the low point on the property.   

The project area is somewhat rural in nature and was outside the City limits, until it was annexed 

in the fall of 2017.  Currently the property is undeveloped.  Two residential homes were removed 

from the site within the last year.  Adjacent property generally consists of single-family residential 

and undeveloped properties, ranging in size from one to four acres.  There is a fourplex apartment 

to the north of the site and an assisted living facility located directly southeast of the site.   

Soils are anticipated to be predominantly granular, within hydrologic soil group A and B.  Based on 

general observations, and proximity to lakes and wetlands, groundwater is generally anticipated 

to be more than 15 feet below ground surface. At this depth, groundwater is not anticipated to be 

a factor for underground utility installation.  Soil borings will be required during the design process 

to further confirm subgrade soil characteristics and groundwater elevations.   



Peliminary Engineering Report:  
Highland Estates | Street & Utility Improvements 

 Page I 3 

1.3 Anticipated Land Use and Development  

The developer’s immediate intention is to construct a 22 unit condominium complex on the 

southern portion of the subdivision site.  He has indicated that the north portion of the site may 

be developed with either a smaller condominium complex or other multi-family units, such as twin 

homes.  It is conceivable that the north portion of the subdivision be developed with single-family 

homes, although this is not the current intension.   

The developer has also indicated that he plans to expand the current fourplex unit north of the 

subdivision with addition units.  He would like sewer and water infrastructure extended to this site 

as well but has not yet made a formal request to the City for this.   

The property lying east of the subdivision consists of large rural lots.  It is not anticipated, within 

the foreseeable future, that these will be annexed into the city.  The property lying west of 

Highland drive is currently outside the corporate limits.  However, it is likely this would be 

annexed into the City within the next five to 10 years.  Most of this property is directly adjacent to 

the City and would be nearly surrounded by the limits if the developer requests annexation of 

additional property in the area that he owns.    

1.4 Related Reports and Plans 

Several sources of information were utilized in the development of this report.  These include:  

Historical records, as-built drawings and drawings provided by the City of Detroit Lakes 

Visual field investigation and observations 

Discussion with City staff and developer 

City GIS database 

Preliminary site plan/layout prepared by the developer and submitted by the City of 

Detroit Lakes.  

2.0 Existing Conditions and Project Need 

The following sections outline the need and purpose of the project along with the conditions of existing 

City infrastructure within or adjacent to the project area.  The information contained in the subsequent 

sections was derived from review of existing record drawings, as-built plans, City utility maps, field 

investigation, and discussion with City staff.  Existing infrastructure is depicted in Exhibit No. 2, located 

in the Appendix of this report.   

2.1 Sanitary Sewer 

There is currently no sanitary sewer collection system within the subdivision or along Highland 

Drive.  The existing sanitary sewer collection system is located along Randolph Road, along the 

southern portion of the subdivision.  This sewer consists of an eight (8)-inch PVC main and is 

approximately 11 feet deep at this location.  This depth provides some ability for an extension into 

the subdivision or along the Highland Drive.  There are two six (6)-inch service laterals stub from 

this main to the adjacent portion of the subdivision.    



Peliminary Engineering Report:  
Highland Estates | Street & Utility Improvements 

 Page I 4 

It was installed in the 2006 in conjunction with infrastructure improvements to the Lake Breeze 

Estates subdivision, further east on Randolph Road.  This portion of the collection system is 

expected to be in good condition with no apparent conditional or capacity deficiencies within the 

immediate downstream collection system.   

The collection system in this area ultimately discharges to Lift Station No. 25, located near the 

intersection of Randolph Road and Warnake Road.  The lift station was installed in 1993 in 

conjunction with the annexation and infrastructure improvements around Big Detroit Lake.  It 

consists of a typical duplex submersible pump station, commonly constructed within the City.   

2.2 Water Distribution 

There is currently no water distribution system within the subdivision or along Highland Drive.  

However, there is existing 12-inch PVC watermain located along Randolph Road.  There is record 

of a service lateral from this main to a former home that was removed from the subdivision 

property.  It is assumed that this a one (1)-inch service line.     

This portion of the water distribution system was installed in 1993 in conjunction with the 

annexation and infrastructure improvements around Big Detroit Lake.  This portion of the water 

distribution system is expected to be in good condition with no apparent conditional or capacity 

deficiencies.  However, system pressures may be lower than typical due to the high elevation of 

this location.  This information has not yet been verified.     

2.3 Stormwater Collection and Drainage 

There is no formal stormwater collection or treatment system within the project area.  Drainage 

collection and control is primarily accomplished with ditches and culverts.  The site generally 

drains overland to the Highland Drive or to the southern portion of the subdivision.  There appears 

to be a small wetland located in a low area along the eastern edge of the site.  It is unclear if this is 

a natural wetland or just a low-lying area that is periodically saturated.   

2.4 Street 

Lemmon Road is currently aligned though the southern portion of the subdivision.  It terminates 

(dead-end) just east of the subdivision.    The street provides access to about three homes and has 

very little traffic.   This roadway consists of a +/- 20 foot-wide rural section (no curb and gutter), 

with an aggregate surface.  The Lemmon Road alignment is in direct conflict with the proposed 

condominium complex.   

Highland Drive and Randolph Road border the southern and western side of the subdivision.  Both 

are +/- 26 foot-wide, rural section roadways.  There are surface and geometric deficiencies on 

both streets.  The intersection of Highland Drive and Randolph Road contains an undesirable 

skew, creating poor sight lines.  Randolph Road is under the jurisdiction of the City.   

It is unclear if the abutting portion of Highland Drive is under City or Lakeview Township’s 

jurisdiction.  It is situated on the border of the cooperate limits.  Ownership is likely joint.   



Peliminary Engineering Report:  
Highland Estates | Street & Utility Improvements 

 Page I 5 

Traffic volumes on these street is likely in the range of 2,000 to 3,000 vehicles per day, however, 

actual traffic counts have not been completed.  Traffic volumes on Randolph Road, and potentially 

Highland Drive, and anticipated to increase in the near future.  MnDOT and the City are currently 

developing a traffic/signal improvement project at TH 10/Kris Street and TH 10/CSAH 54 

intersection.  These improvements will result in additional traffic on Randolph Road.  In response 

to the increase, Randolph Road is planned for reconstruction in 2019.  These improvements will 

also include a minor realignment of the Randolph/Highland intersection, to eliminate the skewed 

intersection.   

3.0 Proposed Improvements 

In order to develop the Highland Estates subdivision with condominiums and/or other multi-family 

housing, it will be necessary to make various infrastructure improvements. The following sections 

outline the proposed and necessary improvements.  The proposed improvements are outlined in Exhibit 

Nos. 3 and 4, located in the Appendix.   

 

In many cases, several options and alternatives were considered for the alignment and configuration of 

the proposed streets and utilities.  The following may contain a brief overview of some of these options, 

but primarily focuses on the recommended alternatives.   

3.1 Design Standards 

Various design standards, practices, and regulatory guidelines will be utilized for preliminary 

recommendations.   These should be applied to the final design of the proposed improvements.  

The following summarizes the most applicable regulatory design standards. 

Sanitary Sewer: Design will be in accordance with the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency 

(MPCA) and the Ten States Standards for Wastewater Facilities.   

Watermain: Design will be in accordance with the Minnesota Department of Health (MDH), 

Ten States Standards for Water Works, and general City design practices.   

Street: Streets will be designed and constructed in accordance with general City standards 

and typical practices. 

Stormwater Treatment:  All stormwater treatment will be designed in accordance with the 

Pelican River Watershed District (PRWD), the City’s stormwater ordinance (MS4 

requirements), and Minnesota Pollution Control (MPCA) requirements.   

Storm Sewer (if needed): Design will be in accordance with MNDOT state aid drainage 

design manual for a three-year, 24-hour storm event.   

 



Peliminary Engineering Report:  
Highland Estates | Street & Utility Improvements 

 Page I 6 

3.2 Sanitary Sewer 

The existing sanitary sewer on Randolph Road has sufficient depth to provide service to the initial 

(southern) phase of the subdivision containing condominium complex.  No significant 

improvements to the sewer collection system are required to provide service to this facility.  There 

is currently a six (6)-inch sewer service lateral in the vicinity of the proposed condominium 

complex.  This is of sufficient size and depth to provide service to a facility of this size.  Both of 

these aspects should be field verified prior to construction.  Connection of the facility to this 

service lateral can be completed as part of the developer’s site improvements for the 

condominium construction.   

There is still a need to construct or make provisions for sewer service to the remaining portion of 

the subdivision, and/or area surrounding the site.  One option is to extend sewer north from the 

end of the existing system to the realigned Lemmon Road, then west along Lemmon Road, and 

then north along Highland Drive.  This is a viable option but would require the sewer to be built 

across the subdivision in easements, until it reached Lemmon Road.  It results in the installation of 

significant sewer extension, with portions that may or may not be utilized, depending on future 

development in the north portion of the subdivision.  It is more desirable to keep the sewer 

collection system aligned along road Right-of-Ways (ROW).   

The second, and recommended option, includes the extension of the existing sewer west along 

Randolph Road, then north along Highland Drive.  Extension of the sewer along this alignment 

would allow for gravity sewer service to properties along the southern 500-feet of Highland Drive, 

including the fourplex owned by the developer.   

It is unclear, at this time, if sewer will need to be extended south from Highland Drive, along 

Lemmon Road, to provide service to the north portion of the subdivision.  If a second 

condominium complex is constructed in this portion, the facility could likely be serviced with a 

single service lateral from Highland Drive.  The estimated depth of sewer on Highland Drive would 

be sufficient to provide service to such a facility (a basement or below grade parking garage may 

require a lift pump).  This would eliminate the need to extend a sanitary sewer along the western 

portion of Lemmon Road.   

If this area is developed with smaller multi-family dwellings, such as twin homes, a sewer 

extension would be required along Lemmon Road, as illustrated in Exhibit No. 4.  Similarly, this 

portion of sanitary sewer could be installed at some future date, along the north side of Lemmon 

Road.  The new street (Lemmon Road) could be shifted to the southern portion of the ROW during 

construction, leaving enough space within the northern portion of the ROW, to construct a 

sanitary sewer extension in the future, once development plans have been solidified.  It should be 

noted that the estimated depth of the sewer may not be capable of providing gravity service to 

traditional basements in all locations in this portion of the subdivision.  This is dependent on a 

number of factors that are not yet known.  The developer has indicated that he would likely utilize 

slab-on-grade structures in this area.   

  



Peliminary Engineering Report:  
Highland Estates | Street & Utility Improvements 

 Page I 7 

For purposes of this report it is assumed that the sanitary sewer would be installed along both 

Highland Drive and Lemmon Road, as illustrated in Exhibit No. 4.  This scenario provides the best 

assurance that sewer service can be provided to the entire subdivision, under most development 

scenarios.  Again, the sewer extension along Lemmon Road could possibly be eliminated if 

development plans accommodate.   

There is limited ability for the proposed sanitary sewer to be extended beyond the area covered in 

the scope of this report.  The area east of the subdivision, if ever annexed, would like be serviced 

by a sewer extension from Huron Drive.  The sanitary sewer within the scope of this report does 

not have the depth required to provide service to this area. 

The proposed sanitary sewer will consist of eight (8)-inch PVC mains and precast concrete 

manholes.  This size pipe will provide adequate capacity for the anticipated service area of this 

system.  Four (4)-inch or six (6)-inch PVC service laterals will be installed from the sewer main to 

the edge of the adjacent properties.  Cleanout assemblies will be installed on each service lateral 

at or near the edge of the ROW.  Service laterals will be placed in location along the developed 

properties that allow for connection to the existing home or septic tank.  Property owners will be 

consulted to assist in determining this location.  Along undeveloped lots, service laterals will 

generally be placed in the center of the lots.  It will be the individual property owner’s obligation 

to make the final connection from the service lateral stub to the home or existing sewer/septic 

line.   

Sewage collected by the proposed sanitary sewer will ultimately flow to the Randolph Road 

collection system and ultimately be discharged to Lift Station No. 25, near Warnake Road.  There 

are no noted deficiencies with this lift station, other than it is about 25 years old.  The added 

sewer effluent from this project area is minimal and is not anticipated to create any issues with 

the immediate downstream collection system or lift station.  

3.3 Water Distribution 

Options for extension of the water distribution system into this area are similar to the discussion 

presented above for the sanitary sewer.  Ultimately it is most cost effective to install the 

watermain along the same alignments as the sanitary sewer.   Accordingly, it is recommended that 

the proposed watermain extension follow the sanitary sewer.  This will result in the extension of 

watermain north along Highland Drive and south along Lemmon Road, as illustrated in Exhibit No. 

4.   

The watermain extension along Lemmon Road is also dependent on development needs.  Smaller 

multi-family housing, such as twin-homes, will require a watermain extension along Lemmon 

Road.  This could be installed at the time of the street construction or at some future date, along 

the northern side of the street.  If both the sanitary sewer and watermain are installed in the 

future, along the north side of Lemmon Road, it is recommended that the City require the 

developer provide a utility easement along the northern ROW of Lemmon Road.  This would 

ensure there is adequate space to construct these utilities after the street has been constructed.   



Peliminary Engineering Report:  
Highland Estates | Street & Utility Improvements 

 Page I 8 

The proposed water distribution system improvements will consist of eight (8)-inch and 12-inch 

PVC mains, hydrants, and isolation gate valves.   Water service laterals will be extended from the 

mains to the edge of adjacent properties along the project corridor.  Services will likely include 

one (1)-inch laterals to adjacent residential properties larger laterals to multi-family properties.      

There is a possibility that the proposed watermain would be extended beyond the project area for 

future development, particularly north of the project area.  The proposed watermain size would 

be capable of providing adequate service to this area.   

The proposed improvements will result in a dead-end watermain at the northern end of North 

Ridge Road. Dead-end mains in distribution systems should generally be avoided if possible.  

Dead-ends can result in stagnant water and poor residual chlorine levels.  Frequent hydrant 

flushing or bleed lines need to be installed to allow sufficient turnover in the distribution system, if 

there is not sufficient demand on this portion of the system.   

3.3.1 Typical Pressures with Domestic Demands 
There is no defined standard for acceptable pressure within a water distribution system. 

However, pressures between 40 psi and 80 psi are generally considered acceptable for 

municipal water distribution systems, under typical domestic demands.  It is estimated 

that pressures in the distribution system near the project area are in the range of 45 to 

50 psi, which is generally considered acceptable.  However, the topography in this area 

is somewhat higher than a majority of the distribution system.  Further testing and or 

analysis with of the City’s water distribution model should be completed during the final 

design process to further verify these estimates.   

3.3.2 Residual Pressure with Fire Flow Demands 
It is recommended that pressures within a water distribution system never fall below 20 

psi, even during a fire flow demand scenario.  Fire flow and associated residual pressure 

is not anticipated to be of concern for this subdivision.  However, this area is on the 

periphery of the distribution system and is somewhat elevated.  These factors could 

reduce fire flow and/or residual pressured.  Further verification and review of fire flows 

and residual pressure will be completed in the final design process.   

3.4 Street

The proposed construction of the 22-unit condominium complex is in direct conflict with the 

existing alignment of Lemmon Road.  Accordingly, the western 500 feet of Lemmon Road will need 

to be realigned.  The existing portion of the Lemmon Road ROW will need to be vacated.  The 

preliminary plat included a realigned 66 foot-wide ROW for Lemmon Road, aligned through the 

central portion of the subdivision.   

Lemmon Road will provide access to the proposed condominium complex, any future 

development in the northern portion of the subdivision, and a few existing properties east of the 

subdivision.  While the development will increase traffic on Lemmon Road, it will still be very 

minimal. 



Peliminary Engineering Report:  
Highland Estates | Street & Utility Improvements 

 Page I 9 

The proposed street improvements will include the construction of a 28 foot-wide, rural section 

(no curb and gutter), with a bituminous surface.  The street will be designed to a five-ton, axle-

load capacity.  Exhibit No. 3 illustrates this typical section and proposed street alignment.   

It should be noted that the City’s subdivision ordinance specifies a 36 foot-wide urban (with curb 

and gutter) street section.  However, this size and type of street is likely more robust than what is 

required for this situation, anticipated traffic volumes, and anticipated development.  The street is 

a dead-end and will likely never be connected to an adjacent roadway.  The proposed 28-foot, 

rural-section street has been utilized in similar situations in other periphery areas of the City.   

3.5 Stormwater Collection and Treatment

Stormwater runoff from the project area, specifically the reconstructed street, will need to be 

collected and treated in accordance with PRWD regulations.  Watershed regulations require 

compliance with their current rules upon reconstruction of a street, as proposed with this project.  

There is no storm sewer or stormwater treatment within the project area.   

The ultimate extent, type, and details of the stormwater treatment and collection cannot be 

accurately determined within the scope of this preliminary study.  These elements require 

significant calculation, survey, modeling, consultation with regulatory agencies, and are closely 

connected to the street/site grading that is generally completed as part of the final design process.  

The preliminary recommendations are based upon several assumptions, engineering judgement, 

and past experience with similar situations.  Accordingly, the recommendations contained in the 

following paragraphs are considered preliminary but are sufficient for purposes of this study.   

The proposed rural-street section will include the construction of shallow ditches and swales to 

collect and convey stormwater.  These will be graded along either side of Lemmon Road to 

capture and hold stormwater that is directed to or created by the street.  The proposed grading 

design will attempt to maintain current drainage patterns to the extent possible.  These ditches 

will be designed to hold and infiltrate stormwater.   

All stormwater runoff will need to be treated in accordance with PRWD regulations and the City’s 

stormwater ordinance prior to discharge.  The preferred option is to utilize the ditches and other 

available ‘green’ space within the street ROW corridors.  This provides an opportunity to treat all, 

or at least a portion of, the runoff volume by infiltration.  This is a favorable method of treatment 

by regulatory agencies and is the most cost-effective means of treatment.  Infiltration will be 

utilized to the extent possible though the project corridor for treatment.  However, this will result 

in designing ditches to actually hold water for up to 48 hours after a storm event.  This is a factor 

that is a common source of complaints for adjacent properties.  Occasionally, it is perceived as a 

design error or oversight, but it is actually intentional.  These misperceptions can be mitigated to a 

degree through public education of the adjacent properties.   

It is unlikely that infiltration within the ditch space will provide enough treatment volume for the 

entire volume of runoff.  The ditches will likely need to be designed with over flow routing to a 

more centralized treatment basin.  The developer is required to dedicate area, up to 6 percent of 



Peliminary Engineering Report:  
Highland Estates | Street & Utility Improvements 

 Page I 10 

the subdivision area, for use as stormwater treatment.  Potential stormwater treatment areas are 

identified on Exhibit No. 3.   These areas are low-lying areas that are concussive for maintaining 

natural drainage patterns and providing treatment.  It is possible that these treatment areas 

provide for treatment of the entire subdivision, in addition to the street corridor.  Further 

coordination with the developer will be required to determine the viability of this approach.   

This section outlines the general and preferred approach to the proposed stormwater 

management.  However, details and potentially other options for the stormwater treatment and 

collection will need to be refined and developed as part of the final design process.   

3.6 Lighting  

The City’s Public Utilities department will also install street lighting to City standards throughout 

the project area.  Lights are typically spaced at 300 to 500-foot intervals and at intersections.  This 

work will likely be constructed by the electric utility and is outside the scope of the study.  

However, lighting installed by the electric utility is paid for by the City and is included in the 

project costs for budgetary purposes.   

4.0 Other Design and Construction Considerations 

4.1 Permits  

The following permits from various regulatory agencies will be required for the proposed 

improvements.   

City of Detroit Lakes Land Disturbance:  A permit will be required from the City of Detroit 

Lakes for Land Disturbance Activities.   

MPCA (Stormwater and Erosion Control):  The MPCA is responsible for administering the 

National Pollution Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permits for storm water 

construction.  This covers both storm water treatment and erosion/sediment control.  A 

permit application will need to be submitted for the project since it is disturbing more than 

one (1) acre of land. 

MPCA (Sanitary Sewer Extension Permit):  A permit from the MPCA will be required for the 

extension of the sanitary sewer.  

MDH:  A permit from the Minnesota Department of Health (MDH) will be required for the 

water distribution system improvements. 

PRWD:  A permit and plan review/approval by the PRWD is required for construction 

erosion and sediment control, and for storm water treatment.   

 



Peliminary Engineering Report:  
Highland Estates | Street & Utility Improvements 

 Page I 11 

4.2 Easements and Right-of-Way (ROW) 

Temporary construction easements may be needed to facilitate grading and/or roadway 

construction.  The City may also need to obtain permanent easement or fee title to property for 

purposes of stormwater treatment.  These needs will need to be further identified as part of the 

final design process. 

4.3 Implementation/Staging of Improvements and Schedule 

Typically, improvement projects such as these are completed in advance or concurrently with the 

associated development.  This project is somewhat unique.  Sanitary and water service can be 

provided to the initial phase the development (22 unit condominium complex) without any 

improvements.  These services will be provided from Randolph Road.   

Sewer and water services to the remaining portion of the subdivision, and fourplex property north 

of the subdivision, will require the removal and replacement of Highland Drive.   Currently, there 

are plans to complete major improvements (reconstruction) of Randolph Road and the southern 

portion of Highland Drive in 2019.  It would be more cost effective for the City, and developer, to 

complete the recommended underground utility improvements in conjunction or coordination 

with this larger project in 2019.  Completing the sewer and water extensions prior to this would 

require unnecessary, and duplicative, removal and replacement of Highland Drive. It is 

recommended that these improvements be deferred until the summer of 2019.  This would also 

provide the developer additional time to possibly solidify development plans for the north portion 

of the subdivision.  This could provide better clarity if sewer and water infrastructure needs to be 

installed along Lemmon Road or not.   

Regardless of the timing of sewer and water improvement to this area, Lemmon Road will need to 

be reconstructed in the summer of 2018 to allow the developer to start construction of the 

condominium complex.  One option would be to complete the recommended street 

improvements to Lemmon Road this summer.  Alternately, these improvements could also be 

deferred until 2019 and be completed with the sewer and water improvements.  In the interim, 

the City could require that the developer realign Lemmon Road on the new alignment, prior to 

beginning construction.  The interim road could consist of a basic 24 foot-wide, aggregate-surface, 

street similar to the current roadway.  This would provide unchanged access and conditions to the 

users of the street and allow the condominium construction to begin.  More importantly, it would 

allow the recommended street and underground utility improvements to be deferred until 2019.   

Table No. 1 outlines the probable/suggested project schedule.  This schedule assumed that the 

proposed infrastructure improvements will be completed in conjunction (or coordination) with 

the proposed Randolph Road project in the summer of 2019.     

  



Peliminary Engineering Report:  
Highland Estates | Street & Utility Improvements 

 Page I 12 

 Table 1:  Preliminary Project Schedule 

Activity Date(s) 

Complete Preliminary Engineering Report February 2018 
Public Hearing/Authorize Preparation of Plans Summer 2018 
Design Summer 2018 
Approve Plans and Specifications/Authorize Bidding October 2018 
Open Bids and Award Construction Contract Winter 2019 
Construction Summery 2019 
Assessment Hearing Fall 2019 

5.0 Opinion of Cost Summary 

The following table outlines the cost opinion associated with the recommended improvements 

contained in this report.  There are a number of unknown factors that will continue to be developed in 

the design phase of this project.  Accordingly, the costs will continue to be adjusted as the project 

develops.  The below costs account for Engineering fees, undeveloped design details, construction 

contingency, permits, minor administrative costs and fees, and geotechnical investigation and testing.  

These costs are prorated into the various improvement line items.  The below table does not include 

costs associated with permanent land or easement acquisition, or financing.  

 

Table 2:  Opinion of Cost – Proposed Improvements 

Item Cost

Sanitary Sewer 69,000

Sewer Services 19,000

Watermain 64,000

Water Services 27,000

Hydrants 23,000

Street (Lemmon Road) 124,000

Stormwater 22,000

Total: $348,000  

The above table does not include the costs associated with the Highland Drive 

reconstruction/realignment.  It is assumed that these costs would be included in the Randolph Road 

project costs and not assessed to the adjacent properties.    

 



Peliminary Engineering Report:  
Highland Estates | Street & Utility Improvements 

 Page I 13 

6.0 Financing 

The project costs will be financed by a combination of City funds and special assessments to the 

adjacent and benefitting properties, including the developer.   

6.1 Assessable Costs 

The assessable share will be determined in accordance with the City Special Assessment Policy 

(Amended October 2016).  The following summarizes how the project costs will be allocated, 

based on the Special Assessment Policy, between City funds and assessed properties.  It is 

important to note that the City Special Assessment Policy requires interpretation and its 

application can be somewhat subjective.  The policy is used as a guide in addition to standard 

practices on past similar projects.  

Watermain:  One-hundred (100) percent of the standard watermain costs are assessed 

against the benefitted properties for new construction.  Standard watermain is defined as a 

six (6)-inch diameter watermain.  Oversizing and looping costs for general distribution 

purposes are assumed by the City.   

Hydrants:  One-hundred (100) percent of the costs associated with hydrant improvements 

are assumed by the City.    

Sanitary Sewer:  One-hundred (100) percent of the standard sanitary sewer costs are 

assessed against the benefitted properties for new construction.  Standard sanitary sewer is 

defined as an eight (8)-inch diameter sewer main.  Oversizing costs for general collection 

purposes are assumed by the City.   

Sewer and Water Service Laterals:  One-hundred (100) percent of the costs for sanitary 

sewer or water service laterals will be assessed to the benefitted properties.   

Street:  One-hundred (100) of the basic street costs are assessed against the benefitted 

properties in accordance with the assessment policy.  A basic street is considered a 38-foot 

wide (back-to-back of curb), five (5)-ton, urban section, bituminous street based on the 

need of adjacent properties of this area.  The City assumes the remaining costs.  

Stormwater:  One-hundred (100) percent of the costs associated with stormwater collection 

and treatment are assumed by the City and paid by the stormwater utility fund.    

Lighting:  One-hundred (100) percent of the costs associated with lighting are assumed by 

the City.    

  



Peliminary Engineering Report:  
Highland Estates | Street & Utility Improvements 

 Page I 14 

Table 3 indicates the distribution of project costs between the City (including utility funds) and 

assessable properties based on the above allocation of costs.   

Table 3:  Distribution of Project Costs 

Item City Share Assessable Total

Sanitary Sewer 6,500                62,500             69,000

Sewer Services -                         19,000             19,000

Watermain 16,000             48,000             64,000

Water Services -                         27,000             27,000

Hydrants 23,000             -                         23,000

Street (Lemmon Road) -                         124,000           124,000

Stormwater 22,000             -                         22,000

Total: 67,500             280,500           $348,000
 

6.2 Allocation of Assessable Costs 

The assessable costs, presented in Table 3, will be distributed/allocated against the benefitted 

properties in accordance with the City’s Special Assessment Policy and past practices, as described 

in the following sections.   

Sanitary Sewer and Watermain:  The assessable sanitary sewer and watermain costs are 

divided by the number of assessable units (frontage) to determine the assessment rate.  An 

assessment to the property is equal to the assessment rate multiplied by the assessable unit 

(frontage) for the property.   The assessable unit is considered “frontage” and is determined 

by the following: 

o For rectangular interior lots, the “frontage” shall be equal to the dimension of the side of 

the lot abutting the improvements. 

o For rectangular corner lots, the “frontage” shall be equal to the dimension of the smaller 

of the two sides of the lot abutting the streets, whether the improvement is made on the 

street abutting the short side of the lot, on the street abutting the long side of the lot or 

both (i.e. the short side of the lot is used to determine the frontage). 

o An average width/dimension shall be assigned to irregularly shaped lots to determine the 

frontage.   

Sewer and Water Service Laterals:  The assessable unit to be used for water and sewer 

services is on an ‘each’ basis.  Each service installed to a property is considered a unit.   

Street:  The assessable street and costs are divided by the number of assessable units 

(frontage) to determine the assessment rate.  An assessment to the property is equal to the 

assessment rate multiplied by the assessable unit (frontage) for the property.   The assessable 

unit is considered “frontage” and is determined by the following: 



Peliminary Engineering Report:  
Highland Estates | Street & Utility Improvements 

 Page I 15 

o For rectangular interior lots, the “frontage” shall be equal to the dimension of the side of 

the lot abutting the improvements. 

o For rectangular corner lots, the “frontage” shall be equal to the dimension of the smaller 

of the two sides, plus one-half the distance of the larger of the two sides.  Provided, 

however, that where the larger of the two sides exceeds 150 feet, the excess over 150 

shall be considered frontage.  (i.e., no more than a 75-foot credit will be given to the long 

side of a lot).  

o An average width/dimension shall be assigned to irregularly shaped lots to determine the 

frontage.   

o For lots greater than 150 feet (residential) and 200 feet (commercial) in depth, which abut 

two parallel streets, the “frontage” for a surface improvement will be calculated 

independently for each frontage.   

Table 4 contains the estimated assessment rates and example/typical assessment based on the 

cost distribution and allocation of assessable costs described in the preceding sections.   

Table 4:  Estimated Special Assessments  

Item

Assessment 

Rate/Unit Assessment Unit 

Sanitary Sewer $42.00 Front Footage

Sewer Service $1,900.00 Each

Watermain $33.00 Front Footage

Residential Water Service $2,700.00 Each

Street $140.00 Front Footage

$216,800

$15,850

$36,850.00

Estimated Typical Assessments

Highland Estates Subdivision:

150-Foot Wide Lot (Sewer, Water, & Street ):

150-Foot Wide Lot (Sewer & Water Only):

 

6.3 Undeveloped Properties and Deferments 

The project area contains several undeveloped properties.  These properties are platted and could 

be developed with residential housing or other uses.  However, the City may need to consider 

deferment of all or a portion of the assessment to these properties for a period or until they are 

developed.  Accordingly, a portion of the assessable costs in Table No. 4, may be deferred, 

depending on City Council directives.  Further consideration should be given to application and 

terms of deferred assessments to undeveloped properties.   

 



Peliminary Engineering Report:  
Highland Estates | Street & Utility Improvements 

 Page I 16 

Appendix – Index 
Appendix A – Exhibit Drawings  

• Project Location Map ................................................................................................................. Exhibit 1 

• Existing Street, Sanitary Sewer, and Watermain ........................................................................ Exhibit 2 

• Proposed Street and Drainage Improvements ........................................................................... Exhibit 3 

• Proposed Sanitary Sewer and Watermain Improvements ......................................................... Exhibit 4 

 

 

 

 

 



z

z

zzz

z z

z

z

L:\Projects\2017\17.178.0102 - DTL - Highland Estates - Street & Utility Improvements\Preliminary\Drawings & Exhibits\Preliminary Report.dwg





February 1, 2018Date: J.C.Drawn By: 17.178.0102Apex Project #:






N

SCALE: 1 INCH =        FEET

0 200 400

400

PROJECT LOCATION




































L:\Projects\2017\17.178.0102 - DTL - Highland Estates - Street & Utility Improvements\Preliminary\Drawings & Exhibits\Preliminary Report.dwg





February 1, 2018Date: J.C.Drawn By: 17.178.0102Apex Project #:



N

SCALE: 1 INCH =        FEET

0 50 100

100

8" PVC SANITARY SEWER














12" PVC WATERMAIN

6" PVC SANITARY FORCEMAIN

PROPOSED
CONDOMINIUMS



22'± AGGREGATE
SURFACE STREET

27' ± BITUMINOUS
SURFACE STREET

26'± BITUMINOUS
SURFACE STREET






EXISTING SANITARY SEWER

EXISTING SANITARY FORCEMAIN

EXISTING WATERMAIN





2.0%

14'R/W R/W

4:1 MAX

28'19' 19'

12' LANE2' SHOULDER

14'
12' LANE 2' SHOULDER

2.0%










N

SCALE: 1 INCH =        FEET

0 50 100

100

8" PVC SANITARY SEWER














12" PVC WATERMAIN

6" PVC SANITARY FORCEMAIN

PROPOSED
CONDOMINIUMS





EXISTING SANITARY SEWER

EXISTING SANITARY FORCEMAIN

EXISTING WATERMAIN

VACATE EXISTING
LEMMON ROAD

BITUMINOUS SURFACE

AGGREGATE BASE

PROPOSED TYPICAL SECTION
LEMMON ROAD

66' RIGHT OF WAY

28' BITUMINOUS
SURFACE STREET

POTENTIAL STORMWATER
TREATMENT AREA(S)

L:\Projects\2017\17.178.0102 - DTL - Highland Estates - Street & Utility Improvements\Preliminary\Drawings & Exhibits\Preliminary Report.dwg





February 1, 2018Date: J.C.Drawn By: 17.178.0102Apex Project #:



L:\Projects\2017\17.178.0102 - DTL - Highland Estates - Street & Utility Improvements\Preliminary\Drawings & Exhibits\Preliminary Report.dwg





February 1, 2018Date: J.C.Drawn By: 17.178.0102Apex Project #:





8" PVC SANITARY SEWER
















12" PVC WATERMAIN

6" PVC SANITARY FORCEMAIN

PROPOSED
CONDOMINIUMS



8" PVC WATERMAIN

8" PVC SANITARY SEWER

12" PVC WATERMAIN

8" PVC SANITARY SEWER

PROPOSED HYDRANT

PROPOSED HYDRANT

POTENTIAL/ASSUMED
LOT LINES (TYP.)

PROPOSED ROAD
REALIGNMENT

N

SCALE: 1 INCH =        FEET

0 50 100

100


EXISTING SANITARY SEWER
EXISTING SANITARY FORCEMAIN
EXISTING WATERMAIN

EXISTING SANITARY SEWER
EXISTING SANITARY FORCEMAIN

PROPOSED SANITARY SEWER
PROPOSED WATERMAIN

EXISTING WATERMAIN

PROPOSED GATE VALVE
PROPOSED HYDRANT



0nihd Lckct I Inih iliicr

c,ft oP Q;tru,t /*- f\n

U-LTrn gnotJ

[nn,r,.9- fi u vt
N QJ*R-,

AIH- ../--t S
,/

(/(- JonnTl

*o6"/- c[rA ,:rfu= A-- /,TL
,F*U 5 noct) t,,o6- /- RJ\Y su€ne4u
fr3 17 ZorF.

A e+-/Foo.l t, e boJ a( [,'ke tv
fto 7 /o--*Tk /*-//?.l)"

[r:z kro ,*re&t[*f" /4*v€- tl-[-.0 Tfu; dr<

frb^ T,//
firlhnt te ',/ 

2\ '

Loo*/t

?[ l9L rf ,Dof
loo",-(& e,,j 4,,--

€ce QnJ,/trn r 7tur
^rk ,,7- tL /4.,
J ooJ en uy A Coe

fL 6o*./- tyeof h
L, Le- C.)L )-h-e- Do,*-

,ft"f Cna"s k-uuo"(
l,tt- Tr,.-

@tn*

Tl-0" lg S-7a,-t-- l a C,€l) /
4e l.sr 2 7 eauD ,

b" ll be /,r\L 0 r

?Itr-gf?- 3o6f
United Lakes & Tiails Riders Association . Box 94 . Detroit Lakes . Minnesota . 56502

Exhibit 6O Return to Agenda



700 Summit Avenue 

PO Box 348 

Detroit Lakes, MN 56502-0348 

Phone: 218-847-9202 

www.VisitDetroitLakes.com 

dlchamber@VisitDetroitLakes.com 

DL City Council 

Kelcey Klemm, Administrator 

City of Detroit Lakes 

P. O. Box 647 

Detroit Lakes, MN  56502-0647 

Dear City Council: 

The Detroit Lakes Regional Chamber of Commerce will be sponsoring the 40th Annual Arts  in the Park on 
Sunday, July 22, 2018. We would once again like to use the DL City Park for this event. As we have in previous years, 
we will be calling for utility marking to be done so that our vendors and committee are mindful of safety. We will sub-
mit an event application in February. 

We would again like to request the City Parks and Rec. Department to: 

Place extra trash containers near the parking lot immediately north of the Pavilion as this would be used as a food 
court. (We will order a dumpster to be placed too.) 

Service the portable toilets prior to our event. 

Provide us with 4 barricades in the parking lot just north of the Pavilion. 
Provide us with traffic cones and no parking signs to block the parking spaces along the south side of North Shore 
Drive from Washington Ave to the Western Entrance of the Park. These would be used as a loading zone for our 
vendors 5am-10am Sunday, July 22, 2018. 

Thank you to the City of DL, the Street Department and to the Parks Department for your continued support 
and assistance with this popular event for 40 years! 

Sincerely, 

Carrie Johnston 

President 

cc:   Brad Green, Public Works Director 

Exhibit 6P Return to Agenda



2 
 

Application for Street Closure, Special Event or Festival Permit 
 

Note:  When filling in areas with multiple lines, only type to the end of the line, move your 
curser to the next line and continue to type. 

 
PART I:   EVENT GENERAL INFORMATION 
 

Name of the event:    Arts & Crafts in the Park   
 

Location:    DL City Park  
 

Estimated number of attendees:    2000   
 
SET UP:    Date:   Sunday, July 22, 2018    Start time:  5a.m.     End time:  6p.m.  
 
ACTUAL EVENT:   Start Date: Sunday, July 22, 2018     Start time:  9a.m.     End time:  4p.m. 

End Date:   Click here to enter a date       Start time:       .m.     End time:       .m. 
 
TEAR DOWN:   Date:   Sunday, July 22, 2018         Start time:  4p.m.     End time:   8p.m. 
 

 Profit or Non-profit status:   501(c.)6    
 
Event Sponsor Information 

 

Sponsor(s) of event:  Detroit Lakes Regional Chamber of Commerce   
 
Sponsor(s) phone:   218-847-9202   
 
Sponsor(s) e-mail:  carrie@visitdetroitlakes.com   
 

Event Organizer’s Information 
 

Organizer’s name (Please print):   Carrie Johnston   
 

Organizer’s full address:  700 summit ave   
 

Organizer’s daytime phone number:   (h)  847-9202     (w)            (c)  218-841-0862 
 
Organizer’s e-mail address:  carrie@visitdetroitlakes.com   

 
Contact name and number to be used on day of the event:  218-841-0862  

 

Description of Activities 
 

Brief description of the activities planned during this event:   

 
 
 

 
 
 

Same as last 30+ years. Vendor tents in West side  

Of DL City Park, food vendors in lot north of Pavilion. Arts and Crafts show with free admission.  

Click here to enter text. 

Note:   Event Staff/Volunteers play a major role in the success of your event.  Please ensure you 
have plenty of them for set up/tear down, security, crowd control and traffic flow 



4 

Site Information 

Electrical usage?       Yes   No   

Describe the type of equipment to be used and how you intend to supply the power: 

Amplified sound?      Yes   No   

Describe all sound amplification equipment you’ll be using and the start/end time of its use: 

Large signs and/or banners?  Yes   No   

Describe the signs/banners and location to be hung:        

Will you be needing cones?    Yes   No  How many? 25    Where? lot north of Pavilion 

Will you be needing barricades?    Yes   No  How many? 4     Where? lot north of Pavilion 
Cones/barricades will be placed near location, but Event staff must be available to set up and take them down as needed 

Will restrooms be available to the public?  Yes   No   
A ratio of 1 restroom for every 100-150 people is recommended 

 

 Contractor supplying your extra portable toilets [if needed]: Moores septic 

Trash disposal needed?   Yes   No   

 Contractor supplying extra trash containers and their disposal [if needed]:         
 

 
 
 
 

Where will participants and spectators park?   

Are “No Parking” signs needed?    Yes        No       How many? 10 
Event staff must be available to set up and take down No Parking signs as needed 

Will there be tents, fencing or other items that will require stakes or poles to be pounded into the ground? 

Yes    No     if yes, a utility locate request must be made to Gopher State One Call at 
    Least 48 hours prior to any pounding or digging 

Event layout and street map provided?  Yes   No   
Please provide a layout of the event showing booths, staging, amusements, food, etc. 

 and a street or area map showing the borders of the event 
 

Just in picnic shelters – very limited 

One pan flute or guitar player – playing at conversational level/background music. 

In City Park parking lot and on streets 

Click here to enter text. 

Note:  If your event needs porta-potties and/or trash containers in addition to those 
currently provided by the City, it is your responsibility to hire a contractor  



6 
 

PART III:   CONTACTS, PERMITS AND FEES CHECKLIST 
 

Each special event has its own needs and requirements. Listed below is a summary of the licenses, permits and 
fees common to many special events. Please note that it is not necessary to have all licenses/permits approved 
upon submission of this application.  However, this checklist should serve as a guide as you plan your event.  All 
special events must have licenses/permits approved and fees paid prior to the start of the event. 
 

 

Permit, License, or 
Authorization Yes Pending N/A Contact Information 

Authorization to use a 
city park     Required – contact Public Works 

Authorization to use 
the city beach    Required – contact Public Works 

Noise Permit*    Required for events with an above-average noise level between the hours of 
10:00 p.m. and 6:00 a.m.  Contact the City Clerk 

Fire/EMS/Police 
Support*    

The appropriate level of fire, EMS and police support will be determined by the 
City based on crowd size and the type of event.  Fees may be discussed with 
the event organizer 

Food and Vendor 
License*    

Required - All vendors must apply for a Transient Merchant’s License through 
the City Administration Office. Food vendors are required to collect and report 
a food and beverage tax.  Contact the City Clerk 

Health Dept. License*    All food vendors must hold a food permit issued through the MN Dept. of 
Health (MDH).  (Copy to be furnished to the City Clerk) 

Insurance Certificate    May be required before issuing a permit  (furnish copy to the City Clerk)  

Temporary Sign 
Permit*    Required - Contact the Planning Department for information  846-7126 

Parade Permit    Required - Contact Public Works for information 

Street Closure    
Required - Must be approved by City Council after submission of the Special 
Event Application. Closure of a State Hwy must be approved by MnDOT and 
closure of a County Road must be approved by the County Hwy Dept prior to 
City Council review    (*Washington Ave and West Lake Drive are county roads) 

Alcohol Use Permit*    Required - Must be approved by City Council after submission of the Special 
Event Application.  Contact the City Clerk for information & procedure 

Rental of city-owned 
facilities*    

To rent the Pavilion, Bandshell, Peoples Park Shelter/kitchenette or the Long 
Lake Park Shelter/kitchenette, contact Marci at City Administration:  846-7127 
or mhutchinson@ci.detroit-lakes.mn.us  

   * Fee may apply 
 

Contact Information 
 

City Clerk   (218) 846-7130 E-MAIL       gfrench@ci.detroit-lakes.mn.us  
Commissioner of Revenue (651) 282-5225 WEB SITE   www.taxes.state.mn.us 
Public Works Department (218) 847-4637 E-MAIL       dlpublicworks@ci.detroit-lakes.mn.us   
Police Department  (218) 847-4222    
Fire Dept   (218) 849-0336 E-MAIL        sflynn@ci.detroit-lakes.mn.us  
MN Department of Health (320) 223-7300 WEB SITE   www.health.state.mn.us 
MNDOT-Detroit Lakes Office (218) 846-3600 WEB SITE   www.dot.state.mn.us 
Becker County Hwy Dept (218) 847-4463 WEB SITE   www.co.becker.mn.us/dept/highway 
Gopher State One Call (800) 252-1166 WEB SITE   www.gopherstateonecall.org 

 



7 
 

PART IV:  HOLD HARMLESS AGREEMENT AND INSURANCE INFORMATION 
 

The applicant covenants to save, defend, hold harmless, and indemnify the City of Detroit Lakes and all of its 
officers, departments, agencies, agents, and employees (collectively the “City”) from and against any and all 
claims, losses, damages, injuries, fines, penalties, costs (including court costs and attorney’s fees), charges, 
liability, or exposure, however caused, resulting from, arising out of, or in any way connected to the 
applicant’s event herein described. 

 
The City, in its discretion, may require the Applicant to obtain liability insurance for any special event.  If liability 
insurance is required, the following requirements apply: 

a. Minimum of $1,000,000 in commercial general liability insurance coverage 

b. Applicant’s insurance shall be primary 

c. Insurance shall cover liability for injury, death and property damage including coverage for alcohol 
related claims, if alcohol will be served 

d. The insurance policy must be issued by an insurance company licensed to do business in Minnesota and 
be acceptable to the City 

e. The City must be named as “Additional Insured” on the policy 

f. the applicant must give the City a Certificate of Insurance showing the required coverage at least ten 
(10) days prior to the event 

 
 
PART V:   SIGNATURE OF EVENT ORGANIZER 
 
I attest that the above information is true and accurate to the best of my knowledge.  I certify under penalties of perjury 
that I am authorized to execute contracts and other instruments that are legally binding.   
  
 

Carrie Johnston 
   Signature of Event Organizer 

 
Carrie Johnston 
   PRINT NAME  

 
President DL Chamber 
   Event Organizer Title 
 
 
2/8/2018 
   Date submitted to the City 
 
 
 
 

  



 

NORTH SHORE DRIVE 

 

                                 .   23  22        21        20   19     18      17 16      15       14            13         12      11                 5          4       3      2   1 tree 

MUSIC 

58 

 

59 26      27        28       29       30       31       32       33                     191 

60 36       37       38       39        40  41        42       43                 192 

61   193 

62   127     126    125      123    123    122     121    120      118   194 

63 108     109     111     112    112    113     114     115     117   195 

64  196 

65 99  

66            130   131 132    133    134     135 136          

67 140     141    142     143   144     145    146          

68 

69   150       151      152      153       154      155 

70                             81            106   160     161     162     163      164       165 

71                            80            107  

72 

73 

86 

   
   

   
   

Pa
vi

lio
n 

   
(1

36
1 

W
as

hi
ng

to
n 

Av
e.

)  
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 W

AS
HI

N
GT

O
N

 A
VE

.  
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

City Park Parking Lot – please leave for custom
ers. 

 
Pi

cn
ic

 S
he

lte
r 

In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

 
Ch

ec
k-

in
 

Food 6  Food 5   Food 4  Food 3 

 
Portable  

Restrooms 

   

  123   

   112   

  123  

  112  

Portable 
restrooms 

190 

 
 

Food 2 
 

 

 
Food 1 

 

Loading zone 6-9am (Customer parking 9-4pm) 

             

Food Court – no parking 

DL City Park rules: 

~ Do NOT drive on grass 

~ Set up begins at 6am 

~ No overnight parking 



By: Jon Pratt

Date: February 2018

No. Project Status Remarks/Comments
1 TH 10/59 Frontage Road Improvements Project is substantially complete.  Some of the pavement on City 

frontage roads will be replaced.  Schedule has not been 

determined.  

2 North TH 59  - Sanitary Sewer and Watermain 

Improvements (Jail Project)

Project is substantially complete.  Minor cleanup work will be 

completed in the spring.  

3 Long Pine Estates - Street and Utility Improvements Project is complete. Consider approval of final payment at 

February CCM.  

4 West Lake Drive Reconstruction and Multi-Use 

Trail: Legion Rd to CSAH 6

Working on a City/County cooperative agreement.  Topo/design 

survey has been complete and preliminary design is underway.  

County will begin easement R/W acquisition as soon as 

preliminary design is more complete.  

Project construction is tentatively set for 2020.  Awarded $325,000 

of grant funding through MnDOT TA Funding. Joint BSWR grant 

submitted by PRWD/City was not successful.  Plan to reapply in 

2018.  

5 Long Lake Annexation - Phase 4A Final design is substantially completed.  Consider approval of 

plans/specs and authorization to Bid at February CCM.  

Construction for area 4A (north side) tentatively set for 2018.  

Ultimate project will include extension of sewer and water utilities 

to north and west sides of Long Lake. 

6 Randolph Road - Street Improvements Preliminary design is underway.  Have started discussions with 

MnDOT and BNSF.  Plan to complete design in summer/fall of 

2018 to allow for winter 2019 bid letting.  Working with County on 

grant application for multi-use trail connection from CSAH 54 to 

TH 10 box culvert.  May potentially construct trail with project 

(pending funding).  Consider approval of resolution of support 

and 50% of local match at February CCM.      

Cooperative project with MnDOT.  Improvements to Randolph 

Road are needed to facilitate a new signal at East Shore/TH 10 and 

signal modifications at Kris Street/TH 10 (completed by MnDOT).   

City received $1.5 million grant from Minnesota Highway Freight 

Program for Randolph Road.  MnDOT secured grant funds for East 

Shore/TH 10 signal.  Project is tentatively scheduled for 2019 

(pending ROW issues with BNSF). . 

7 Highland Estates - Street and Utility Improvements Consider approval of PER at February CCM.  Hold public hearing in 

March.  Developer has indicated that he would like to begin the 

project in the spring of 2018.  

Developer initiated project located near the intersection of 

Highland Drive and Lemmon Road.  Project includes a PUD with 

multi-family condo unit.  

8 West Lake Drive (CSAH 6 to Pelican River) - Sanitary 

Sewer Improvements 

Have started development of PER.  Held public input meeting on 

11/1/17.  Public consensus was to proceed with improvements in 

2018 that will include the construction of a lift station and 

sanitary sewer system.  Met with County on 12/12 to discuss 

possibility of a more comprehensive improvement (street 

reconstruction, drainage, multi-use trail).  PER will be completed 

in January that will evaluate both improvement options.  

Includes the area from CSAH 6 to Pelican River.  Existing sanitary 

sewer is pressure collection system that is routinely problematic.  

PER will evaluate possible solutions.  Some property owners also 

expressed an interest in construction of curb/gutter and multi-use 

trail.  

9 Lake Forest 7th Addition - Street & Utility 

Improvements

Design is substantially complete.  Need to work through some 

permitting with PRWD yet.  Consider approval of plans and 

authorization to bid project at February CCM.  

Developer initiated project for the final phase of the subdivision.  

Would like to construct improvements in the summer of 2018.  

City Engineer - Project Status Report 

City of Detroit Lakes

Page 1 of 2

Exhibit 6Q Return to Agenda



By: Jon Pratt

Date: February 2018

No. Project Status Remarks/Comments

City Engineer - Project Status Report 

City of Detroit Lakes

10 Co. Road 131 - Sanitary Sewer and Watermain 

Extension. 

Hold public hearing at February CCM.  Consideration to 

authorizing preparation of plans and specifications at February 

CCM.  Project will likely require cooperative agreement with 

county.  

Property owner (Foltz Trucking) has requested annexation and 

extension of sewer/water.  County would also like to reconstruct 

roadway (along with paving of Hillcrest/Stony Roads).  Tentative 

construction in summer 2018.

11 Broadlawn Estates - Street & Utility Improvements Hold public hearing at February CCM.  Consideration to 

authorizing preparation of plans and specifications at February 

CCM. 

Majority of property owners have petitioned for annexation and 

sewer/water service.  Would potentially combine project with Co. 

Rd. 131 improvements.  

12 Randolph Road - Sanitary Sewer & Lift Station 

Abandonment 

Design is in progress.  Project will result in some impact and 

temporary closures of Randolph Road and Roosevelt Avenue.  

Project will be reviewed/discussed at February PWC meeting.  

Project will involve installation/reconfiguration of sanitary sewer on 

western end of Randolph Road.  New sewer will allow for 

abandonment of a problematic lift station.  Project will be paid by 

sewer utility fund and was a budgeted expense.  

13 Twin home Development (Tomlinson/Schultz)  - 

Sanitary Sewer and Watermain improvements

Project is currently being designed.  Developer initiated project for the development of a PUD that will 

contain twin homes.  Project is being financed privately.  Sewer and 

water will be owned/operated by City.  Streets will be private.   

Construction tentatively scheduled for summer 2018. 

Page 2 of 2



Number of Dogs taken to Marshmallow Foundation 6

Number of Cats taken to Marshmallow Foundation 5

Total Number of Animals 11

Number of Boarding Nights 36

1

5

City Fines Collected 4 120.00$       

City Licences Purchased ($17 ea) 4 68.00$         

Number of Cats Boarded      (0 Euthanized) 

Number of Dogs Boarded     (0 Euthanized) 

City of Detroit Lakes Public Works

Animal Control Report - January 2018

Exhibit 6R Return to Agenda



1Donation Requests 

TO: FINANCE COMMITTEE   

FROM: KELCEY KLEMM, CITY ADMINISTRATOR 

SUBJECT: DONATION REQUESTS FROM THE DETROIT COUNTRY CLUB, BOYS & 
GIRLS CLUB OF DETROIT LAKES, AND THE BECKER COUNTY 
HISTORY MUSEUM 

DATE: JANUARY 4, 2018 

Requests 

The Detroit Country Club (DCC) initially provided a request to the City of Detroit Lakes for a 
contribution to the DCC 100 campaign in January 2017.  Subsequent to that initial request, the City 
Council had a tour of the DCC facilities in July 2017.  Following the tour, an official request was 
made to the City in September 2017 for a contribution of $300,000 to be paid out in equal 
installments over the next four years.  Copies of the correspondence from the DCC requesting the 
contribution can be provided upon request.  The Mayor and City Staff met with representatives of 
the DCC to discuss their contribution and a subsequent recommendation of a $100,000 donation 
was made to the Finance Committee (see the attached memo from November 8th).   

The Boys & Girls Club of Detroit Lakes is embarking on a capital campaign to build a new facility in 
2018.  The current campaign goal is $6,300,000.  Since the end of 2016, discussions have taken place 
with the Boys & Girls Club regarding the project and the potential for a city contribution.  While no 
formal dollar amount has been requested, up to $750,000 worth of project components have been 
discussed for city sponsorship.  An email from Executive Director Pat Peterman dated December 4th 
provides a starting point for discussing the cost of some items that the City may want to consider 
donating towards (attached).   

The Becker County Museum presented to the City Council in January of 2016 on its proposed plans 
for a new facility.  At the same presentation, the Museum made an appeal for a $500,000 donation 
from the City for the project.  Since then, the plans for the new museum have changed somewhat 
and the latest proposal is an addition to the existing Holmes Theatre.  Attached are the latest 
renderings of the proposed facility and an estimated project budget of $6,000,000.   

Exhibit 7B Return to Agenda



 
2 Donation Requests 

 

Funding Sources 
 
For donations to community projects, one of the primary funding sources for the City is the 
Municipal Liquor Store Fund.  The estimated cash balance for Lakes Liquors at year-end 2017 was 
$1,850,000 ($950,000 in cash and $900,000 in investments).  Based on two months of operating and 
inventory expenses, approximately $1,000,000 is needed for working capital.  While the store is still 
relatively new, another $425,000 is reserved for future capital needs.  Despite all of the other 
transfers, donations, and other annual commitments from the Liquor Store, approximately $125,000 
- 150,000 per year is being added to the cash balance.  I would also advise caution about drawing 
reserves too low in the Liquor Store Fund as this fund is tapped for other community projects and 
there is a long list of city facilities that may dip into this fund for future upgrades.   
 
Another funding source available to the City is the Food & Beverage Tax.  The food and beverage 
tax revenue is restricted to specific uses but one of the eligible expenses is “parking facilities near 
City facilities”.  At year-end 2017, the estimated cash balance in the Food & Beverage Tax Fund was 
$400,000.  A cashflow analysis of the Food & Beverage Tax Fund is attached to this memo.   
 
The Park Dedication Fund is a restricted pool of cash that is to be used for “the acquisition and 
development or improvement of parks, recreational facilities, playgrounds, trails, wetlands, or open 
space based on the approved park systems plan”.  Funding for the fund comes from “park 
dedication fees” that are paid by developers at the time of plat approval.  At year-end 2017, the Park 
Dedication Fund had a cash balance of $330,000.   
 
Recommendations 
 
As was discussed at the November Council Meeting, my recommendation would be a donation of 
$100,000 to the Detroit Country Club; the Liquor Fund could make a contribution in early 2018 to 
cover the cost of the cart path repairs at the Pine to Palm course ($70,000) and a second donation 
would be made in 2019 from the Liquor Fund for improvements to the Lakeview Course ($30,000).  
Based upon early estimates and a fundraising goal of $1,000,000, the City’s $100,000 contribution 
would be leveraged close to a 10:1 ratio.  If the estimates for the Lakeview Course exceed $30,000, 
DCC can approach the City about an additional contribution.  For further justification, please see 
my November 8th memo regarding the DCC donation.   
 
My recommendation for the Boys & Girls Club would include multiple components.  First, the 
Food & Beverage Tax Fund would contribute up to $175,000 for parking lot improvements.  Since 
the Boys & Girls Club project is including significant enhancements to a City park (Crovisier Park), I 
believe there is good justification for use of Park Dedication Funds for some of the proposed park 
improvements.  In addition, playground equipment at Crovisier Park will provide much needed 
access to park amenities in the northern section of the community.  My recommendation is a 
$50,000 contribution towards the playgrounds / basketball courts from the Park Dedication Fund.  
Lastly, the Public Utilities Commission could contribute (pending their approval) an in-kind 
contribution for the parking lot lighting (approximately $25,000) and a cash contribution of $50,000 
($10,000 annually for five years) for naming rights of one of the classrooms.  The total city package 
would total $300,000.   
 
Other cities in Becker County have agreed to donate to the Becker County Museum project; Frazee 
and Lake Park have agreed to donate $30,000 and $10,000, respectively.  Similar to the Boys & Girls 
Club project, the most likely revenue source for the request is the Food & Beverage Tax Fund.  



 
3 Donation Requests 

 

Constructing the museum onto the Holmes Theatre will provide an opportunity for the City to 
develop that entire block so that it better serves the Community Center, Theatre, Chamber of 
Commerce, and the Museum.  Removal of the existing museum and expanding the parking area 
would be a win-win for all of the parties involved.  While estimates have not been provided yet, my 
recommendation is a contribution of up to $175,000 towards parking lot improvements (acquisition, 
demolition, and construction) for the Becker County Museum and DLCCC.  However, the use of 
food and beverage tax funds comes with the caveat that the parking improvements must be on city-
owned property; therefore, the Museum and the City will need to work through land ownership 
issues.  Secondly, I would suggest that the Public Utilities Commission would provide an in-kind 
donation for the parking lot lighting (approximately $25,000).  The total city package would be 
roughly $200,000.   
 
These are merely recommendations and more discussion by the City Council is warranted.  All three 
entities are community assets and they all represent good public investments.  It is especially 
beneficial when public funding can be used to leverage significant private investment in these capital 
campaigns.   
 
 
Attachment:   November 8th DCC 100 Donation Request Memo 
  Email from Pat Peterman dated December 4, 2017 
  Becker County Museum Plans and Project Estimate 
  Food & Beverage Tax Fund Cash Flow Analysis 



 

 

1DCC 100 Donation Request  

 

 

TO:  FINANCE COMMITTEE   

FROM:  KELCEY KLEMM, CITY ADMINISTRATOR 

SUBJECT: DETROIT COUNTRY CLUB DCC 100 CAMPAIGN REQUEST 

DATE:  NOVEMBER 8, 2017 

 

At their October 10th meeting, the Finance Committee reviewed a request from the Detroit Country 
Club for a City contribution to the DCC 100 Campaign.  The written request was for a $300,000 
contribution that was to be paid in equal amounts over the next four years.  Following discussion at 
the Finance Committee, it was recommended that the Mayor and City Staff meet with 
representatives of the Country Club to review their request.   
 
Subsequent to the Finance Committee meeting, Mayor Brenk, Finance Officer Slifka, and I met with 
Greg Selbo (President) and Bruce Meyer (Vice-President) from the County Club on October 19th.  
As a group, we talked about some specific improvements that are being planned.  There were two 
projects that solicited the most discussion regarding possible City participation:  adding concrete to 
the cart shed and maintenance shop and paving of cart paths on the Pine to Palm course.  Since our 
October 19th meeting, the cart shed and maintenance shop have already been concreted at a cost of 
$28,300.  The estimated cost for paving of the cart paths of the Pine to Palm course is $70,000.  The 
paving project would repair/replacement of paths that are in poor condition.  Due to the early onset 
of cold weather, the paving will be postponed until next spring.  A second paving project would 
include cart path improvements at the Lakeview course and those are estimated to be about $30,000 
but no formal quote has been received at this time.   
 
As was discussed at the October Finance Committee meeting, the only likely revenue source for a 
contribution to the Country Club would come from the Liquor Fund.  The DCC 100 campaign has 
raised roughly $637,000 ($172,000 in pledges are still receivable) to date and has about $121,000 still 
in their account as of the end of October 2017 (see attached information regarding status of the 
DCC campaign).  For the sake of a recommendation, the Liquor Fund could make a contribution in 
early 2018 to cover the cost of the cart path repairs at the Pine to Palm course ($70,000).  A second 
donation could be withheld until 2019 from the Liquor Fund for improvements to the Lakeview 
Course.  Based upon early estimates and a fundraising goal of $1,000,000, the City’s $100,000 
contribution would be leveraged close to a 10:1 ratio.   
 
Earlier this year, the City’s auditing firm Brady Martz conducted a report on the agreed-upon 
financial procedures for the Detroit County Club.  The report identified several deficiencies and it 



 
2DCC 100 Donation Request 

would be my recommendation that any City contribution would be contingent upon the DCC 
responding to the report and addressing the procedures that were outlined.   
 
 
Attachment:  DCC 100 Campaign Status Update 



1

Kelcey Klemm

From: Pat Petermann <pat@bgcofdl.org>
Sent: Monday, December 4, 2017 1:30 PM
To: Kelcey Klemm
Cc: dfeickert@frameworkarch.com
Subject: Potential Request

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Flagged

Kelcey, 
 
Here are some things the architect and I came up with: 
 
Earthwork:  40,000-50,000 cubic yards of material will be moved around to take the top off of the hill (behind current 
facility), and to fill in low areas for playground/greenspace areas.  This mass grading would also create the pad for the 
building and parking lot; and would create infiltration ponds/swales for storm water treatment.  Budget $175,000-
$200,000.  This number does not account for soil correction or soil import/export as those items are not anticipated at 
this time. 
 
Parking/Driveways:  For paving, curbs, striping, etc. to create the auto parking lot, drop off lane and two driveways- 
Budget $180,000. 
 
Playgrounds:  To create two playgrounds (one for smaller kids, one for elementary age kids)- budget of $100,000.  This 
would include playground equipment (depending on how big/elaborate), perimeter curbs and mulch or fiber fill. 
 
Sport Court- hard surface (probably asphalt) for basketball, four square, etc.  includes two BB hoops and a perimeter 
chain link fence; budget of $50,000 
 
Utilities:  Assuming new water supply, sanitary sewer lines to the building from the street.  This assumes installing new 
connections at the street, and all new piping to the building set at depths appropriate for the new building and site 
elevations.  This also includes an allowance for storm sewer piping, assuming parking lot and other areas will have drains 
or catch basins with underground piping to deliver rain-water to the infiltration basins.  Budget $100,000-$125,000. 
 
Site Lighting:  Pole mounted area lights for the parking lot, budget $25,000-$30,000. 
 
Landscaping:  Overall allowance for trees, shrubs, grass seed, flagpole, monument relocation and irrigation.  Budget 
$125,000-$150,000. 
 
As details become more in focus these numbers may vary to some extent, but we feel it gives us a good starting point 
for discussion. 
 
If you need anything else, let me know. 
 
Patrick 
 
 
 
 











Becker County Historical Society Museum
Detroit Lakes, MN  
Updated 08/30/17

Preliminary Project Estimates
Demolition at Theater entry 
    Roof/entry canopy 100,000
New Construction at Theater 455,000
    Roof/second floor/entry 
    Additional Stop on Elevator

Two Story Building
New Construction 23,550 165 3,885,750
Basement 5,000 100 500,000
Site Allowance 60,000

$5,000,750

Contingency 250,000
A/E Fees 375,000
Misc. (Survey, Soils, testing, bidding) 30,000
FFE (Fixture/Furniture/Equipment) 400,000

$6,055,750 $6M





Return to AgendaExhibit 7C



1

CONCESSION LEASE 

THIS AGREEMENT, (the “Lease”) is executed by the parties as below provided to be 

effective February 13, 2018, by and between the City of Detroit Lakes, a Minnesota municipal 

corporation, P.O. Box 647, 1025 Roosevelt Avenue, Detroit Lakes, MN 56502 (the “City”) and 

Detroit Country Club, Inc., a Minnesota not for profit corporation, P.O. Box 785, Detroit Lakes, 

MN 56502 (“DCC”).  

RECITALS 

1. The City provides community recreation, education and wellness services and programs at the

“Detroit Country Club,” a municipal recreation facility (the “Facility”) composed of two golf

courses, the “Pine to Palm Course” and the adjacent and adjoining "Lakeview Course," both

of which are owned and used by the City as part of its program of public recreation as

authorized by Minn. Stat. 471.191 Subd. 1, including but not limited to golf, golf education

and recreation, meeting space and programming for residents of the Detroit Lakes area

community and for visitors to the Detroit Lakes community.

2. DCC is a Minnesota non-profit corporation exempt from taxes under Minnesota Law and

under Chapter 501 (c)(3) of the Federal Internal Revenue Code being a qualifying non-profit

organization under Minn. Stat. Chapter 317A.  By separate Management Agreement effective

January 1, 2016 (hereinafter the “Management Agreement”) the City employs DCC to manage

the Facility for public use and operate the Facility for the benefit and recreation of the general

public and for the City.

3. The Management Agreement permits DCC to lease, on behalf of the City and subject to the

written consent and approval of the City, defined portions of the Facility to DCC or third

party persons or entities to operate specific amenities or concessions in those defined portions

of the Facility.  Any such lease must be in writing, must have a term less than one calendar

year and may not be subject to renewal without documented evidence of an affirmative

solicitation of and offer to other potential lessees of that portion of the Facility.

4. The Management Agreement further permits DCC to provide as an amenity to the golfing

Return to AgendaExhibit 7D



 

 
2

public and public at large a concession which offers prepared food and on sale intoxicating 

liquor, wine and beer or non-intoxicating malt liquor (collectively the “Food and Beverage 

Service”) under lease within defined and confined portions of the Facility.   

 

5. DCC has determined that in order to provide a complete golfing experience to the public, it 

will include as an amenity a concession which offers the Food and Beverage service at a 

defined portion of the clubhouse at the Pine to Palm course (the “P2P Clubhouse”) and for 

the term of this Lease, it will provide such service. 

 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the matters recited above, and of the mutual benefits and 

obligations set forth in this Lease, and other good and valuable consideration, the City and DCC agree 

as follows: 

 

 1.  LEASE.  The City does hereby remise, lease, and let unto DCC, and DCC does hereby 

hire and take from the City possession of the defined portion of the P2P Clubhouse owned and used 

by the City as part of its program of public recreation located in Sections Seventeen (17) and Twenty 

(20) of Township 138 North of Range 41 West of the 5th P.M. in Becker County Minnesota, consisting 

of 1,584 square feet of interior space (approximately 22% of the total square feet of the P2P 

Clubhouse) identified and highlighted in a blue outline as the “Bar and Restaurant Area” on the floor 

plan attached to this Lease as Exhibit A and incorporated herein (the “Leased Premises”), to have and 

to hold the Leased Premises just as they are without liability or obligation on the part of the City of 

making any further alterations, improvements, or repairs of any kind. 

 2.  TERM OF LEASE.  The term of this lease shall be 321 days, commencing February 13, 

2018 through and until December 31, 2018, unless earlier terminated pursuant to the provisions 

hereof, for the purposes of operating the Food and Beverage Service concession within the Leased 

Premises located in the P2P Clubhouse owned and used by the City as part of its program of public 

recreation as authorized by Minn. Stat. 471.191 Subd. 1 known as Detroit Country Club.  There shall 

be no automatic renewal of this lease. 

 3.  RENT.  DCC shall pay all expenses associated with the operation of the Food and 

Beverage Service concession permitted by this Lease including without limitation expenses of all 

employees, product, supplies, utilities,  insurance, maintenance, repair, and taxes including without 



 

 
3

limitation all personal property, real property, sales, use and excise taxes and charges in the nature of 

taxes of any kind or nature related to or assessed as a consequence of the concession or its operation, 

and shall be entitled to retain the proceeds of concession sales and operations. 

 4.  LEGAL DESCRIPTION.  In the event it becomes necessary or desirable to record this 

Lease at the office of the Becker County Recorder, DCC hereby authorizes the City to attach the legal 

description of the leased premises to this Lease and hereby agrees to incorporate the same into the 

provisions of this Lease. 

 5.  QUIET ENJOYMENT.  DCC shall keep and maintain said premises during the Term 

and quit and deliver up the Leased Premises to the City peaceably and quietly at the end of any lease 

term, or at any previous termination thereof for any cause, in as good order, condition, and state of 

repair, reasonable use, and wear thereof, and inevitable accidents excepted, as the same now are. 

 6.  IMPROVEMENTS.  DCC shall obtain the City's written consent prior to remodeling 

the Leased Premises in any manner, including but not limited to changing the dimensions of the 

interior or adding any additional square footage to the concession.  The City shall have the right to 

demand evidence of prepayment and waiver of mechanics liens for all such remodeling prior to 

commencement of any work.  Any such remodeling shall be at DCC's expense; such improvements 

to the structure becoming the property of the City.  DCC shall obtain the City's written consent prior 

to affixing any furnishings or other equipment to the interior or exterior of the Leased Premises in a 

manner such that the furnishings or equipment become fixtures.  The costs or expenses of any 

furnishings or equipment affixed to the Leased Premises shall be borne exclusively by DCC but the 

City shall own all such items once affixed.  DCC shall pay all costs of installation of any such 

furnishings or equipment and, upon termination of this Lease, such items shall remain on the Leased 

Premises and be the property of the City.  DCC hereby disclaims any ownership thereof. 

 7.  CONDITION OF PREMISES/UTILITIES.  DCC will put and keep said premises 

continually in a neat, clean, and respectable condition.  DCC will not make or suffer any waste thereon 

or thereof, and DCC shall also pay when due for all gas, electricity, power, and other utilities used in 

the premises during the Term of this Lease. 

 8.  ENTRY BY CITY.  DCC shall permit the City or the City's agents, contractors, or 

employees to enter Leased Premises at all reasonable times to view them. 

 9.  COMPLIANCE WITH LAW.  DCC shall not commit or permit any action to be 

performed on the premises which will be in violation of any statute, regulation, or ordinance of any 



 

 
4

governmental body or which will be in violation of any insurance policy carried on the Leased Premises 

or the P2P Clubhouse.  Specifically, but without limitation, DCC shall obtain at the DCC’s expense 

the necessary license from the applicable jurisdiction and prior to the sale, storage, use or giving away 

of any alcoholic beverages on or from the Leased Premises by DCC or any other person 

 10.  ASSIGNMENT/SUBLEASE.  DCC may not assign this lease or sublet the premises 

or any part thereof, whether by voluntary act, operation of law or otherwise, without the prior written 

consent of the City in each instance.  Written consent by the City to one assignment of the Lease or 

to one subletting of the Leased Premises or any portion thereof shall not be a waiver of the City's 

rights under this Lease as to any subsequent assignment or subletting.  

 11.  CASUALTY.  If fire or other casualty shall render the Leased Premises untenantable and, 

under the Management Agreement it is determined that the P2P Clubhouse will not be rebuilt, this 

Lease shall terminate forthwith. 

 12.  INSURANCE BY DCC.  DCC shall assure that the contents of the Leased Premises 

owned by DCC are covered by hazard insurance and that DCC's use and occupancy is covered by 

public liability insurance and worker's compensation insurance.  The public liability policy shall 

provide coverage at least in the amount of $1,500,000.00 per incident with a maximum aggregate of 

$2,000,000.00 and shall name the City as an additional insured.  A copy of the current Certificate of 

Insurance is attached hereto as Exhibit B and incorporated by reference herein. 

 DCC will provide the City with copies of all insurance policies or a current certificate of 

insurance and any renewals, modifications, extensions or amendments thereof. 

 In addition, prior to the sale, storage, use or giving away of alcoholic beverages on or from the 

Leased Premises by DCC or any other person, DCC, at the expense of DCC, shall obtain a policy or 

policies of insurance issued by a responsible insurance company and in a form acceptable to the City, 

saving harmless and protecting City and the Leased Premises against any all damages, claims, liens, 

judgments, expenses, and costs arising under any and all liquor liability laws of the United States of 

America, the State of Minnesota or any subdivision thereof including, but not limited to County and 

Municipal ordinance, or under any present or future law, statute, or ordinance of any such 

governmental unit, or other governmental authority having jurisdiction of the Leased Premises, by 

reason of any such storage, sale, use, or giving away of alcoholic beverages on or from the Leased 

Premises.  Such policy or policies of insurance shall be for a minimum of $1,000,000.00 per occurrence 

for bodily injury, fatal or non-fatal, to any one person, and shall name City as an additional insured. 



 

 
5

 13.  CITY DEFAULT.  The City shall not be deemed to be in default under this lease until 

DCC has given written notice specifying the nature of the default and the City does not cure such 

default within thirty (30) days after receipt of such notice or within such reasonable time thereafter as 

may be necessary to cure such default where such default is of such a character as to reasonably require 

more than thirty (30) to cure.  

 14.  HOLD HARMLESS/INDEMNITY.  Except in the event of negligence or intentional 

act of the City, its agents or its employees, DCC agrees to save, hold harmless, defend, and indemnify 

the City against any liability for damages to any person or property in or about the Leased Premises, 

or as a result of DCC's operation of the concession.  Except in the event of negligence or intentional 

act of the City, its agents or its employees, the City shall not be liable to DCC, its agents, employees, 

representatives, customers, or invitees for any personal injury, death, or damage to property caused 

by theft, burglary, water, gas, electricity, fire, or any other cause occurring in or about the Leased 

Premises.  All property kept, stored, or maintained on the Leased Premises shall be so kept, stored, or 

maintained at the sole risk of DCC. 

 15.  LIENS.  DCC agrees to promptly pay all sums of money in respect of labor, services, 

materials, supplies, or other equipment furnished or alleged to have been furnished to DCC in or 

about the premises.  DCC hereby covenants and agrees that DCC will not permit or allow any 

mechanics or materialmen's liens to be placed on the City's interest in the Leased Premises during the 

term hereof.  Not-withstanding the previous sentence, however, in the event that such lien shall be so 

placed on the City's interest, DCC shall take all necessary steps to see that it is removed within thirty 

(30) days of its being filed; provided, however, that the DCC may contest any such lien provided the 

DCC first posts a surety bond, in favor of and insuring the City, in an amount equal to One Hundred 

Twenty-five percent (125%) of the amount of any such lien.  

 16.  COSTS/ATTORNEY FEES.  If any action at law or in equity shall be brought in court 

to recover any rent under this Lease or for or on account of any breach of or to enforce or interpret 

any of the covenants, terms, or conditions of this lease or for the recovery of the possession of the 

Leased Premises, and the Court rules in favor of the City, the City shall be entitled to recover from 

DCC its reasonable attorneys' fees in and amount which shall be fixed by the court and shall be made 

a part of any judgment or decree rendered.  

 17.  SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS.  This Lease shall be binding on and shall inure to the 

benefit of the parties hereto and their respective assigns and successors.   



 

 
6

 18.  AMENDMENT/MODIFICATION.  No amendment, modification, or waiver of any 

condition, provision, or term of this Lease shall be valid or of any effect unless made in writing, signed 

by the party or parties to be bound or by its duly authorized representative, and specifying with 

particularity the extent and nature of such amendment, modification or waiver.  Any waiver by any 

party of any default of another party shall not affect or impair any right arising from any subsequent 

default. 

 19.  SEVERABLE.  Each provision, section, sentence, clause, phrase of this Lease is intended 

to be severable.  If any provision, section, sentence, clause, phrase, or word hereof is illegal or invalid 

for any reason whatsoever, such illegality or invalidity shall not affect the validity of the remainder of 

this Lease.  This lease shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of 

Minnesota.  

 20.  DCC DEFAULT.  If any term, condition, or covenant of this Lease to be kept or 

performed by DCC shall be violated or neglected then, and in any of such said cases, DCC does hereby 

authorize and fully empower the City, or the City's agents, to cancel and annul this Lease after 30 days 

notice of default, during which periods DCC has the right to cure such default.  If such default is not 

so cured by DCC the City shall have the right thereafter to re-enter and take possession of the Leased 

Premises by force, if necessary, without any other notice of intention to re-enter and remove all 

persons and their property therefrom, and to use force and assistance in affecting and perfecting such 

removal as the City may deem advisable to recover full and exclusive possession of all of the Leased 

Premises. 

 21.  MINNESOTA GOVERNMENT DATA PRACTICES ACT.  DCC must comply 

with the Minnesota Government Data Practices Act, Minnesota Statutes Chapter 13, as it applies to 

(1) all data provided by the City pursuant to this Agreement, and (2) all data, created, collected, 

received, stored, used, maintained, or disseminated by DCC pursuant to this Lease.  DCC is subject 

to all the provisions of the Minnesota Government Data Practices Act, including but not limited to 

the civil remedies of Minnesota Statutes Section 13.08, as if it were a government entity.  In the event 

DCC receives a request to release data, DCC must immediately notify the City.  The City will give 

DCC instructions concerning the release of the data to the requesting party before the data is released. 

DCC agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold the City, its officials, officers, agents, employees, and 

volunteers harmless from any claims resulting from the unlawful disclosure and/or use of protected 

data by any officers, agents, partners, employees, volunteers or assignees of DCC.  The terms of this 



 

 
7

paragraph shall survive the cancellation or termination of this Lease. 

 22.  COMPLETE AGREEMENT.  This lease contains the entire understanding of the 

parties hereto with respect to the Lease and the Food and Beverage Service concession contemplated 

hereby. 

 

 
DETROIT COUNTRY CLUB, INC. 
 
 
 
___________________________________________ 
By: Sam Rufer 
Its: President 
 
 
 
THE CITY OF DETROIT LAKES, MINNESOTA 
 
___________________________________________ 
By: Mathew Brenk 
Its: Mayor 
 
 
___________________________________________ 
By: Kelcey Klemm 
Its: City Administrator 
 
 
 
STATE OF MINNESOTA ) 
    ):ss 
COUNTY  OF BECKER ) 
 
On this ______ day of February, 2018, before me, a Notary Public, within and for said County, 
personally appeared Sam Rufer, who executed the foregoing instrument on behalf of Detroit Country 
Club, Inc., a Minnesota not for profit corporation as its President, and acknowledged that he executed 
the same as his free act and deed. 
 
NOTARY STAMP 

________________________________ 
      Notary Public 
      My commission expires: 
 



 

 
8

STATE OF MINNESOTA ) 
    ):ss 
COUNTY  OF BECKER ) 
 
On this ________ day of __________________, 2018, before me, a Notary Public, within and for 
said County, personally appeared Mathew Brenk, Mayor and Kelcey Klemm, City Administrator, who 
executed the foregoing instrument on behalf of the City of Detroit Lakes, a Minnesota municipal 
corporation, and acknowledged that thee executed the same as their free act and deed. 
 
NOTARY STAMP 
 

________________________________ 
      Notary Public 
      My commission expires: 
 
 
 
 
 
THIS INSTRUMENT WAS DRAFTED BY: 
 
RAMSTAD, SKOYLES & WINTERS, P.A. 
Charles J. Ramstad 
114 Holmes Street West 
Detroit Lakes, MN  56501 
(218) 847-5653 
 



ORDINANCE NO. 422 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 1001A.06 DOCK LICENSE APPLICATION 
OF CITY CODE 1001A CITY BEACH 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DETROIT LAKES, ORDAINS: 

City Code Section 1001A.06 - Dock License Application, Subd. 4.  - Liability Insurance 
Required, Item A is amended as follows: 

A. During the entire Dock License term, the Licensee shall keep in full force and effect at 
Licensee's own expense, a policy of public liability and property damage insurance 
with respect to the Licensed Dock in which the limits of public liability for bodily 
injury, death, and property damage, shall be not less than the maximum liability 
insurance established by Minnesota Statutes 466.04, Subd. 1. The insurance policy 
shall name the City and any additional person, firms or entities designated by it, as 
additional insured, and shall contain a clause providing that the insurer will not cancel 
or change the insurance without first giving the City at least thirty (30) days prior 
written notice.  The insurance shall be issued by a responsible company qualified to do 
business in Minnesota, approved by the City, and a copy of the policy or a certificate 
of insurance shall be delivered to the City. 

Passed and adopted this 13th day of March, 2018. 

Approved this 13th day of March, 2018. 

_______________________ 
Matt Brenk, Mayor 

_________________________ 
Glori French, City Clerk 

First Reading:  February 13, 2018 
Second Reading:  March 13, 2018 

Exhibit 7E Return to Agenda



ORDINANCE NO. 423 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 702.12 TEMPORARY EXPANSION PERMIT 
FOR SIDEWALK CAFE OF CITY CODE 702 LIQUOR AND WINE LICENSING 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DETROIT LAKES, ORDAINS: 

City Code Section 702.12 – Temporary Expansion Permit for Sidewak Café, Subd. 9, Item B is 
amended as follows: 

B. general public liability and property damage insurance with respect to the Expanded 
Premises in which the limits of public liability, shall be not less than the maximum 
liability insurance established by Minnesota Statutes 466.04, Subd. 1. The insurance 
policy shall name the City and any additional person, firms or entities designated by it, 
as additional insureds, and shall contain a clause providing that the insurer will not 
cancel or change the insurance without first giving the City at least 10 days prior 
written notice. The insurance shall be issued by a responsible company qualified to do 
business in Minnesota, approved by the City, and a copy of the policy or a certificate 
of insurance shall be delivered to and approved by the City Administrator before the 
Permit is effective. 

Passed and adopted this 13th day of March, 2018. 

Approved this 13th day of March, 2018. 

_______________________ 
Matt Brenk, Mayor 

_________________________ 
Glori French, City Clerk 

First Reading:  February 13, 2018 
Second Reading:  March 13, 2018 

Exhibit 7F Return to Agenda



RESOLUTION NO. 2018 

IN THE MATTER OF APPROVING PURCHASES FROM  
SWANSON’S REPAIR FOR 2018 

WHEREAS, The City of Detroit Lakes desires to purchase miscellaneous purchases, and 

WHEREAS, Ryan Swanson is a Deputy Chief of the Detroit Lakes Fire Department and 
will be financially interested in the purchase. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED By the Council of the City of Detroit Lakes, 
Minnesota, that: 

1) The City Administrator is directed to make the above mentioned purchase
on behalf of the City from Swanson’s Repair for 2018

2) It is determined that the purchases are as low as, or lower than the price at
which the purchase can be obtained elsewhere at this time

3) This resolution is passed to comply with the provisions of Minnesota
Statutes 471.87-89.

Passed and adopted this 13th day of February, 2018. 

Approved this 13th day of February, 2018. 

Matt Brenk, Mayor 

_____________________ 
Glori French, City Clerk 

Exhibit 7G Return to Agenda



2-05-2018 10:50 AM

FI'ND ACCOIJNT* ACCOUNT }IA!,IE

CIIY OF DRTROIT I.ATES

POOLED CASH REPORT (FI'ND 999)

AS OF: JAUUARY 319T, 2018

BEGINNING

BAIANCE

CT'RRENT

ACTIVITT

CURRENT

BAI,AIICE

PAGEr 1

(PROTESIED)

CI.AIM ON CASH

102 - 10100

104 -10100

204 -10100

205 -10100

205 -10100

20?- 10100

208 -10100

209- 10100

210- 10100

211 - 10100

212-10100

213 -10100

214 -10100

215-t 0100

304- 10100

305- 10100

306 - 10100

30? -10100

415 -10100

416 -10100

417-10100

418 -10100

419- 10100

420 - 10100

421-10100

422-10100

423 -10100

424-10100

425-10100

426 -10100

42? -10100

428 - 10100

429-X0100

430-10100

431 -10100

432 -10100

433 -10100

434-10100

435-10100

436-10100

43? -10100

438-10100

439 -10100

440 -10100

441 -10100

442 -10100

443 - 10100

501- 10100

s02 - 10100

CASH.GEIIERAL PI'IID

CASH-SCH@L LLAISON OFFICER

CASH.FIRE DEPT

CASH.IJIBRARY EI'ND

CASH.AIRPORT FUND

CESH. DSUEIOPMENT AUII{ORITY

CASH.IODGING TAX

CASH.STORI{ WATER

CASH-EQUIPMEIIT FU![D

CASH. PARK DEDICATION EI'I\!D

CASH.PERI{A}IENT IMPROVEMEIIT FI'N

CASH.F@D & BEI'ERAGE TN(

CASH.SPORTS ARENA

CASH.BOIID EMERGENCY FI'ND

CASH.2O15 CAPITAI PROJEETS

CASH.2O15 CAPITAL PROiIECIS

CASH-MISCEI.I,.ANEOUS COIITRIBUTIO

CASH-201? CAPITAIJ PROJECTS

CASH.QZAB/HOLMES DEBT SERVICE

CASH.TIF S28.1 (T'NION CENIRAI.)

CASH-TIF S17.1 (MMCDC)

CTAH.PIRE HAI.I. DEBT SERVICE

CASH.TIF *34-1 (DL HOTTL PART)

cAsB-TrF #33-1 (CJ. rNC)

cAsH-TrF #8-2 (SwrFT'S)

CASH-TIF S20.1 (I'NION SQI'ARE)

CASH-TIF S23 -1 (ACS/ltARl'!'lAll8)

CASH.TXF *18-1 (CONSOLIDATED)

CESH.TIF *24-1 (TODGE L.K DE|T)

CASH.TIF *8.15 (PEI,ICAN RVRI

CASH.TIF *35.1 (MCKINI, T PT.ZA)

CASH.TIF *25.1 (CHAMBER)

CASH-TIF *8-3 (GRATSTONE)

CAAH.TIF *16.1 (MODERN BUSI

CASH-TIF S8-8 (IONG BRIDCE}

cAsH-TrF *8-9 (RTCHT|OOD)

CASH.TIF *8.10 (MARINA CONDO)

CASH.TIF *36.1 (ABSOLTJTE ICE)

CASH-TIF *21-1 (GROVER LI![D)

CASH-TIF *2?.1(PLs![T ACRES II)
cAsg-TrF s8-4 (sT. MaRY.S)

CASH-TIF S8-5 (WOYTASSEK)

CASH-TIF S32.1 (N.PORT TIELD)

CASH.TIF $30-1 (DOI{NTOD'N XING)

CASH.TIF S8-13 (INH MEADONS)

CASH.TIF S8.14 (INH PLSIM AC)

CASH.TIF S26.1 (I,.BRIDGE HGTS}

cAsH-2o 10 / 11 ASSESSMENTS

CASH-DETROIT I.A(E DR

2,932,!91 .0'? (

52,130.28 (

0.00 (

L23,365.17 (

327 ,713.371
31,48?.?5 (

91,781.?0 (

289, 834 .8?

?0?.086.59 (

L72,06X .40

1, 138,605 . ?4

11?, 956 . 89

0.00 (

158.627.18

33,82s.11 (

?88,198.?6) (

24.234 .05

102,583.49 (

0 .00

0 .00

24,082.99

41,594.15 (

0 .00

0 .00

0 .00

0 .00

0 .00

0 .00

0 .00

0 .00

0 .00

0 .00

46,286,57

0 .00

93,492.90 (

0 .00

0 .00

0 .00

0 .00

0 .00

o .00

0 .00

0 .02

0 .00

o .00

0 .00

11.012.s1 (

34L,410.74 (

392 .40

403, 563 . ?2 )

6, 081.31)

8,266.83) (

.t,427.95t
249,L94.73 I

L6,209.221

11. ?48 .6s)

28. 118 . 96

2L1 ,542.501
0 .00

15, 333 .10

23,527 .00

9,242.58t I
0 .00

t1,615.8?)
38,32?.65) (

0 .00

115,361.65) (

0 .00

0 .00

10, ?o? .8?

?8,8?5.87) (

0 .00

o .00

0 .00

0 .00

0 .00

0 .00

0 .00

0 .00

0 .00

0 .00

0 .00

0 .00

32,298 .891

0 .00

0 .00

0 .00

0 .00

531 .44

0 .00

0 .00

0 .00

0 .00

0 .00

0 .00

23,503.10) (

225 , 065 .00 )

752.2L

2,528,829.35
46,O48.9'?

8, 266 .83 )

L2L,937.e2

?8.578.64)

L5,278.54

80, 033 .0s

317, 953 .83

489, 544 .09

1?2, 063 .40

1 . 154, 938 . 84

141.483 .89

9.242.s81

158,62? . 18

22,209 .24

826,526.4L1

24,214 .08

L2,718 .16l
0 .00

0 .00

14,'190 .86

17 ,28L.121
0 .00

0 .00

0 .00

0 .00

0 .00

0 .00

0 .00

0 .00

0 .00

0 .00

46,286.51

0 .00

51, 1 94 .01

0 .00

0 .00

0 .00

0.00

531.44

0 .00

0 .00

0 .02

0 .00

0 .00

0 .00

12,490.59)

116,405 . ?4

1, t 44 .61

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

Exhibit 7L Return to Agenda



2-05-2018 10:50 AM

FI'ND ACCOT'NTS ACCIUIfT IiIA!,IE

CITT OF DETTOIT I.AKES

POOLED CASH REPORT (FUI{D 999}

AS OF: iIANUARY 31ST. 2018

BEGINNING

BAI,ANCE

CT'RREIIT

ACTIVITT

CT'RRENT

BAI,ANCE

PAGE: 2

(PROTECTED)

503 - 10100 cAsH-2008/09 ASSESSMEIITS

s04 -10100 cAsH- 1995/9? ASSESSME!{TS

505-10100 cAsH-2015 DEBT SERVICE FU![D

505-10100 cAsH-2016 ASSESSMENTS

50?-10100 cesH-2013 AssEssMElrTs

508 -10100 cAsH-2002 ASSESSMENTS

s09 - 10100 cA6H-2003 ASSESSMENTS

510 -10100 cAsH-2005 ASSESSMENTS

511 -10100 CISH-2006 ASSESSME$TS

s12-10100 cAsH-2012 ASSESSMETTTS

513 -10100 CASH-200? ASSESSMETfTS

514 -10100 CASH-201? aSSESSMENTS

519.10100 CASH-1989 DEBT R"EDEMPTION

600 -10100 CASH-IBUST FIrlfD/Rtf,IREES

699-10100 CASH-IRP

?00 - 10100 cesH-r.A(EsNEf,

?01-101 00 cAsH-EIJEcrr,rc

?02-10100 cAsH-wATER

?O3.1O1OO CASH-SEWER OPERATION

?04-10100 CASH-LIoUOR

TOTAL CI,AIM ON CASH

CESH IN BAIIK . POOLED CA.SH

999-10110 POOLED CASH

SI'BTOITAI, CESH IN BAIIK . POOLED CASH

WAGES PAYABLE

414. 010 . 32

1. 349 .81

560. ?83 .4?

584,284 .26

234,439 .94

176, 3s0 . s0

22L,96L.79

66L ,678 .02

219, 187 .38

83, 088 .85

316, 925 .0?

160, 823 .36

0 .00

311, 6?1 . ?5

418, ?54 .43

0 .00

3,263,O89.29

532 ,971 .49

1, ?03. 066 . ?4

t,228 ,s43 .66

353,04?.14)

389.22

1?9, ?17 .58 )

41?, 526 . 68 )

165, ?1? . 62 )

88, 117 .89)

162. 844.89)

434,914.33)

220,597.L2' I
56. 591 .26)

345,521.46) (

o .00

o .00

6,052 .66)

L7,021 .681

0 .00

203 , 907 .75 )

30,044.52)

1L,689.44

249 126.28

60, 963 . 18

1, ?39 .03

381,065 .89

166, ?5? .58

68,722.12

s8,212.6L

59, 116 . 90

225.763.69

1,409 . ?4)

].6,497 .59

28. s96 .39 )

160, 823 . 36

0 .00

305,619 .09

401,126 .75

0 .00

3 . 059, 181 .54

502,928.91

L,7'14,756.L8

938, 81? . 38

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

999 -20999 I{AGES PAYABLE

ST'BTCYIAI. WAGES PAYABLE

16,51X,318.21 ( 3,779,24t.681 L2,732.076.53

15 511 318 .21 3 719 241 .68 t2.732 .076 .s3

16,511,318.21 ( 3,719,24L.681 L2,732,076.53

0 .00 0 .00 0 .00

0 .00 0 .00 0 .00

16,511,318.21 ( 1,779,24L.68t L2,732.0't6.53

16, 511, 318 .21 I 3,179,2AL.68t L2,132,076 .5X

16,511,318.21 I 1,179,24t.681 t2,112,016.5t

P

TO|IAL CASH ItiI BANK - POOLED CISH

DT'E TO OTIIER. FI'!{DS . POOLED CASH

999-20111 DtE TO OTHER FINDS

TOIAL DI'E TC' OTHER FIJIIDS



To: Mayor Matt Brenk 

From: Chief Steve Todd 

RE: Monthly Report 

Date: February 7, 2018 

Our new Ballistic Helmets arrived this month and have been deployed to the squad cars.  They 

are stored in the plastic totes with the heavy armor.  Please test fit them so you are familiar 

with the strapping mechanisms. 

We received a donation of $1,000 from local residents Mr. and Mrs. John J. Gunderson.  They 

requested the money be spent on helping keep our officers safe.  We utilized this money on 

tactical lights for our AR-15 patrol rifles.  We received an excellent deal on the lights from Matt 

Johnson, he included the mounts and even came in to install them with Officer Wayne Striebel. 

We received a $120 donation from a local couple who wish to remain anonymous, this allowed 

us to purchase a 10th light and have all of our rifles equipped. 

Our new parking tickets have been delivered and are ready for use.  These were necessary due 

to City Council changing the fee schedule which included parking tickets being adjusted to $25 

per violation. 

The Police Civil Service Commission members, City Clerk and I have all completed scoring the 

submitted materials for the new police officer applicants.  The first round of interviews is 

scheduled for March 5th. 

We are in the midst of our 1st annual evidence purge.  Officers with evidence stored in the 

evidence room must provide direction on their stored evidence in terms of retention, return or 

destruction.  Our evidence room is extremely small and we cannot afford to store unneeded 

items. 

Sgt. Glander will be soliciting bids for 2 new squad cars.  One will be an SUV, we are still 

considering if the 2nd vehicle will be a sedan or SUV.  The sedans usually cost less but they have 

much less cargo room.  There are a few officers who prefer the sedan.  We will weigh the cost 

difference in combination with officer preference. 

Exhibit 8D
Return to Agenda



We are in the process of updating several forms officers utilize in the course of taking reports.  

Most of our paper forms are very antiquated, having been created on typewriter and 

photocopied numerous times.  Our new forms will be more professional appearing, sectioned 

for easier completion, and available in paper or fillable PDF format for completion on our 

laptops. 

Our only item on this month’s agenda is the solicitation of bids from local towing companies for 

towing and storage of forfeiture vehicles.  We are seeking alternatives to our current method of 

handling forfeitures due to our work load and storage constraints. 

We will be having a police department family event on February 18th. 

Calls for service totaled 915 in January, up from 848 in January of 2017. 

Chief Steve Todd 

 

 



Made by Page 1 of 2

Detroit Lakes Police Monthly CFS Report Printed on February 7, 2018

Zone
Code

   City of Detroit Lakes   Totals

911H                                  27         27

ALARM                                  25         25

ANIMAL                                  10         10

ASSAULT                                    2           2

ASSIST                                  54         54

ATL                                    2           2

BURG                                    3           3

CAF                                  37         37

CIVIL                                    6           6

COV                                    2           2

DEATHNTF                                    1           1

DISORD                                    6           6

DIST                                  29         29

DOM                                    6           6

DRUG                                    9           9

ESCAPE                                    1           1

EXTRA                                    3           3

FIRE                                    2           2

FRAUD                                    2           2

HARR                                    7           7

HAZMAT                                    1           1

INFO                                  60         60

JUV                                    4           4

MED                                105       105

MVC                                  49         49

MVTHEFT                                    1           1

NOISE                                    3           3

OD                                    1           1

OFF                                  25         25

PARKING                                  37         37

POR                                    6           6

PROP                                  13         13

PROPDAM                                    6           6

ROBBERY                                    1           1

SEXCON                                    2           2

SHLIFTING                                  10         10

SUICIDE                                    4           4

SUSPACT                                  50         50

THEFT                                  37         37



Made by Page 2 of 2

Zone
Code

   City of Detroit Lakes   Totals

THEFT - NSF CHECK                                    1           1

THREATS                                    1           1

TRANS                                  12         12

TRESPASS                                    5           5

TRFCOMP                                  22         22

TSTOP                                162       162

VANDAL                                    1           1

VEHLOCK                                    1           1

WARRANT                                  17         17

WARRANTNEW                                    2           2

WEAPON                                    3           3

WELFARE                                  20         20

                                 19         19

Totals                                915       915



Month
Total 
Calls City Calls Cancelled

Detroit 
Township

Lake View 
Township

Erie 
Township Rescue Other Mutual Aid

January 20 7 8 1 1 1 MA Given-Wolf Lake (2)

February

March

April

May

June

July

August

September

October

November

December

Totals 20 7 8 1 1 1 0

Detroit Lakes Fire Department
January 2018

For February 13, 2018 Council

2018 FIRE REPORT SUMMARY

Exhibit 8E Return to Agenda



�������� ����	
��
����	��	����

����
������������	�	������	������������
����� ���

������������������������������������������������

�������������
��
 !"#�$#%&"'(#)'* $&'&�+,-.&)/# $!*%&'-. 01"#� � 2#3-1(#4�5'&-6�7"&6 81/19':)-!;#)'�8!*' <=>?@A�*#-1);*B�C#-1";*�DEF=�1G�F=�  !"*'�H"#I!19*�J#,'�8&*'�H#"�H&/#�K�� L&3!;!'6 $&'# :)-!;#)'�J9(M#" +,%1*9"# N3&"(�$&'# N;;"#** O!'6 :)-!;#)'�P6%# 8&*'�Q%;&'#; +)'#"#;�R6����S����� �����KS � �T��K��� �T��U�V��	��


�W� W	������X
�	
 W�
�
���	Y�
�Y��
��	��� ���������� V�
�Z�[�
Z����S����� �����\K � �]��\��� \����
���V��̂ W	������X
�	
 ����Y��_����	 ���������� V�
�Z�[�
Z����]����� �����\] � �K�K���� ��\K���
Z̀�	���Y a

_	 ����Y��_����	 ���������� V�
�Z�[�
Z���������� �����\T � ���T���� b����Z�c�Z��S W	������X
�	
 [

��	
��d�
���
��_
��� ���������� V�
�Z�[�
Z����\����� �����\� � ����T��� �TT��eV�c�Z����f W	������X
�	
 ��
���
Z
�	��
���Y	Y��� ���������� V�
�Z�[�
Z����\����� �����\� � �T�K���� �����X��_����Y_	��Y W	������X
�	
 ����Y��_����	 ���������� V�
�Z�[�
Z����U����� �����\� � �T�TU��� T�]�g	���
����̀	���Y W	������X
�	
 X��
��
�
���
Z
�	�h���� ���������� V�
�Z�[�
Z����K����� �����U� � ���T]��� c�_��
Z����f W	������X
�	
 ������̀	����	�
���Y	��� ���������� V�
�Z�[�
Z����]����� �����KU � ���TT��� c�_��
Z�T]�
�Y�b����� W	������X
�	
 W�
�
���	Y�
�Y��
��	��� ���������� V�
�Z�[�
Z����]����� �����K\ � ����K��� ��TT�c�Z�� X
�	�g
�� W�
�
���	Y�
�Y��
��	��� ���������� V�
�Z�[�
Z����]����� �����K� � �K�K���� ���T��eV�c�Z��� X
�	�g
�� W�
�
���	Y�
�Y��
��	��� ���������� V�
�Z�[�
Z����]����� �����UU � �K��\��� c�Z����̂�
�Y�X��_���� W	������X
�	
 ������̀	����	�
���Y	��� ���������� V�
�Z�[�
Z����]����� �����U\ � �U�]]��� c�_��
Z����
�Y�f

��� W	������X
�	
 �	Y��
��


�
�h�


���� ���������� V�
�Z�[�
Z����T����� �����UT � �U�K���� K�]����]����V��		� �	�
�_
 ����Y��_����	 ���������� V�
�Z�[�
Z���������� �����U� � �K������ �KK���������Y���
Y W	������X
�	
 W�
�
���	Y�
�Y��
��	��� ���������� V�
�Z�[�
Z���������� �����U� � ���TK��� ��K\�̂

���_�����̀	���� W	������X
�	
 [

����	�������	������� ���������� V�
�Z�[�
Z

=
i�	�����	�X�
���_ ��YY��j��fY��V	
���� ���fk
����
���� ����	�
 ������	��	
����l	̀	���	��	
�������mZ�	������ ���W
�	��
�_	������������ m�Y
Z��������������� m�Y
Z���� �

������ \S�U� KS�]� TS��

Wfm�anm�X�ofV$&*.M1&"; :)-!;#)'* 01;93#* 5'&GG 5#'9%



�������� ����	
��
����	��	����

����
������������	�	������	������������
����� ���

�������������������������
��
���� ����� �����!! � ���� ��� ����"�#�$�%" &	������'
�	
 &�
�
���	(�
�(��
��	��� ���������� )�
�$�*�
$����!����� �����!" � ���"!��� ��"�+	���
��)��		��, &	������'
�	
 &�
�
���	(�
�(��
��	��� ���������� )�
�$�*�
$����"����� �����-� � ���!"��� �."�.�� ����)��		� &	������'
�	
 ,�	�����
�������/�	��� ���������� )�
�$�*�
$���������� �����!� � �-������ �.-".�� ��(��0	��	 +
��
�
$ &�
�
���	(�
�(��
��	��� ���� ����� )�
�$�*�
$123456�789:;<7=�>89:?<7�@AB2�:C�B2� DE?7F�G?8HE:I7�J8KF�LM7F�G8?�GMN8�!�O������P�
/	Q�	�(R�P����S	�
���� ���!��

������  .�-� !.�"� %.��



MUNICIPAL LIQUOR STORE
2OO HOLMES STREET EAST

DETROIT LAKES, MN

SALES REPORT
FOR THE MONTH OF January,2018

2018 2017
$$ lncrease
(Decrease)

% lncrease
(Decrease)

Sales,'
Cunent

Year to Date

Customer Count:
Cunent

Year to Date

$410,248.59 $384,970.30 $25,278.29 6.57o/o

$410,248.59 $384,970.30 $25,278.29 6.57o/o

17,196 15,891 1,305 8.21o/o

17,196 15,891 1,305 8.21o/o

Exhibit 9I Return to Agenda



515853vMNI DE135-70 2

RESOLUTION NO. 2018-______ 

ACCEPTING THE OFFER OF THE MINNESOTA PUBLIC 
FACILITIES AUTHORITY TO PURCHASE A GENERAL 
OBLIGATION SEWER REVENUE NOTE, SERIES 2018A, IN THE 
ORIGINAL AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF $16,336,065; 
PROVIDING FOR ITS ISSUANCE; AND AUTHORIZING THE 
EXECUTION OF A PROJECT LOAN AGREEMENT 

BE IT RESOLVED By the City Council of the City of Detroit Lakes, Becker County, Minnesota (the 
“City”), as follows: 

 Section 1. Recitals. 

(a) The Minnesota Public Facilities Authority (the “PFA”) is authorized pursuant to 
Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 446A, as amended, and Minnesota Rules, Chapter 7380, as amended, to 
issue its bonds (the “PFA Bonds”) and to use the proceeds thereof, together with certain other funds 
of the agency available for such purpose in the Clean Water Revolving Fund, to provide loans to 
political subdivisions of the State of Minnesota (the “State”) to fund eligible costs of construction of 
sanitary sewer collection systems (the “Program”). 

(b) The City is authorized to issue its obligations pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 
475, as amended, and Minnesota Statutes, Sections 115.46 and 444.075 (collectively, the “Act”), for 
the purpose of financing the rehabilitation of the City’s existing waterwater treatment system and 
construction of a new advanced system to treat phosphorus the “Project”). 

(c) The City has applied for a loan from the PFA pursuant to the Program, and the PFA 
has committed to make a loan to the City in the principal amount of $16,336,065, to be disbursed and 
repaid in accordance with the terms of a Bond Purchase and Project Loan Agreement, dated January 
10, 2018 (the “Project Loan Agreement”), to be executed by the City and the PFA, in substantially the 
form now on file with the City Administrator and attached hereto as EXHIBIT A.  The Project Loan 
Agreement, as executed, is incorporated herei n by reference.  The execution of the Project Loan 
Agreement is in accordance with the terms hereof.   

(d) In accordance with Section 475.60, subdivision 2(4) of the Act, the City is authorized 
to issue obligations to a board, department or agency of the State by negotiation and without 
advertisement for bids and the PFA is, and has represented that it is, a board, department or agency of 
the State.  In addition, PFA will be providing a Point Source Implementation Grant in the amount of 
$11,532,914 (the “PSIG Grant”), a Clean Water State Revolving Fund Principal Forgiveness Grant in 
the amount of $2,236,900 (the “Principal Forgiveness Grant”) and a Water Infrastructure Fund Grant-
Clean Water in the amount of $3,270,291 (the WIF Grant”) to help finance the Project, pursuant to the 
Project Loan Agreement. 

(e) The contract for the Project has been or will be made by the City with the approval of 
the PFA and all other State and federal agencies of whose approval is required. 

Section 2. Acceptance of Offer; Payment. 

(a) The City hereby accepts the offer of the PFA to purchase the General Obligation 
Sewer Revenue Note, Series 2018A (the “Note”), to be issued by the City in the original aggregate 

Exhibit 10A
Return to Agenda



515853vMNI DE135-70 3

principal amount of $16,336,065 at the rate of interest set forth in the Note, and to pay therefor the par 
amount of the Note as provided below, and the sale of the Note is awarded to the PFA.  Payment for 
the Note is to be disbursed in installments as eligible costs of the Project are reimbursed or paid, all as 
provided in the Project Loan Agreement.  The terms set forth in this resolution relating to the Note are 
intended to be consistent with the provisions of the Project Loan Agreement, and to the extent that any 
provision in the Project Loan Agreement is in conflict with this resolution, the Project Loan Agreement 
shall control. 

 
(b) The Note is to be issued in the aggregate principal amount of $16,336,065, originally 

and nominally dated as of the date of delivery as a fully registered Note without coupons.  The Note 
will be in the denomination of the entire principal amount thereof, numbered R-1, and will bear interest 
and mature in installment amounts as specified in EXHIBIT B attached hereto. 

 
(c) The Note is subject to redemption and prior payment as provided in the Project Loan 

Agreement. 
 
(d) Interest and principal in the installment amounts set out in the Note are payable by 

wire transfer, or if by check or draft of the City or its designated Registrar, mailed no later than five 
(5) business days prior to the payment date to the registered holder thereof at the holder’s address as it 
appears on the bond register at the close of business on the fifteenth (15th) day (whether or not a 
business day) immediately preceding the interest payment date. 

 
 Section 3. Date; Denomination; Interest Rate.  The Note will be a fully registered negotiable 
obligation, dated as of date of delivery and issued forthwith.  The Note shall be issued in substantially the form 
attached hereto as EXHIBIT B. 
 
 Section 4. Execution.  The Note is to be executed on behalf of the City by the manual or 
facsimile signatures of its Mayor and City Administrator, and is to be authenticated by the manual signature of 
the City Administrator, acting as authenticating agent of the City.  In the event of disability or resignation or 
other absence of any of such officers, the Note may be signed by any officer who is authorized to act on behalf 
of such absent or disabled officer.  If an officer whose signature will appear on the Note ceases to be such 
officer before the delivery of the Note, such officer’s signature will nevertheless be valid and sufficient for all 
purposes, the same as if such officer had remained in office until delivery. 
 
 Section 5. Delivery; Application of Proceeds.  The Note when so prepared and executed will be 
delivered by the City Administrator to the PFA prior to disbursements pursuant to the Project Loan Agreement 
and the purchaser is not obliged to see to the proper application thereof. 
 
 Section 6. Sewer Fund and Accounts.  There shall be maintained a separate fund in the City 
treasury designated as the Sewer Fund (the “Sewer Fund”).  The City Administrator and all municipal officials 
and employees concerned therewith will establish and maintain financial records of the receipts and 
disbursements of the municipal sanitary sewer system (the “Sanitary Sewer System”) in accordance with this 
resolution.  There will be maintained in the Sewer Fund, in addition to any accounts previously created, the 
following three (3) separate accounts: 
 

(a) A Capital Account to which will be credited all proceeds from the sale of the Note.  
The Note is the only source of money to be credited to the Capital Account.  It is recognized that the 
sale proceeds of the Note are received in reimbursement for costs expended on the Project or in direct 
payment of such costs, and that accordingly the money need not be placed in the Capital Account upon 
receipt but may be applied immediately to reimburse the source from which the expenditure was made.  
Money in the Capital Account is to be used solely for the purpose of paying for the cost of constructing 



515853vMNI DE135-70 4

the Project, including all costs enumerated in Section 475.65 of the Act, provided that such money 
may only be expended for costs and expenses which are permitted under the Project Loan Agreement.  
The PFA prohibits the use of proceeds of the Note to reimburse costs initially paid from proceeds of 
other obligations of the City unless otherwise specifically approved by the PFA.  Upon completion of 
the Project and the payment of the costs thereof, any surplus is to be transferred to the Debt Service 
Account. 

 
(b) An Operation and Maintenance Account into which are to be paid all gross 

revenues and earnings derived from the operation of the Sanitary Sewer System, including all 
charges for the service, use and availability of and connection to the Sanitary Sewer System, when 
collected, and all money received from the sale of any facilities or equipment of the Sanitary Sewer 
System or any by-products thereof.  From this account there will be paid all the normal, reasonable 
and current costs of operating, maintaining, and insuring the Sanitary Sewer System, including 
salaries, wages, costs of materials and supplies, necessary legal, engineering and auditing services, 
and all other items that, by sound accounting practices, constitute normal, reasonable and current 
costs of operating and maintenance, but excluding any allowance for depreciation, extraordinary 
repairs and payments into any debt service account.  All money remaining in the Operation and 
Maintenance Account after paying or providing for the foregoing items constitutes, and is referred 
to in this resolution as, “net revenues.” 

 
(c) A Debt Service Account into which are irrevocably pledged or credited (i) net 

revenues of the Sanitary Sewer System in an amount sufficient, with other money, to pay the 
principal of and interest on the Note when due; (ii) all collections of taxes which may hereafter be 
levied for the payment of the principal of and interest on the Note; (iii) all investment earnings on 
money held in the Debt Service Account; (iv) any amounts transferred from the Capital Account; 
and (v) any other money which is properly available and is appropriated by the City Council to the 
Debt Service Account.  The money in this account may be used only to pay or prepay the principal of 
the Note and to pay interest on the Note and any other obligations hereafter issued and made payable 
from this account, and to pay any rebate due to the United States with respect to the PFA Bonds in 
connection with the Note. 

 
(d) Excess net revenues not required for the purposes of the Sewer Fund may be used for 

any proper municipal purpose. 
 
No portion of the proceeds of the Note may be used directly or indirectly to acquire higher 

yielding investments, or to replace funds which were used directly or indirectly to acquire higher 
yielding investments, except (i) for a reasonable temporary period until such proceeds are needed for 
the purpose for which the Note was issued, and (ii) in addition to the above in an amount not greater 
than the lesser of five percent (5%) of the proceeds of the Note or $100,000.  To this effect, any 
proceeds of the Note or any sums from time to time held in the Capital Account (or any other City 
account which will be used to pay principal of or interest on the Note) in excess amounts which under 
then applicable federal arbitrage regulations may be invested without regard to yield will not be 
invested at a yield in excess of the applicable yield restrictions imposed by the arbitrage regulations on 
such investments after taking into account any applicable “temporary periods” or “minor portion” 
made available under the federal arbitrage regulations.  In addition, money in the Sewer Fund will not 
be invested in obligations or deposits issued by, guaranteed by or insured by the United States or any 
agency or instrumentality thereof if and to the extent that such investment would cause the Note to be 
“federally guaranteed” within the meaning of Section 149(b) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as 
amended (the “Code”).   

 



515853vMNI DE135-70 5

The City will observe the covenants of Sections 13, 14, and 15 of this resolution and of Article 
III of the Project Loan Agreement with regard to the Sewer Fund. 

 
 Section 7. Coverage Test; Pledge of Net Revenues; Excess Revenues.  It is found, determined 
and declared that the net revenues of the Sanitary Sewer System are sufficient in amount to pay one hundred 
five percent (105%) of the principal of and interest on the Note when due, and the net revenues of the Sanitary 
Sewer System are pledged to the payment of the Note, but solely to the extent required to meet, with other 
pledged sources, one hundred five percent (105%) of the principal and interest requirements of the Note as the 
same become due. 
 
 Section 8. Pledge to Produce Revenues.  In accordance with the Act, the City hereby covenants 
and agrees with the holder of the Note that it will impose and collect charges for the service, use and availability 
of any connection to the Sanitary Sewer System at the times and in the amounts required to produce net 
revenues adequate to pay all principal and interest when due on the Note. 
 
 Section 9. General Obligation Pledge.   The full faith and credit and taxing powers of the City 
will be and are irrevocably pledged for the prompt and full payment of the principal of and interest on the Note 
as the same respectively become due.  If the net revenues of the Sanitary Sewer System appropriated and 
pledged to the payment of principal of and interest on the Note, together with other funds irrevocably 
appropriated to the Debt Service Account referred to in Section 6, are at any time insufficient to pay such 
principal and interest when due, the City covenants and agrees to levy, without limitation as to rate or amount, 
an ad valorem tax upon all taxable property in the City sufficient to pay such principal and interest as the same 
become due.  If the balance in the Debt Service Account is ever insufficient to pay all principal and interest 
then due on the Note and any other obligations payable therefrom, the deficiency will be promptly paid out of 
any other funds of the City which are available for such purpose, and those other funds may be reimbursed, 
with or without interest, from the Debt Service Account when a sufficient balance is available in that account. 
 
 Section 10. Certificate of Registration.  The City Administrator is authorized and directed to file 
a certified copy of this resolution with the County Auditor of Becker County, Minnesota (the “County 
Auditor”), together with such other information as the County Auditor may require, and to obtain the certificate 
of the County Auditor that the Note has been entered in the Bond Register of the County Auditor. 
 
 Section 11. Project Loan Agreement.  The Project Loan Agreement is approved in substantially 
the form presented to the City Council of the City, and in the form executed is incorporated by reference and 
made a part of this resolution.  The provisions of this resolution relating to the Note are intended to be consistent 
with the provisions of the Project Loan Agreement, and to the extent that any provision in the Project Loan 
Agreement is in conflict with this resolution as it relates to the Note, that provision controls.  The execution 
and delivery of the Project Loan Agreement by the Mayor and City Administrator are hereby authorized and 
ratified.  The execution of the Project Loan Agreement by the appropriate officers is conclusive evidence of 
the approval of the Project Loan Agreement in accordance with the terms hereof.  The Project Loan Agreement 
may be attached to the Note, and must be attached to the Note if the holder of the Note is any person other than 
the PFA. 
 
 Section 12. Records and Certificates.  The officers of the City are hereby authorized and directed 
to prepare and furnish to the PFA, and to the attorneys approving the legality of the issuance of the Note, 
certified copies of all proceedings and records of the City relating to the Note and to the financial condition and 
affairs of the City, and such other affidavits, certificates and information as are required to show the facts 
relating to the legality and marketability of the Note as the same appear from the books and records under their 
custody and control, or as otherwise known to them, and all such certified copies, certificates and affidavits 
including any heretofore furnished, are to be deemed representations of the City as to the facts recited therein. 
 



515853vMNI DE135-70 6

 Section 13. Negative Covenants as to Use of Proceeds and Project.  The City covenants not to use 
the proceeds of the Note or to use the Project, or to cause or permit them to be used, or to enter into any deferred 
payment arrangements for the cost of the Project, in such a manner as to cause the Note to be a private activity 
bond within the meaning of Sections 103 and 141 through 150 of the Code.  The City reasonably expects that 
no actions will be taken over the term of the Note that would cause it to be a private activity bond, and the 
average term of the Note is not longer than reasonably necessary for the governmental purpose of the issue.  
The City covenants not to use the proceeds of the Note in such a manner as to cause the Note to be a “hedge 
bond” within the meaning of Section 149(g) of the Code. 
 
 Section 14. Tax-Exempt Status of the Note; Rebate.  The City will comply with requirements 
necessary under the Code to establish and maintain the exclusion from gross income under Section 103 of the 
Code of the interest on the Note, including without limitation (i) requirements relating to temporary periods for 
investments; (ii) limitations on amounts invested at a yield greater than the yield on the PFA Bonds; and (iii) the 
rebate of excess investment earnings to the United States. 
 
 Section 15. Tax-Exempt Status of the PFA Bonds; Rebate.  The City, with respect to the Note, 
will comply with requirements necessary under the Code to establish and maintain the exclusion from gross 
income under Section 103 of the Code of the interest on the PFA Bonds, including without limitation 
(i) requirements relating to temporary periods for investments; (ii) limitations on amounts invested at a yield in 
excess of the applicable yield restrictions imposed by the Code; and (iii) the rebate of excess investment 
earnings to the United States.  The City covenants and agrees with the PFA and holders of the Note that the 
investments of proceeds of the Note, including the investment of any revenues pledged to the Note which are 
considered gross proceeds of the PFA Bonds under the applicable regulations, and accumulated sinking funds, 
if any, will be limited as to amount and yield in such manner that the PFA Bonds will not be arbitrage bonds 
within the meaning of Section 148 of the Code and any regulations thereunder.  On the basis of the existing 
facts, estimates and circumstances, including the foregoing findings and covenants, the City certifies that it is 
not expected that the proceeds of the Note will be used in such manner as to cause the PFA Bonds to be arbitrage 
bonds under Section 148 of the Code and any regulations thereunder.  The Mayor and the City Administrator 
will furnish a certificate to the PFA embracing or based on the foregoing certification at the time of delivery of 
the Note to the PFA. 
 
 Section 16. Severability.  If any section, paragraph or provision of this resolution is held to be 
invalid or unenforceable for any reason, the validity or unenforceability of such section, paragraph or provision 
will not affect any of the remaining provisions of this resolution. 
 
 Section 17. Headings.  Headings in this resolution are included for convenience of reference only 
and are not a part hereof, and do not limit or define the meaning of any provision hereof. 
 
 
 

(The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank.) 
 



515853vMNI DE135-70 7

 The motion for the adoption of the foregoing resolution was duly seconded by Member 

___________________, and upon vote being taken thereon the following members voted in favor of the 

motion:   

 

and the following voted against:   

 

whereupon the resolution was declared duly passed and adopted. 

 

 



515853vMNI DE135-70 A-1

EXHIBIT A  
 

PROJECT LOAN AGREEMENT 
 
 
 
 



515853vMNI DE135-70 B-1

EXHIBIT B 
 

FORM OF NOTE 
 
 

No. R-1 UNITED STATES OF AMERICA $16,336,065 
STATE OF MINNESOTA 
COUNTY OF BECKER 

CITY OF DETROIT LAKES 
 

GENERAL OBLIGATION SEWER REVENUE NOTE 
SERIES 2018A 

 
Date of Original Issue:  ____________, 2018 
 
 The City of Detroit Lakes, a municipal corporation in Becker County, Minnesota (the “City”), certifies 
that it is indebted for value received and promises to pay to the Minnesota Public Facilities Authority or 
registered assigns, the principal sum of $16,336,065, or so much thereof as may have been disbursed on 
August 20 in the years and installments as follows: 
 

Year  Installment  Year  Installment 
       

2018  386,065  2028  838,000 
2019  759,000  2029  847,000 
2020  768,000  2030  856,000 
2021  776,000  2031  866,000 
2022  785,000  2032  875,000 
2023  793,000  2033  885,000 
2024  802,000  2034  895,000 
2025  811,000  2035  905,000 
2026  820,000  2036  915,000 
2027  829,000  2037  925,000 

 
and to pay interest on so much of the principal amount of the debt as may be disbursed from time to time as 
provided in the Project Loan Agreement (as defined below) and remains unpaid, from the date of this Note for 
disbursements made on or prior to that date or from the date of each later disbursement until the principal 
amount hereof is paid or has been provided for, at the rate of 1.099% per annum on each February 20 and 
August 20, commencing August 20, 2018. 
 
 Principal and Interest Payments.  Interest accrues only on the aggregate amount of this Note that has 
been disbursed under the Bond Purchase and Project Loan Agreement dated January 10, 2018 (the “Project 
Loan Agreement”), by and between the Minnesota Public Facilities Authority (the “PFA”) and the City.  The 
principal installments will be paid in the amounts scheduled above even if at the time of payment the full 
principal amount of this Note has not been disbursed; provided that to the extent any principal amount of this 
Note is never disbursed, the amount of the principal not disbursed is to be applied to reduce each unpaid 
principal installment in the proportion that such installment bears to the total of all unpaid principal installments 
(i.e., the remaining principal payment schedule is to be reamortized to provide similarly level annual 
installments of total debt service payments). 
 
 Interest on this Note includes amounts treated by the PFA as service fees.  Principal, interest and any 
premium due under this Note will be paid on each payment date by wire transfer of immediately available 



515853vMNI DE135-70 B-2

funds, or by check or draft mailed at least five (5) business days prior to the payment date to the person in 
whose name this Note is registered in any coin or currency of the United States of America which at the time 
of payment is legal tender for public and private debts. 
 
 Redemption.  This Note is subject to optional or mandatory redemption and prepayment in whole or 
in part as provided in the Project Loan Agreement.  Any prepayments of this Note shall be applied pursuant to 
Section 1.6 of the Project Loan Agreement. 
 
 Purpose; General Obligation.  This Note has been issued pursuant to and in full conformity with the 
home rule charter of the City and the Constitution and laws of the State of Minnesota, for the purpose of 
providing money to finance eligible project costs of the City’s municipal sanitary sewer system, and is payable 
out of the Debt Service Account of the Sewer Fund of the City, to which account have been pledged net 
revenues of the City’s municipal sanitary sewer system.  This Note constitutes a general obligation of the City, 
and to provide money for the prompt and full payment of said principal installments and interest when the same 
become due, the full faith and credit and taxing powers of the City have been and are hereby irrevocably 
pledged. 
 
 Registration:  Transfer.  This Note must be registered in the name of the payee on the books of the City 
by presenting this Note for registration to the City Administrator, who will endorse the City Administrator’s 
name and note the date of registration opposite the name of the payee in the certificate of registration attached 
hereto.  Thereafter this Note may be transferred to a bona fide purchaser only by delivery with an assignment 
duly executed by the registered owner or owner’s legal representative, and the City may treat the registered 
owner as the person exclusively entitled to exercise all the rights and powers of an owner until this Note is 
presented with such assignment for registration of transfer, accompanied by assurance of the nature provided 
by law that the assignment is genuine and effective, and until such transfer is registered on said books and noted 
hereon by the City Administrator. 
 
 Fees Upon Transfer or Loss.  The City Administrator may require payment of a sum sufficient to cover 
any tax or other governmental charge payable in connection with the transfer of this Note and any legal or 
unusual costs regarding transfers and lost notes. 
 
 Project Loan Agreement.  The terms and conditions of the Project Loan Agreement are incorporated 
herein by reference and made a part hereof.  The Project Loan Agreement may be attached to this Note and 
must be attached to this Note if the holder of this Note is any person other than the PFA. 
 
 Tax-Exempt Obligation.  The City intends that the interest on this Note will be excluded from gross 
income for United States income tax purposes or from both gross income and taxable net income for State of 
Minnesota income tax purposes. 
 
 IT IS HEREBY CERTIFIED AND RECITED that all acts, conditions and things required by the 
charter of the City and the Constitution and laws of the State of Minnesota to be done, to happen and to be 
performed precedent to and in the issuance of this Note, have been done, have happened and have been 
performed in regular and due form, time and manner required by law; that the City has covenanted and agreed 
with the holder of this Note that it will impose and collect charges for the service, use and availability of and 
connection to its municipal sanitary sewer system at the times and in amounts necessary to produce net revenues 
adequate to pay all principal and interest when due on this Note; that the City will levy a direct, annual, 
irrepealable ad valorem tax upon all of the taxable property in the City, without limitation as to rate or amount, 
if the net revenues from the municipal sanitary sewer system and any other revenues irrevocably appropriated 
to the Debt Service Account are insufficient therefor; and that this Note, together with all other debts of the 
City outstanding on the date hereof, being the date of its actual issuance and delivery, does not exceed any 
constitutional, charter, or statutory limitation of indebtedness. 



515853vMNI DE135-70 B-3

 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City of Detroit Lakes, Becker County, Minnesota, has caused this Note 
to be executed with the manual signatures of its Mayor and City Administrator, both as of the nominal date of 
original issue specified above. 
 
 

CITY OF DETROIT LAKES, MINNESOTA 
 
 
By   
Its  Mayor 
 
 
By   
Its  City Administrator 

 
 

____________________________________ 
 

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICATION 
AND REGISTRATION 

 
 This is the Note described above and has been registered as to the principal and interest in the name of 
the Registered Owner identified below on the registration books of the City Administrator of the City.  The 
transfer of ownership of the principal amount of this Note may be made only by the Registered Owner or by 
the Registered Owner’s legal representative last noted below. 
 

 
Date of Registration 

  
Registered Owner 

 Signature of 
City Administrator 

     
 
 

 Minnesota Public Facilities Authority 
Federal Employer I.D. No. 41-6007162 

  

 
 

 



515853vMNI DE135-70 

STATE OF MINNESOTA ) 
) 

COUNTY OF BECKER  ) 
) 

CITY OF DETROIT LAKES ) 
 
 
 I, the undersigned, being the duly qualified and acting City Administrator of the City of Detroit Lakes, 

Minnesota (the “City”), do hereby certify that I have carefully compared the attached and foregoing extract of 

minutes of a regular meeting of the City Council of said City held on February 13, 2018, with the original 

thereof on file in my office and the same is a full, true and correct copy thereof, insofar as the same relates to 

the issuance and sale of the City’s General Obligation Sewer Revenue Note, Series 2018A, in the original 

aggregate principal amount of $16,336,065. 

 WITNESS My hand as such City Administrator and the corporate seal of the City this ____ day of 

___________, 2018. 

 

  
City Administrator 
City of Detroit Lakes, Minnesota 

 (SEAL) 
 
 
 



Exhibit 10B
Return to Agenda















Return to Agenda


	1 - 2018-02-13 Agenda
	2 - 2018-01-09 Minutes
	2 - 2018-01-25 Minutes - Special Meeting
	4A1 - Joint Resolution Lakeview Township and City of Detroit Lakes 2017
	4B1 - Broadlawn -authorize plans specs
	4C1 - County Rd 131-authorize plans specs
	4D - 708 Richwood Rd 012918
	5A - Resolution - 1245 Washington Avenue - Sanford - Parking (2)
	5B - Ordinance 421 - 1113 Lincoln Avenue - St. Mary's Essentia Health
	5C - Resolution - 1112 and 1113 Lincoln Avenue
	5D - Curfman Beach Public Hearing Notice
	5E - Ord 417 - Rezoning 839 South Shore Drive - Tomlinson Schultz Partners, LLC
	5F - Ord 418 - DL Stormwater Management Ordinance 010418, FINAL
	5G - Ord 419 - Foltz Trucking
	5H - Ord 420 - Administrative Penalties Ordinance v2- 2017
	5I - FEBRUARY Nuisance Status Report
	5J - Conditional Use-Variance Status
	5K - Building Permit Report
	6D - Arena- Shriners Letter
	6E - Lake Builders Arena
	6F - Pavilion - DLCCC Letter to the City of DL
	6G - Trail Link Project Resolution
	6G1 -Trail Link Project - Connecting Co. Hwy. 54 and Heartland Trail
	6H - Long Lake Ph 4  plans - bids
	6I - Lake Forests 7th  plans - bids
	6J - Accepting PER-hearing Highland Estates
	6J1 - Highland Estates - PER with Exhibits (002)
	6O - ULTRA request
	6P - Art in the Park1
	6Q - February 2018 - Project Status Report
	6R - January 2018 Animal Control Report
	7B - Donation Memo1
	7C - DCC Rates
	7D - 2018 DCC Concession lease
	7E - Ordinance 422 - Liability Insurance Dock License
	7F - Ordinance 423 - Liability Insurance Expansion Permit
	7G - Swanson
	7L - Trial Balance
	8D - PD January
	8E -  Fire Report Summary
	9I - Liquor Report
	10A - #515853-v1-Detroit_Lakes_PFA_2018A_NOTE_RESOLUTION
	10B - purchase1



